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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This report combines the Annual Reports on FornkK16r the year ended December 31, 2012 of SummieHeroperties, Inc., a
Maryland corporation, and Summit Hotel OP, LP, dalare limited partnership.

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwigeires, references in this report to:
e “Summit REIT” mean Summit Hotel Properties, IrceMaryland corporation;

e “Summit OP” or “our operating partnership” meam®uit Hotel OP, LP, a Delaware limited partnersloipr operating
partnership, and its consolidated subsidiaries; and

e ‘“we,” “our,” “us,” “our company” or “the companythean Summit REIT, Summit OP and their consolidatdskidiaries taken
together as one company. When this report discusseders to activities occurring prior to Febrpa#, 2011, the date on
which our operations commenced, these referenéestoeour predecessc

Summit REIT is the sole member of Summit Hotel GEC, a Delaware limited liability company, whichtise sole general partner
(the “General Partner”) of Summit OP. Effectivech$-ebruary 14, 2011, our predecessor mergedamithinto Summit OP, with the former
members of our predecessor exchanging their meimpedrderests in our predecessor for common urifgaanership interest of Summit OP
(“Common Units”) and Summit OP succeeding to theifless and assets of our predecessor. Also ondrghird, 2011, Summit REIT completed
its initial public offering (“IPO”) and a concurreprivate placement of its common stock and contal the net proceeds of the IPO and
concurrent private placement to Summit OP in exghedor Common Units. On October 28, 2011, SummifIREmpleted a follow-on public
offering of 2,000,000 shares of its 9.25% Seriezufulative redeemable preferred stock (“Series &dPred Stock”). On December 11, 2012,
Summit REIT completed a public offering of 3,00@GMhares of its 7.875% Series B cumulative redenpabferred stock (“Series B Preferred
Stock,” the Series B Preferred Stock and SeriesefeRred Stock collectively referred to as “PrederStock”). As of December 31, 2012, Sumi
REIT owned approximately 90% of the issued andtanting Common Units, including the sole generalngaship interest held by the General
Partner. The remaining Common Units in Summit @Poavned by third parties. As of December 31, 2@LEnmit REIT owned all of the issu
and outstanding 9.25% Series A Cumulative Redeearfgferred Units of Summit OP (“Series A Prefetdmits”) and all of the issued and
outstanding 7.875% Series B Cumulative Redeemablerffed Units of Summit OP (“Series B Preferredt&lihithe Series B Preferred Units and
Series A Preferred Units collectively referred $d'Breferred Units”). As the sole member of then&al Partner, Summit REIT has exclusive
control of Summit OP’s day-to-day management.

W e believe combining the Annual Reports on ForaKiéf Summit REIT and Summit OP into this singlpoet provides the
following benefits:

e it enhances investors’ understanding of SummitiR&EId Summit OP by enabling investors to view thsifiess as a whole in
the same manner as management views and operatessiness;

e it eliminates duplicative disclosure and providamore streamlined and readable presentation aisabstantial portion of the
disclosure applies to both Summit REIT and Sumnft &nd

e it creates time and cost efficiencies for both panies through the preparation of one combinedrtépstead of two separate
reports.

We believe it is important to understand the feffedences between Summit REIT and Summit OP irctrgext of how Summit REI
and Summit OP operate as a consolidated compamym& REIT has elected to be taxed as a real eistatstment trust (“REIT”) under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€'Gacbmmencing with its short taxable year endedénber 31, 2011.




As of December 31, 2012, Summit RE$TOnly material assets were its ownership of Combioits and Preferred Units of Summit ¢
and its ownership of the membership interestsen@eneral Partner. As a result, Summit REIT deg¢sonduct business itself, other than
controlling, through the General Partner, Summit @#ing capital through issuances of equity séearfrom time to time and guaranteeing
certain debt of Summit OP and its subsidiariesmi@it OP and its subsidiaries hold all the assete@tonsolidated company. Except for net
proceeds from securities issuances by Summit REiiGh are contributed to Summit OP in exchangepfotnership units of Summit OP, Sum
OP and its subsidiaries generate capital from gregagion of our business and through borrowingsthadssuance of partnership units of Summit
OP.

Stockholders’ equity, partners’ capital and nonoalting interests are the main areas of differelpesveen the consolidated financial
statements of Summit REIT and those of Summit @8 of December 31, 2012, Summit OP’s capital irgerénclude Common Units,
representing general and limited partnership istsreand Series A Preferred Units and Series B2Resf Units, both representing limited
partnership interests. The Common Units ownedrbifdd partners other than Summit REIT and its &liages are accounted for in partners’
capital in Summit OP’s consolidated financial stagats and (within stockholders’ equity) as nonaalhitrg interests in Summit REIT’s
consolidated financial statements.

In order to highlight the differences between SutiRi&IT and Summit OP, there are sections in tipsmethat separately discuss
Summit REIT and Summit OP, including separate fomrstatements and certain notes thereto andatepaxhibit 31 and Exhibit 32
certifications. In the sections that combine disale for Summit REIT and Summit OP (i.e., wheeedisclosure refers to the consolidated
company), this report refers to actions or holdiag®ur actions or holdings and, unless otherwideated, means the actions or holdings of
Summit REIT and Summit OP and their respective igidoies, as one consolidated company.

As the sole member of the General Partner, SumBElit Ronsolidates Summit OP for financial reportmgposes, and Summit REIT
does not have assets other than its investmeheiGéneral Partner and Summit OP. Therefore, wslolekholders’ equity and partners’ capital
differ as discussed above, the assets and ligsilitf Summit REIT and Summit OP are the same dnriepective financial statements.

Finally, we refer to a number of other entities awdnts in this report as follows. Unless the ernbtherwise requires or indicates,
references to:

e ‘“the LLC" refer to Summit Hotel Properties, LL@dreferences to “our predecessor” include the Bb@ its consolidated
subsidiaries;

e “our TRSs" refer to Summit Hotel TRS, Inc., a B@hre corporation, and Summit Hotel TRS I, IndQedaware corporation, and
any other taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”) thatmway form in the future;

e “our TRS lessees” refer to the wholly owned sdiasies of our TRSs that lease our hotels from Sir@i or subsidiaries of
Summit OP;

e  “The Summit Group” refer to The Summit Group,.lraur predecessor’s hotel management company, @wyridanager and
former Class C Member, which was wholly owned by Bxecutive Chairman, Kerry W. Boekelheide;

e “the Merger” refer to the merger on February 2@11 of our predecessor with and into our opergtengnership with our operating
partnership as the surviving entity and succeettirthe business and ownership of the 65 hotels dwgeur predecessor; and

e “formation transactions” refer to the Merger aedulting conversion of the outstanding membershgrests in our predecessor
into, and cancellation in exchange for, Common §Jraur predecessor’'s members admission as limédgdegrs of our operating
partnership, the contribution of the Class B memsiigrinterest in Summit Group of Scottsdale, Arizonl C (“Summit of
Scottsdale”) which owns two hotels in Scottsdalez@na, by The Summit Group to our operating paship, and the contribution
by an unaffiliated thir-party investor of its Class C membership intenegummit of Scottsdale to our operating partners
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMEN TS

This report, together with other statements anormétion publicly disseminated by us, containsaiertorward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securites of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”Y] &gction 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Wend such forward-looking statements to be covbgetthe safe harbor provisions for
forward-looking statements contained in the Privigeurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and inbuthis statement for purposes of complying
with these safe harbor provisions. Forwlrdking statements, which are based on certaimgsisons and describe our future plans, strategid:
expectations, are generally identifiable by usthefwords “may,” “could,” “expect,” “intend,” “plafi “seek,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“predict,” “forecast,” “potential,” “continue,” “kely,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions. Forard-looking statements in this report include,
among others, statements about our business stratetuding acquisition and development strategisdustry trends, estimated revenue and
expenses, ability to realize deferred tax assatsapected liquidity needs and sources (includagtal expenditures and the ability to obtain
financing or raise capital). You should not relyforwardiooking statements since they involve known andnemkn risks, uncertainties and ott
factors that are, in some cases, beyond our ccoentibwhich could materially affect actual resytis;formances or achievements. Factors that may
cause actual results to differ materially from eatrexpectations include, but are not limited to:

”ou ”ou " ”ou

” ” ou ”ou ” ”

e financing risks, including the risk of leverage @hd corresponding risk of default on our mortglgss and other debt and poter
inability to refinance or extend the maturity oisting indebtednes:

e national, regional and local economic conditic

e levels of spending in the business, travel anditeindustries, as well as consumer confider

e declines in occupancy, average daily rate and revger available room and other hotel operatingiose

e hostilities, including future terrorist attacks,fear of hostilities that affect trave

e financial condition of, and our relationships witur joint venture partners, th-party property managers and franchis
e the degree and nature of our competiti

e increased interest rates and operating ¢

e risks associated with potential acquisitions, idalg the ability to ramp up and stabilize newly aicgd hotels with limited or r
operating history, and dispositions of hotel préipsr

e availability of and our ability to retain qualifiggersonnel

e our failure to maintain our qualification as a REifider the Code

e changes in our business or investment strat

e availability, terms and deployment of capit

e general volatility of the capital markets and tharket price of our shares of common stc

e environmental uncertainties and risks related tanahdisasters; an

e the other factors discussed under the heg“Risk Factor” in this report.

Accordingly, there is no assurance that our expiectawill be realized. Except as otherwise reqlivg the federal securities laws, we

disclaim any obligations or undertaking to publioByease any updates or revisions to any forwasllify statement contained herein (or

elsewhere) to reflect any change in our expectatiith regard thereto or any change in events,itiond or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.




PART I
ltem 1. Business.
Overview

We are a self-managed hotel investment companyasirganized in June 2010 to continue and expiandxisting hotel investment
business of our predecessor, Summit Hotel ProgettleC, a leading U.S. hotel owner.

We focus primarily on acquiring and owning premibnanded select-service hotels in the upscale apdrupidscale segments of the
U.S. lodging industry, as these segments are diyréefined by Smith Travel Research (“STR”). Ae@mber 31, 2012, we owned 84 hotels
with a total of 9,019 guestrooms located in 2lestat-rom February 13, 2011 through December 3112,20e acquired 24 hotels with a total of
2,915 guestrooms for purchase prices aggregatipggimately $315.5 million, and we sold five hotetmtaining 421 guestrooms, for sales
prices aggregating approximately $26.1 million. ckecember 31, 2012, 64.8% of our guestrooms Veeaged in the top 50 metropolitan
statistical areas, or MSAs, and 82.8% were locafiéun the top 100 MSAs. Over 90% of our hotele@ie under premium franchise brands
owned by Marriott International, Inc. (“Marriott(Courtyard by Marriott®, Residence Inn by Marriott@pringHill Suites by Marriott®, Fairfield
Inn by Marriott®, Fairfield Inn and Suites by Mati®, and TownePlace Suites by Marriott®), HiltoroWdwide (“Hilton”) (DoubleTree by
Hilton®, Hampton Inn®, Hampton Inn & Suites®, Homawd Suites® and Hilton Garden Inn®), Intercontirméhtotel Group (“IHG”) (Holiday
Inn®, Holiday Inn Express®, Holiday Inn Express Bultes® and Staybridge Suites®) and an affilidtielyatt Hotels Corporation (“Hyatt”)
(Hyatt House® and Hyatt Place®). Except for sixetg which are held under ground lease or otlaseleold interest, we own our hotels in fee
simple. Our hotels are located in markets thatbéxinultiple demand generators, such as busined<arporate headquarters, retail centers,
airports and tourist attractions.

Since December 31, 2012, we have acquired fouthdameluding one acquired through a joint ventuvigh a total of 678 guestrooms
and disposed of two hotels with a total of 211 ¢y@esns, and as of February 25, 2013, we owned &ldwith a total of 9,486 guestrooms
located in 22 states.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for fedecalme tax purposes commencing with our short texgédhr ended December 31,
2011. To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate anage our hotels. Accordingly, we lease substintifi of our hotels to our TRS lessees. All
of our hotels are operated pursuant to hotel manageagreements with third party hotel managememipanies.

Our corporate offices are located at 12600 Hill @opBoulevard, Suite R-100, Austin, TX 78738. r@elephone number is (512)
538-2315. Our website wgww.shpreit.com The information contained on, or accessible throogin website is not incorporated by reference
into this report and should not be considered agfahis report.

Business Strategy

Our strategy focuses on increasing the cash flosuoportfolio through focused asset managemergetad capital investment
and strategic acquisitions. Our primary objecta/éoi enhance stockholder value over time by geingratrong risk-adjusted returns for our
stockholders. The key elements of our strategywieabelieve will allow us to create long-term vahre as follows:

Focus on Premium-Branded Limited-Service and S&ectice Hotels We focus on hotels in the upscale and uppercalds
segments of the lodging industry. We believe thaitfocus on these segments provides us the opjiigrtorachieve strong risk-adjusted returns
across multiple lodging cycles for several reasotduding:

e RevPAR Growtl. We believe our hotels will continue to experiermoeaningful revenue growth to the extent lodgimdustr
fundamentals recover from the recent economic stmesvhich caused industry-wide revenue per aviglatlom (“RevPAR”)to
suffer a combined 18.4% decline in 2008 and 2068pmling to Smith Travel Research. Industry conddicontinued to impro
during 2012. In “PwC Hospitality DirectionsPricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP projects RevPAR grawtiheases in 2013 f
upscale hotels and upper midscale hotels of 5.8%G&k0, respectively




e Stable Cash Flow Potential Our hotels can be operated with fewer employkas fullservice hotels that offer more expan:
food and beverage options, which we believe enabged$o generate consistent cash flows with lesatiiof resulting fron
reductions in RevPAR and less dependence on grauelt

e Broad Customer Bas. Our target brands deliver consistently high-iyydiotel accommodations with valweiented pricing th:
we believe appeals to a wide range of customecdding both business and leisure travelers. Weebelthat our hotels ¢
particularly popular with frequent business traveleho seek to stay in hotels operating under M#yrHilton, Hyatt or IHC
brands, which offer strong loyalty rewards proggammts that can be redeemed for family tra

e Enhanced Diversificatio. Premium-branded upscale and upper midscaleshgeglerally cost significantly less, on a gey-basis
than hotels in the upper upscale and luxury segnehthe industry. As a result, we can diversify gwestment capital in
ownership of a larger number of hotels than wea@umore expensive segmer

Capitalize on Investments in Our Hotel$¥Ve strongly believe in investing in our propestto help them be competitive in their
respective markets. Since our IPO and through mbee 31, 2012, we have invested $56.9 million jpitehimprovements to the hotels in our
portfolio, including the 65 hotels in our portfoli the time of our IPO and the 24 hotels acquiteihg 2011 and 2012. We believe these
investments produce attractive returns, and weaowititinue to rebrand, upgrade and renovate outshote

Acquire Hotels in Attractive Transaction Landscap@/e believe that the significant decline in lotgfundamentals from 2008
through early 2010 and the resultant declines & ¢ws created a difficult environment for hod&iners lacking ready access to financing or
suffering from reduced cash flows. As a result,bebeve that the significant number of hotel projesrthat experienced substantial declines in
operating cash flow, coupled with continued tigtetdit markets, near-term debt maturities and, mestnstances, covenant defaults relating to
outstanding indebtedness, will continue to prea#tractive opportunities for us to acquire hotelparties at prices below replacement cost and
with substantial appreciation potential. We intémdontinue to grow through acquisitions of exigtirotels using a disciplined approach while
maintaining a prudent capital structure. We tatggter midscale and upscale hotels that meet om®ge of the following acquisition criteria:

e have potential for strong risk-adjusted returnsted in the top 50 MSAs and other select markets;

e operate under leading franchise brands, which meyde but are not limited to brands owned by MétriHilton, IHG and Hyatt;

e are located in close proximity to multiple demaneherators, including businesses and corporate headgs, retail cente
airports, medical facilities, tourist attractionsdaconvention centers, with a diverse source oémt@l guests, including corpore
government and leisure travele

e are located in markets exhibiting barriers to edung to strong franchise areas of protection cerdictors;

e can be acquired at a discount to replacement andt;

e provide an opportunity to add value through opatgaéfficiencies, repositioning, renovating or retaiag.
Strategic Hotel SalesA primary part of our strategy is to acquire awh hotels. However, consistent with our stratefjgeeking

to maximize the cash flow of our portfolio and oeturn on invested capital, we periodically review hotels to determine if any significant

changes to area markets or our hotels have occarrae anticipated to occur that would warrantshie of a particular hotel, particularly when
we believe the proceeds from the sale can be iegésthotels producing more attractive returns.




Selectively Develop HotelsWe believe there will be attractive opportursitte partner on a selective basis with experiehaceel
developers to acquire upon completion newly coestdihotels that meet our investment criteria.

Our Financing Strategy

We maintain a prudent capital structure. Whilertte will vary from time to time, we generallyténd to limit our ratio of
indebtedness to earnings before interest, taxgsedation and amortization (“‘EBITDA”) to no motteain six to one. For purposes of calculating
this ratio we exclude preferred stock from indehts. During 2012, we financed our long-term growith common and preferred equity
issuances and debt financing having staggered iti@syand intend to continue to do so in the fet@ur debt includes, and may include in the
future, mortgage debt secured by hotels and unseadebt.

When purchasing hotel properties, we may issue Gamidmits as full or partial consideration to sedlaho may desire to take
advantage of tax deferral on the sale of a hotphaticipate in the potential appreciation in vatd@ur common stock.

Competition

We face competition for investments in hotel prdiperfrom institutional pension funds, private dégumvestors, REITSs, hotel
companies and others who are engaged in hotelsitiogns and investments. Some of these entities kalbstantially greater financial and
operational resources than we have. This competitiay increase the bargaining power of propertyara/seeking to sell, reduce the number of
suitable investment opportunities available tond iacrease the cost of acquiring our targeted! fpotperties.

The lodging industry is highly competitive. Our élstcompete with other hotels for guests in thespective markets based on a
number of factors, including location, conveniermrand affiliation, room rates, range of serviced guest amenities or accommodations offered
and quality of customer service. Competition igpfspecific to the individual markets in which datels are located and includes competition
from existing and new hotels. Competition couldexdely affect our occupancy rates, our averagg datibs (“ADR”) and our RevPAR, and may
require us to provide additional amenities or medqeital improvements that we otherwise would neteh@ make, which may reduce our
profitability.

Seasonality

Certain segments of the hotel industry are seasomature. Leisure travelers tend to travel noueng the summer. Business
travelers occupy hotels relatively consistentlytighout the year, but decreases in business taeal during summer and the winter
holidays. The hotel industry is also seasonaldagen geography. Hotels in the southern U.S. teridive higher occupancy rates during the
winter months. Hotels in the northern U.S. tentdwe higher occupancy rates during the summerhmsont

Due to our portfolio’s geographic diversificatiayr revenue has not experienced significant seéigorteor the year ended
December 31, 2012, our same-store portfolio (58lkah 2012 and 2011) generated 23.1% of our tetanue in the first quarter, 26.4% in the
second quarter, 27.4% in the third quarter and%3rithe fourth quarter. For the year ended Decer@be2011, our same-store portfolio (59
hotels in 2012 and 2011) generated 24.4% of itd tevenue in the first quarter, 26.0% in the sdaguarter, 27.1% in the third quarter and 22.5%
in the fourth quarter.




Regulation

Our properties are subject to various covenaniss,lardinances and regulations, including regufetieelating to accessibility, fire and
safety requirements. We believe each of our hbigdsthe necessary permits and approvals to opeydesiness.

Americans with Disabilities Act

Our properties must comply with Title 11l of the AXo the extent that they are “public accommodatiaas defined by the ADA.
Under the ADA, all public accommodations must nfederal requirements related to access and usealldd persons. The ADA may require
removal of structural barriers to access by persotisdisabilities in certain public areas of ouoperties where removal is readily achievable.
Although we believe the properties in our portfdidstantially comply with present requirementthefADA, we have not conducted a
comprehensive audit or investigation of all of puperties to determine our compliance, and wexasare that some particular properties may
currently be in norcompliance with the ADA. Noncompliance with the AzAuld result in the incurrence of additional cdstattain complianc:
The obligation to make readily achievable accomrtioda is an ongoing one, and we will continue teeas our properties and to make alterat
as appropriate in this respect.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Our hotels and development land parcels are sutgjetrious federal, state and local environmeatat that impose liability for
contamination. Under these laws, governmentaliegtitave the authority to require us, as the ctoemer of property, to perform or pay for the
cleanup of contamination (including hazardous sixsts, waste, or petroleum products) at, on, umdemanating from the property and to pay
for natural resource damages arising from contatioimaThese laws often impose liability without aed to whether the owner or operator or ¢
responsible party knew of, or caused the contamoimaand the liability may be joint and severalcBese these laws also impose liability on
persons who owned a property at the time it becaonéminated, we could incur cleanup costs or athgironmental liabilities even after we <
properties. Contamination at, on, under or emagdtiom our properties also may expose us to lightti private parties for costs of remediation,
personal injury and death and/or property damagadtition, environmental liens may be createdamaminated sites in favor of the
government for damages and costs it incurs to addrentamination. If contamination is discoveredonproperties, environmental laws also
may impose restrictions on the manner in which grigpmay be used or businesses may be operatethes®lrestrictions may require substantial
expenditures. Moreover, environmental contaminatim affect the value of a property and, therefanepwners ability to borrow funds using t
property as collateral or to sell the property avorable terms or at all. Furthermore, persons sém waste to a waste disposal facility, such as a
landfill or an incinerator, may be liable for coassociated with cleanup of that facility.

Some of our properties may have contained histads which involved the use and/or storage of darsrchemicals and petroleum
products (for example, storage tanks, gas statigs;leaning operations) which, if released, cdwdse affected our properties. In addition, some
of our properties may be near or adjacent to gthgperties that have contained or currently corgtdnage tanks containing petroleum produc
conducted or currently conduct operations whiclizetiother hazardous or toxic substances. Reldamasthese adjacent or surrounding prope
could affect our properties and we may be liabteafoy associated cleanup.

Independent environmental consultants conductedeéPhenvironmental site assessments on all of mpepties prior to acquisition
and we intend to conduct Phase | environmentabsisessments on properties we acquire in the flRhigse | site assessments are intended to
discover and evaluate information regarding thérenmental condition of the surveyed properties sundounding properties. These assessments
do not generally include soil sampling, subsurfagestigations or comprehensive asbestos surveysarhe cases, the Phase | environmental site
assessments were conducted by another entityailender) and we may not have the authority paalsuch reports. A few of our properties
have experienced environmental contamination poi@ur ownership, but all contamination has beemediated to the satisfaction of State
regulatory agencies. None of the Phase | envirotahsite assessments of the hotel propertiesripoufolio revealed any past or present
environmental condition that we believe could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, assetsults of operations. In addition, the Phe
environmental site assessments may also have faileeal all environmental conditions, liabilgier compliance concerns. The Phase |
environmental site assessments were completediatigdimes and material environmental conditidiagilities or compliance concerns may
have arisen after the review was completed or miag & the future; and future laws, ordinancesegulations may impose material additional
environmental liability.




In addition, our hotels (including our real progedperations and equipment) are subject to vaffiedsral, state and local
environmental, health and safety regulatory requénets that address a wide variety of issues, imfydut not limited to, the existence of mold
and other airborne contaminants above regulategestiolds, the registration, maintenance and operafi our boilers and storage tanks, the
supply of potable water to our guests, air emissioom emergency generators, storm water and wagtewischarges, protection of natural
resources, ashestos, lead-based paint, and wastgement. Some of our hotels also routinely haanttuse hazardous or regulated substances
and wastes as part of their operations, which agst to regulation (for example, swimming pooteticals or biological waste). Our hotels in
costs to comply with these environmental, health safety laws and regulations and if these regulagmuirements are not met or unforeseen
events result in the discharge of dangerous oc ubstances at our hotels, we could be subjdittes and penalties for non-compliance with
applicable laws and material liability from thirdnties for harm to the environment, damage topegberty or personal injury and death. We are
aware of no past or present environmental liabibtynon-compliance with environmental, health aatkty laws and regulations that we believe
would have a material adverse effect on our busjreessets or results of operations.

Tax Status

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal inctameurposes commencing with our short taxable geded December 31, 2011.
Our qualification as a REIT depends upon our abiititmeet, on a continuing basis, through actuasiment and operating results, various
complex requirements under the Code relating t@ramther things, the sources of our gross incehgegomposition and values of our assets,
our distribution levels and the diversity of owrteépsof our shares of beneficial interest. We bediéhvat we were organized and have operated in
conformity with the requirements for qualificatias a REIT under the Code and that our currentraedded manner of operation will enable us
to continue to meet the requirements for qualificatind taxation as a REIT for federal income tasppses.

In order for the income from our hotel operatiomgonstitute “rents from real property” for purpss# the gross income tests required
for REIT qualification, we cannot directly operatiey of our hotel properties. Accordingly, we leasbstantially all of our hotels to our TRS
lessees. All of our hotels are operated pursuanotel management agreements with third party hsglagement companies.

Our TRS lessees pay rent to us that will qualifyraats from real property,” provided that the TRSsees engage “eligible
independent contractors” to manage our hotels. & 1&a corporate subsidiary of a REIT that joimtgcts with the REIT to be treated as a TRS
of the REIT and that pays federal income tax atil@gcorporate rates on its taxable income. Abwaf hotels are operated pursuant to hotel
management agreements with independent hotel maregeompanies. We believe each of the third paggagers qualifies as an eligible
independent contractor.

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to femléncome tax on our REIT taxable income that wetrithute currently to our
shareholders. Under the Code, REITs are subjeuirtierous organizational and operational requireshémtluding a requirement that they
distribute each year at least 90% of their tax&ieme, determined without regard to the dedudiomividends paid and excluding any net
capital gains. If we fail to qualify for taxatios @ REIT in any taxable year and do not qualifydentain statutory relief provisions, our income
that year will be taxed at regular corporate rades, we will be disqualified from taxation as a REdr the four taxable years following the year
during which we ceased to qualify as a REIT. E¥ewei qualify as a REIT for federal income tax pwsgs, we may still be subject to state and
local taxes on our income and assets and to femhe@ine and excise taxes on our undistributed ircaie may also be subject to prohibited
transaction tax on any dealer sales of propertyexibe taxes on predetermined rents. Additionalhy, income earned by our TRSs will be fully
subject to federal, state and local corporate irectar.




Employees
We currently employ 25 full-time employees. Thedfsé@our hotels are employed by our third-partyghonanagers.
Available Information

Our Internet website is located at www.shpreit.c@opies of the charters of the committees of oardof directors, our code of
business conduct and ethics and our corporate gawee guidelines are available on our websiteredorts that we have filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including this AahReport on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports omfrd0-Q, and our current reports on
Form 8-K, can be obtained free of charge from tBE'S website at www.sec.gov or through our websit addition, all reports filed with the
SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public&®&fe Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.6424.090. Further information
regarding the operation of the public referencenrooay be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SB&00

ltem 1A . Risk Factors.

The following risk factors address the materiaksisoncerning our business. If any of the risksudised in this report were to occur,
our business, prospects, financial condition, ressaf operation and our ability to service our daebtd make distributions to our stockholders
could be materially and adversely affected andntiaeket price per share of our stock could decligami§icantly. Some statements in this report,
including statements in the following risk factazenstitute forward-looking statements. Pleaserrefehe section entitled “Cautionary Statement
Regarding ForwarrLooking Statements.”

Risks Related to Our Business

Our business strategy includes achieving revenuel i@t income growth from anticipated increases ierdand for hotel rooms — any
setback in the economic recovery will adverselyeaffour future results of operations and our growghospects.

Our hotel properties experienced declining opegapi@rformance across various U.S. markets duriagebent economic recession.
Our business strategy includes achieving contimaeenue and net income growth from anticipated anpment in demand for hotel rooms as
economic recovery continues. We, however, canritige any assurances that demand for hotel roothgaiease from current levels, or the
time or extent of any demand growth that we do gzpee. If demand does not continue to increasheasconomy recovers, or if there is a
setback in the economic recovery resulting in waailgedemand, our operating results and growth gatspcould be adversely affected. As a
result, any delay or setback in the continued egonoecovery or new economic downturn will adveysaffect our future results of operations
and our growth prospects.

We may be unable to complete acquisitions that vdogitow our business.

Our growth strategy includes the disciplined adtjois of hotels as opportunities arise. Our abitityacquire hotels on satisfactory
terms or at all is subject to the following sigo#it risks:

e Wwe may be unable to acquire, or may be forced dquiae at significantly higher prices, desired heteécause of competition fr
other real estate investors with more capital uidiclg other real estate operating companies, R&fttsnvestment fund

e We may be unable to obtain the necessary debtuitydmancing to consummate an acquisition oghfainable, financing may r
be on satisfactory terms; a




agreements for the acquisition of hotels are tyfyicgubject to customary conditions to closing,liming satisfactory completion
e due diligence investigations and the receipt afidhasor and lender consents, and we may spendis@mitime and incur significa
transaction costs on potential acquisitions thatlawaot consummat

If we cannot complete hotel acquisitions on favteabrms or at all, our business, financial conditiresults of operations and cash
flow, the market price per share of our commonlistotd our ability to satisfy our debt service oltigns and make distributions to our
stockholders could be materially and adverselyctéfs

We may fail to successfully integratedaoperate newly acquired hotels.
Our ability to successfully integrate and operat@ly acquired hotels is subject to the followingks:

e we may not possess the same level of familiarith the dynamics and market conditions of any neavkets that we may enter,
which could result in us paying too much for hoialsew markets

e market conditions may result in lower than expeateclipancy and room rate

e we may acquire hotels without any recourse, dn witly limited recourse, for liabilities, whethemdwn or unknown, such as clean-
up of environmental contamination, claims by teaanéndors or other persons against the former @wofehe hotels and claims for
indemnification by general partners, directorsiceifs and others indemnified by the former ownéith® hotels

e we may need to spend more than budgeted amoumtake necessary improvements or renovations to@ulyracquired hotels; ar

e we may be unable to quickly and efficiently inttgrnew acquisitions, particularly acquisitiongoftfolios of hotels, into our
existing operations

If we cannot operate acquired hotels to meet opeetations, our business, financial condition, ltssaf operations and cash flow,
market price per share of our stock and our abibitysatisfy our debt service obligations and maistributions to our stockholders could
materially and adversely affected.

We may assume liabilities in connectiwoith the acquisition of hotel properties, includingnknown liabilities, which, if significant,
could adversely affect our business.

We assume existing liabilities in connection withe tacquisition of hotel properties, some of whiclaymbe unknown «
unquantifiable. Unknown liabilities might includi@bilities for cleanup or remediation of undisadsenvironmental conditions, claims of h
guests, vendors or other persons dealing with ¢flersof a particular hotel property, tax liabiis, employmentelated issues and accrued
unpaid liabilities whether incurred in the ordinagurse of business or otherwise. If the magnitfdaich unknown liabilities is high, they co
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and cash flow, the markieepof our stock and our ability to satisfy
debt service obligations and to make distributi@nsur stockholders.

We may not be able to cause our hotel managementgamnies to operate any of our hotels in a mannetistactory to us, and
termination of our hotel management agreements nimeycostly and disruptive, all of which could advelg affect our financial condition
results of operations and our ability to servicebdeand make distributions to our stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate our hotélscordingly, we lease substantially all of outdis to our TRS lessees. All of our
hotels are operated pursuant to hotel managemesgragnts with independent hotel management congparaeh of which must qualify as an
“eligible independent contractor” to operate outetm As a result, our financial condition, resafoperations and our ability to service debt and
make distributions to stockholders are dependemtth@mbility of our hotel management companiesp@rate our hotels successfully. Any failure
of our hotel management companies to provide qusditvices and amenities or maintain a quality ¢hraame and reputation could have a
negative effect on their ability to operate ourdi®tand could have a material and adverse effeotinfinancial condition, results of operations
and our ability to service debt and make distrifmsgito our stockholders.




Even if we believe a hotel is being operated ieéfitly or in a manner that does not result inséatitory operating results, we will
have limited ability to require the hotel managethmmpany to change its method of operation. Weegsly attempt to resolve issues with our
hotel management companies through discussionsegutiations, but otherwise will only be able telseedress if a hotel management company
violates the terms of the applicable hotel managemgreement, and then only to the extent of theedkes provided for under the terms of the
hotel management agreement. If we replace the hwtehgement company of any of our hotels, we magdpaired to pay a substantial
termination fee and we may experience significasrughtions at the affected hotel.

Our hotel managers or their affiliates manage,iarmbme cases own, have invested in, or provideditcsupport or operating
guarantees to hotels that compete with our haélsf which may result in conflicts of interestsA& result, our hotel managers may in the future
make decisions regarding competing lodging faesitihat are not or would not be in our best interes

Certain of our hotels are managed by affiliatetheffranchisors for such hotels. In these sitmatithe management agreement and the
franchise agreement are typically combined intodo@iment. Thus, if we desire to terminate theagament agreement due to poor
performance or breach of the management agreemehélmanagement company, we also terminate oncliise license. Thus, we may have
very limited options to remedy poor hotel managetpenformance if we desire to retain the franclicense.

The management of the hotels in our golib is currently concentrated in one hotel managent company.

A substantial portion of our revenues is generhtetotels managed by Interstate Management Compa®y/(“Interstate”™) or its
affiliate. This significant concentration of opecaial risk in one hotel management company makesars vulnerable economically than if our
hotel management was more diversified among selietal management companies. Any adverse develdpritemterstate’s business and
affairs, financial strength or ability to operatgr tiotels efficiently and effectively could havenaterial adverse effect on our results of operation
We cannot assure you that Interstate will satisfybligations to us or effectively and efficientlperate our hotel properties. The failure or
inability of Interstate to satisfy its obligatiotsus or effectively and efficiently operate outdigroperties would materially reduce our revenue
and net income, which could in turn reduce the arhoiour distributable cash and cause the manket per share of our stock to decline.

Restrictive covenants and other provisions in hatehnagement and franchise agreements could precluddrom taking actions with
respect to the sale, refinancing or rebranding ohatel that would otherwise be in our best interest

Our hotel management agreements and franchiseragnég generally contain restrictive covenants ahdrgrovisions that do not
provide us with flexibility to sell, refinance celsrand a hotel without the consent of the managfaochisor. For example, the terms of some of
these agreements may restrict our ability to shbtal unless the purchaser is not a competittimehotel management company or franchisor,
assumes the related agreement and meets spedidconditions. In addition, our franchise agreetaeestrict our ability to rebrand particular
hotels without the consent of the franchisor, whiohld result in significant operational disrupsaand litigation if we do not obtain the consent.
We could be forced to pay consent or terminati@s f® hotel managers or franchisors under theseagmts as a condition to changing
management or franchise brands of our hotels, laggbtfees could deter us from taking actions tleatdvotherwise be in our best interest or ¢
cause us to incur substantial expense.

Funds spent to maintain franchisor operating standis, the loss of a franchise license or a declimethe value of a franchise brand me
have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial result:

Our hotels operate under franchise agreementghamaintenance of franchise licenses for our basebubject to our franchisors’
operating standards and other terms and condititesexpect that franchisors will periodically inspeur hotels to ensure that we, our TRSs and
our hotel management companies maintain our franc$iistandards. Failure by us, our TRSs or owllanagement companies to maintain
these standards or other terms and conditions ¢esldt in a franchise license being canceled fiéachise license terminates due to our failul
make required improvements or to otherwise comptly its terms, we could also be liable to the fi@nor for a termination payment, which
varies by franchisor and by hotel. As a conditibowur continued holding of a franchise licenseram€hisor could also require us to make capital
improvements to our hotels, even if we do not lvelithe improvements are necessary or desirableoldwesult in an acceptable return on our
investment.




The loss of a franchise license could materially adversely affect the operations or the underlyige of the hotel because of the
loss of associated hame recognition, marketing@igmd centralized reservation systems providethéyranchisor. Because our hotels are
concentrated in a limited number of franchise bsamdoss of all of the licenses for a particutan€hise could materially and adversely affect our
revenue, financial condition, results of operatiand ability to service debt and make distributitmeur stockholders.

Negative publicity related to one of the francHisands or the general decline of a brand also rdagraely affect the underlying value
of our hotels or result in a reduction in business.

We rely on external sources of capital to fund futucapital needs, and if we encounter difficulty obtaining such capital, we may not
able to make future acquisitions necessary to grow business or meet maturing obligations.

In order to qualify as a REIT under the Code, weraguired, among other things, to distribute gesar to our stockholders at least
90% of our REIT taxable income, determined withagiard to the dividends paid deduction and exclydimy net capital gain. Because of this
distribution requirement, we may not be able tadfunom cash retained from operations, all of aufe capital needs, including capital neede
make investments and to satisfy or refinance magusbligations.

We expect to continue to rely on external sourdespital, including debt and equity financing fomd future capital needs. Part of «
strategy involves the use of additional debt finagd¢o supplement our equity capital which may il our secured credit facility, mortgage
financing and unsecured financing. Our ability fieetively implement and accomplish our businesatsgy will be affected by our ability to
obtain and utilize additional leverage in suffidi@mounts and on favorable terms. However, thet@agrvironment is often characterized by
extended periods of limited availability of bothbdend equity financing, increasing financing cpstangent credit terms and significant
volatility. We may not be able to secure first ngage financing or increase the availability unéetend the maturity or refinance our secured
credit facility. If we are unable to obtain needagbital on satisfactory terms or at all, we mayb@able to make the investments needed to
expand our business, or to meet our obligationscantmitments as they mature. Our access to cagltalepend upon a number of factors over
which we have little or no control, including gealemarket conditions, the market's perception af@urent and potential future earnings and
cash distributions and the market price of theeshaf our common stock. We may not be in a posttidiake advantage of attractive investment
opportunities for growth if we are unable to acdbgscapital markets on a timely basis or on favigréerms.

We have a significant amount of debt, and our orgaational documents have no limitation on the amausf additional indebtedness
that we may incur in the future. As a result, we sneecome highly leveraged in the future, which cdwdversely affect our financial
condition.

We have a significant amount of debt. In the fefuve may incur additional indebtedness to findotge hotel acquisitions and
development activities and other corporate purpdsesddition, there are no restrictions in ourrtéraor bylaws that limit the amount or
percentage of indebtedness that we may incur tiatethe form in which our indebtedness will betmred (including recourse or non-recourse
debt or cross-collateralized debt).

A substantial level of indebtedness could have edveonsequences for our business, results oftogpesand financial condition
because it could, among other things:

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to make principal antkriest payments on ¢
indebtedness, thereby reducing our cash flow adaileo fund working capital, capital expendituresl ather general corpor:
purposes, including to pay dividends on our comistogk and our preferred stock as currently contategdlor necessary to sati
the requirements for qualification as a RE
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e increase our vulnerability to general adverse egoo@nd industry conditions and limit our flexilyliin planning for, or reactir
to, changes in our business and our indu

e limit our ability to borrow additional funds or ie&nce indebtedness on favorable terms or at akfrand our business or e
liquidity constraints; an

e place us at a competitive disadvantage relatiwortopetitors that have less indebtedness.

Generally, our mortgage debt carries maturity datesall dates such that the loans become due foridweir full amortization. As of
December 31, 2012, we had approximately $36.1aniltif debt that matures prior to December 31, 20iding $8.2 million of mortgage debt
owed to First National Bank of Omaha paid off inudary 2013, prior to maturity. It may be diffictdt refinance or extend the maturity of such
loans on terms acceptable to us, or at all, anthagnot have sufficient borrowing capacity on awralving credit facility to repay any amounts
that we are unable to refinance. Although we belibat we will be able to refinance or extendrieurity of these loans, or will have the
capacity to repay them, if necessary, using dravageuour revolving credit facility, there can beassurance that our revolving credit facility will
be available to repay such maturing debt, as deender our credit facility are subject to borrowlmase limitations and certain financial coven:

The agreements governing our indebtednpkce restrictions on us and our subsidiariesgueing operational flexibility and creating
default risks.

The agreements governing our $150.0 million secteedlving credit facility and other indebtednesstain covenants that place
restrictions on us and our subsidiaries. Theser@ws may restrict, among other activities, our andsubsidiaries’ ability to:

merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantilllypf our or our subsidiaries’ assets;

sell, transfer, pledge or encumber our stock ootheership interests of our subsidiaries;

incur additional debt;

enter into, terminate or modify leases for our lémd hotel management and franchise agreements;
make certain expenditures, including capital exganes;

pay dividends on or repurchase our capital stoc#
enter into certain transactions with affiliates.

These covenants could impair our ability to grow lousiness, take advantage of attractive busingssrtunities or successfully
compete. Our ability to comply with financial anther covenants may be affected by events beyondamirol, including prevailing economic,
financial and industry conditions. A breach of afifhese covenants or covenants under any otheeagmts governing our indebtedness could
result in an event of default. Cross-default priovis in our debt agreements could cause an eveldfabllt under one debt agreement to trigger an
event of default under our other debt agreemersnlhe occurrence of an event of default underodirmpr debt agreements, the lenders could
elect to declare all outstanding debt under suckemgents to be immediately due and payable. If el wnable to repay or refinance the
accelerated debt, the lenders could proceed agaigsissets pledged to secure that debt, inclddneglosing on or requiring the sale of our
hotels, and the proceeds from the sale of thesdshmiay not be sufficient to repay such debt ih ful

Mortgage debt obligations expose ustte possibility of foreclosure, which could resuit the loss of our investment in any hotel subject
to mortgage debt.

Borrowings under our $150.0 million secured revadveredit facility are, and all of our other dekisting as of December 31, 2012 is,
secured by mortgages on our hotel properties daterkassets. Incurring mortgage and other sedeletlobligations increases our risk of
property losses because defaults on secured irdtedste may result in foreclosure actions initiatgdebders and ultimately our loss of the hotels
securing such loans. If we are in default undenaszdefaulted mortgage loan, we could lose meltiftels to foreclosure. For tax purposes, a
foreclosure of any of our hotels would be treate@d aale of the hotel for a purchase price equlilid@utstanding balance of the debt secured by
the mortgage. If the outstanding balance of the setured by the mortgage exceeds our tax ba#ig ihotel, we would recognize taxable income
on foreclosure, but would not receive any cashe®ds, which could hinder our ability to meet thd Réistribution requirements imposed by the
Code. We may assume or incur new mortgage indebssdin the hotels in our portfolio or hotels thatagquire in the future. Any default under
any one of our mortgage debt obligations may irsgehe risk of our default on our other indebtednes

11




An increase in interest rates would iase our interest costs on our variable rate defsl @ould adversely affect our ability to refinance
existing debt or sell assets.

A significant portion of our indebtedness is subjecvariable interest rates. An increase in egéerates would increase our interest
payments and reduce our cash flow available fogratbrporate purposes, including capital improvesh@mour hotels or acquisitions of
additional hotels. In addition, rising interestestould limit our ability to refinance existingldevhen it matures and increase interest costs1p
debt that is refinanced. Further, an increasetard@st rates could increase the cost of finan¢imeyeby decreasing the amount third parties are
willing to pay for our hotels, which would limit o@bility to dispose of hotels when necessary airdd. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems — Qualitative and Quantitative Effects ofrkd Risk.”

Our success depends on key personnelsetomntinued service is not guaranteed.

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our mamagt team to manage our day-to-day operationstaaiggic business
direction. The loss of services from any of themhers of our management team, and our inabilifintbsuitable replacements on a timely basis
could have an adverse effect on our operations.

Hedging against interest rate exposurayradversely affect us.

During 2012, we entered into interest rate swapiigaan aggregate notional amount of $41.1 milawfecember 31, 2012 to hedge
against interest rate increases on certain of otstanding variable-rate indebtedness. In the étwe intend to continue to manage our exposure
to interest rate volatility by using hedging arramgents, such as interest rate swaps and intetestaps.

These agreements involve the risks that thesegenaents may fail to protect or adversely affedveisause, among other things:

interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthnting periods of rising and volatile intereses

available interest rate hedges may not correspordtly with the interest rate risk for which proten is sought;

the duration of the hedge may not match the duratfdahe related liability;

the credit quality of the hedging counterparty ayvinoney on the hedge may be downgraded to sucktantehat it impairs ol
ability to sell or assign our side of the hedgiransaction; an

e the hedging counterparty owing money in the hedgiagsaction may default on its obligation to pay.

As a result of any of the foregoing, our hedgiramgactions, which are intended to limit lossesembsure to interest rate volatility,
could have a negative impact on our operating t&sul

We and our hotel managers rely on information teablogy in our operations, and any material failuréyadequacy, interruption ol
security failure of that technology coul
harm our business

We and our hotel managers rely on information tetigy networks and systems, including the Interteeprocess, transmit and store
electronic information, and to manage or supparriety of business processes, including finartcaisactions and records, personal identifying
information, reservations, billing and operatingaddVe purchase some of our information technofogyn vendors, on whom our systems
depend. We rely on commercially available systesofiyvare, tools and monitoring to provide secuidtyprocessing, transmission and storage of
confidential customer information, such as inditily identifiable information, including informatiorelating to financial accounts. Although we
have taken steps to protect the security of owrinétion systems and the data maintained in thgsterss, it is possible that our safety and
security measures will not be able to prevent flstesns’ improper functioning or damage, or the iomer access or disclosure of personally
identifiable information such as in the event dbeyattacks. Security breaches, including physicalectronic break-ins, computer viruses,
attacks by hackers and similar breaches, can csgatem disruptions, shutdowns or unauthorizedalisce of confidential information. Any
failure to maintain proper function, security anaitability of our information systems could intept our operations, damage our reputation,
subject us to liability claims or regulatory peregdtand could have a material adverse effect obesiness, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Joint venture investments could be adversely aféekcby a lack of sole decision-making authority withspect to such investments,
disputes with joint venture partners and the finaatcondition of joint venture partners.

We have entered into two joint ventures to acquails, and in the future we may enter into addélstrategic joint ventures with
unaffiliated investors to acquire, develop, impravealispose of hotels, thereby reducing the amofioapital required by us to make investments
and diversifying our capital sources for growth. ¥Way not have sole decision-making authority witbpect to these investments, and as a result
we may not be able to take actions which are irb#st interest of our shareholders. Further, désplbietween us and our joint venture partners
may result in litigation or arbitration which colltcrease our expenses and prevent our officerglmectors from focusing their time and effort
on our business and could result in subjectindhtitels owned by the applicable joint venture toithatehl risks.

If a joint venture partner becomes bankrupt or mtiee defaults on its obligations under a jointtuea agreement, we and any other
remaining joint venture partners would generalipa liable for the joint venture liabilities. Fhgrmore, if a joint venture partner becomes
bankrupt or otherwise defaults on its obligationder a joint venture agreement, we may be unaltertinue the joint venture other than by
purchasing such joint venture partner’s interesth® underlying assets at a premium to the mamieg. If any of the above risks are realized, it
could materially adversely affect our businessafiicial condition and results of operations andaduility to make distributions to our stockhold

Risks Related to the Lodging Industry
Economic conditions may adversely affdat lodging industry.

The performance of the lodging industry has histily been closely linked to the performance ofgkeeral economy and,
specifically, growth in U.S. gross domestic prodfi&DP”). The lodging industry is also sensitiveltasiness and personal discretionary spending
levels. Declines in corporate budgets and consum®and due to adverse general economic conditisiks,affecting or reducing travel patterns,
lower consumer confidence or adverse political @t can lower the revenue and profitability of @assets and therefore the net operating
profits of our investments. The economic downtur2008 and 2009 led to a significant decline in dedhfor products and services provided by
the lodging industry, but hotel demand has expegdra steady improvement beginning in early 2018laving of the current economic recov:
or new economic weakness could have an adverse effeour revenue and negatively affect our prbfiiy.

Competition from other upscale and uppaidscale hotels in the markets in which we operatrild have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations.

The lodging industry is highly competitive. Our éistcompete with other hotels for guests in eactk@an which our hotels operate
based on a number of factors, including locatiemvenience, brand affiliation, room rates, rangsesf/ices and guest amenities or
accommodations offered and quality of customerisenCompetition will often be specific to the imdiual markets in which our hotels are
located and includes competition from existing aed hotels. Our competitors may have an operatindeithat enables them to offer rooms at
lower rates than we can, which could result in@ampetitors increasing their occupancy at our egspe@Gompetition could adversely affect our
occupancy, ADR and RevPAR, and may require usawige additional amenities or make capital improeats that we otherwise would not h
to make, which could reduce our profitability arlildl materially and adversely affect our resultepérations.
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Our operating results and ability to make distribahs to our stockholders may be adversely affedtgdhe risks inherent to the ownerst
of hotels and the markets in which we

operate.

Hotels have different economic characteristics timamy other real estate assets. A typical offic@erty owner, for example, has long-

term leases with third-party tenants, which provadelatively stable long-term stream of revenugec@ntrast, our hotels are subject to various
operating risks common to the lodging industry, ynahwhich are beyond our control, including thédwing:

dependence on business and commercial traveler®arisim;

over-building of hotels in our markets, which coaldiversely affect occupancy and revenue at thdshetacquire;

increases in energy costs and other expensesiaffécvel, which may affect travel patterns anduee the number of busin
and commercial travelers and touris

increases in operating costs, including increasatlestate and personal property taxes, due wtiorl and other factors that n
not be offset by increased room rat

potential increases in labor costs at our hotelduding as a result of unionization of the laborcé and increasing health ¢
insurance expense, as may occur from the implerientaf the Affordable Care Ac

adverse effects of international, national, regi@mal local economic and market conditions;

changes in governmental laws and regulations, Ifigalécies and zoning ordinances and the relatetiscof compliance with lav
and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinanand

events beyond our control, such as terrorist astaitkvel related health concerns, imposition gésaor surcharges by regulat
authorities, travetelated accidents and unusual weather patternsiding natural disasters such as hurricanes antlogmuenta
disasters such as the oil spill in the Gulf of Mex

We have significant ongoing needs to make capitgbenditures at our hotels, which require us to dédunds to these purposes and
could pose related risks that might impair our aibyl to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our hotels have an ongoing need for renovationsodmel capital improvements, including replacemeintsn time to time, of
furniture, fixtures and equipment. Our franchisalso require periodic capital improvements as alitimm of keeping the franchise licenses. In
addition, lenders and hotel management companiggegaire that we set aside annual amounts fotadpiprovements to our assets. These
capital improvements and replacements may givetoisiee following risks:

possible environmental problems;

construction cost overruns and delays;

a possible shortage of available cash to fund @bpitprovements and replacements and, the relaissikplity that financing fc
these capital improvements may not be availabieston affordable terms; al

uncertainties as to market demand or a loss of ehadmand after capital improvements and replaceniave begun.

If any of the above risks were to be realizedoitld materially adversely affect our business,rfirial condition and results of
operations and our ability to make distribution®tw stockholders.

Hotel development is subject to timing, budgetingdeother risks. To the extent we develop hotelsoquire hotels that are under
development, these risks may adversely affect querating results and liquidity position.

We may develop hotels or acquire hotels that adeudevelopment from time to time as suitable opputies arise, taking into
consideration general economic conditions. Hotekbttlgoment involves a number of risks, including fibkowing:

possible environmental problems;
construction delays or cost overruns that may aseeroject costs;
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receipt of and expense related to zoning, occupandyother required governmental permits and aizidowns;
development costs incurred for projects that atgpnosued to completion;

acts of God such as earthquakes, hurricanes, floofites that could adversely affect a project;

inability to raise capital; and

governmental restrictions on the nature or siza foject.

To the extent we develop hotels or acquire hotetletudevelopment, we cannot assure you that arsla@@went project will be
completed on time or within budget. Our inabilibtydomplete a project on time or within budget mdyeaisely affect our projected operating
results and our liquidity position.

The increasing use of Internet travett@rmediaries by consumers may adversely affect puafitability.

Our hotel rooms are likely to be booked througlernét travel intermediaries, including, but notited to, Travelocity.com,
Expedia.com and Priceline.com. As these Internekings increase, these intermediaries may be alibtain higher commissions, reduced room
rates or other significant contract concessionsifoair management companies. Moreover, some of thesmet travel intermediaries are
attempting to offer hotel rooms as a commodityjrfzyeasing the importance of price and generatatdrs of quality (such as “three-star
downtown hotel”) at the expense of brand identifaa These agencies hope that consumers will eaiptdevelop brand loyalties to their
reservations system rather than to the brands wakieh our hotels are franchised. If the amourgalés made through Internet intermediaries
increases significantly, room revenue may flattedexrease and our profitability may be adverstbceed.

Uninsured and underinsured losses coaldversely affect our operating results.

We intend to maintain comprehensive insurance arhotels, including liability, fire and extendedvesage, of the type and amount
believe are customarily obtained for or by owndrsaiels similar to our hotels. Various types dfastrophic losses, like earthquakes and floods,
or losses related to business disruption from déspwith franchisors, may not be insurable or mayle economically insurable. In the event of a
substantial loss, our insurance coverage may nstffieient to cover the full current market valuereplacement cost of our lost investment.
Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess oféddimits occur, we could lose all or a portidrtte capital we have invested in a hotel, as well
as the anticipated future revenue from the hatethat event, we might nevertheless remain obliyiieany mortgage debt or other financial
obligations related to the asset. Loan covenanmfigtion, changes in building codes and ordinanersironmental considerations and other fac
might also keep us from using insurance proceedspiace or renovate an asset after it has beeagkdror destroyed. Under those
circumstances, the insurance proceeds we recepat im¢ inadequate to restore our economic positiothe damaged or destroyed hotels.

Risks Related to the Real Estate Industry and Reddstate-Related Investments

llliquidity of real estate investments could sigigéintly impede our ability to respond to adverseadlges in the performance of our hotels
or to adjust our portfolio in response to changeséconomic and other conditions, and, therefore, yni@arm our financial condition.

In the future, we may decide to sell hotels. Retdte investments are relatively illiquid. Our @hito promptly sell one or more hotels
in our portfolio in response to changing econorii@ncial and investment conditions may be limitédte cannot predict whether we will be able
to sell any hotels for the price or on the terntbyeaus, or whether any price or other terms offdyg a prospective purchaser would be acceptable
to us. We also cannot predict the length of timedeel to find a willing purchaser and to close #ile sf an asset. The real estate market is aff
by many factors that are beyond our control, inicigd

adverse changes in international, national, rediane local economic and market conditions;

changes in interest rates and in the availabiitgt and terms of debt financing;

changes in governmental laws and regulations,|figaé&cies and zoning ordinances and the relatestisoof compliance with laws a
° regulations, fiscal policies and ordinanc
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the ongoing need for capital improvements, paridylin older structures, that may require us tpemd funds to correct defects
° to make improvements before an asset can be sold;
changes in operating expenses; and

civil unrest, acts of God, including earthquakéspds and other natural disasters, which may rasulhinsured losses, and act
° war or terrorism, including the consequences otéherist acts such as those that occurred oreSdqar 11, 2001.

We could incur significant costs relatéal government regulation and litigation over eneinmental, health and safety matters.

Our hotels and development land parcels are sutgeetrious federal, state and local environmeatas that impose liability for
contamination. Under these laws, governmentaliegtitave the authority to require us, as the cumeformer owner of the property, to perform
or pay for the clean-up of contamination (includirazardous substances, waste or petroleum prodicisemanating from the property and to
pay for natural resource damage arising from comation. These laws often impose liability witheagard to whether the owner or operator
knew of, or caused the contamination. We can adsiiable to private parties for costs of remediatipersonal injury and death and/or property
damage resulting from contamination at or emandtmg our properties. Moreover, environmental cariteation can affect the value of a
property and, therefore, an owner’s ability to barfunds using the property as collateral or tbthel property on favorable terms or at all.
Furthermore, persons who sent waste to a wastegdibfacility, such as a landfill or an incineratoray be liable for costs associated with clee
of that facility.

In addition, our hotels (including our real progeperations and equipment) are subject to varfiedsral, state and local
environmental, health and safety regulatory requénets that address a wide variety of issues, ifrodbut not limited to, the registration,
maintenance and operation of our boilers and stotagks, air emissions from emergency generattmsnwater and wastewater discharges,
asbestos, lead-based paint, mold and mildew, astevwaanagement. Some of our hotels also routirsigllle and use hazardous or regulated
substances and wastes as part of their operatitnsh are subject to regulation (for example, swingrpool chemicals or biological waste). Our
hotels incur costs to comply with these environrakmitealth and safety laws and regulations arfiei$e regulatory requirements are not met or
unforeseen events result in the discharge of dangear toxic substances at our hotels, we couklbgect to fines and penalties for non-
compliance with applicable laws and material lidpilrom third parties for harm to the environmetidmage to real property or personal injury
and death. We are aware of no past or presentogmental liability for non-compliance with enviroemtal, health and safety laws and
regulations that we believe would have a matedakese effect on our business, assets or resutigesftions.

Certain hotels we currently own or those we acquitbe future contain, may contain, or may havetaimed, asbestos-containing
material ("“ACM”). Environmental, health and safédyvs require that ACM be properly managed and raaietl, and include requirements to
undertake special precautions, such as removddaiement, if ACM would be disturbed during maintece renovation, or demolition of a
building. These laws regarding ACM may impose fiaed penalties on building owners, employers aretaiprs for failure to comply with these
requirements or expose us to third-party liability.

Compliance with the laws, regulations and covenatitat apply to our hotels, including permit, liceesand zoning requirements, may
adversely affect our ability to make future acquisis or renovations, result in significant costs delays and adversely affect our grov
strategy.

Our hotels are subject to various covenants aral laws and regulatory requirements, including ptiimg and licensing requirements
which can restrict the use of our properties awdeiase the cost of acquisition, development andatipa of our hotels. In addition, federal and
state laws and regulations, including laws suctha®\mericans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (theDA”), impose further restrictions on our
operations. Under the ADA, all public accommodatiomnust meet federal requirements related to acsebsise by disabled persons. Some of our
hotels may currently be in noncompliance with tH2AA If one or more of the hotels in our portfol®not in compliance with the ADA or any
other regulatory requirements, we may be requivaddur additional costs to bring the hotel intengiiance and we might incur damages or
governmental fines. In addition, existing requir@msenay change and future requirements may reggite make significant unanticipated
expenditures that would adversely affect our bussinfinancial condition, results of operations aash flow, the market price of our stock and
ability to satisfy our debt service obligations @aadnake distributions to our stockholders.

16




If we default on ground leases for lath which any of our hotels are located, our busisesould be materially and adversely affected.

If we default on the terms of any of our groundsksmand are unable to cure the default in a timelgner, we may be liable for
damages and could lose our leasehold intereseiapplicable property and interest in the hotelhenapplicable property. If any of the events of
default were to occur and are not timely cured,buginess, financial condition, results of operaiand cash flow, the market price of our
securities and our ability to satisfy our debt g@nobligations and to make distributions to oockholders could be materially and adversely
affected.

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest
Our fiduciary duties as the general paetr of our operating partnership could create coitfis of interest.

We, through our wholly owned subsidiary that sem@she sole general partner of our operating pestrip, have fiduciary duties to
our operating partnership’s limited partners, thlselsarge of which may conflict with the interestoar stockholders. The limited partners of our
operating partnership have agreed for so long aswyea controlling interest in our operating parsidp that, in the event of a conflict between
the duties owed by our directors to our companythediuties that we owe, in our capacity as the geheral partner of our operating partnership,
to the limited partners, our directors must givienty to the interests of our stockholders. In iidd, those persons holding Common Units have
the right to vote on certain amendments to thetdichpartnership agreement (which require approyal majority in interest of the limited
partners, including us) and individually to appr@estain amendments that would adversely affedt thghts, as well as the right to vote on
mergers and consolidations of the general partnas @ certain limited circumstances. These votights may be exercised in a manner that
conflicts with the interests of our stockholdersr Example, we cannot adversely affect the limgadners’ rights to receive distributions, as set
forth in the limited partnership agreement, withtheir consent, even though modifying such righighinbe in the best interest of our stockhol
generally.

Certain key members of our senior management teamtmue to be involved in other businesses, whichyninterfere with their ability tc
devote time and attention to our
business and affairs

We rely on our senior management team to managst@iegic direction and day-to-day operationsuwflmusiness. Our employment
agreement with Mr. Boekelheide requires him to deeosubstantial portion of his business time dtehton to our business and our employment
agreements with our other executive officers regjaur executives to devote substantially all ofrthesiness time and attention to our business.
Mr. Boekelheide has certain outside business isterghich may reduce the amount of time that fabls to devote to our business.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Provisions of our charter may limit treility of a third party to acquire control of usybauthorizing our board of directors to issue
additional securities.

Our board of directors may, without stockholderrappl, amend our charter to increase or decre&sagfregate number of our shares
or the number of shares of any class or seriesmtbdtave the authority to issue and to classifieolassify any unissued shares of common stock
or preferred stock, and set the preferences, rayidsother terms of the classified or reclassifiedres. As a result, our board of directors may
authorize the issuance of additional shares oblkstiea series of common or preferred stock that haeve the effect of delaying or preventing a
change in control of our company, including tratises at a premium over the market price of ourestgeven if stockholders believe that a
change in control is in their interest. These Bivis, along with the restrictions on ownership tadsfer contained in our charter and certain
provisions of Maryland law described below, couiscdurage unsolicited acquisition proposals or niakere difficult for a third party to gain
control of us, which could adversely affect the keduprice of our securities.
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Provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability cd third party to acquire control of us by requirghour board of directors o
stockholders to approve proposals to acquire
company or effect a change in contre

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corgorat.aw (the “MGCL")applicable to Maryland corporations may have tliectof
inhibiting a third party from making a proposalaecquire us or of impeding a change in control umifeumstances that otherwise could provide
our stockholders with the opportunity to realizeramium over the then-prevailing market price aftsghares, including “business combination”
and “control share” provisions.

By resolution of our board of directors, we havéedpout of the business combination provisiondhefMGCL and provided that any
business combination between us and any othermpe&sxempt from the business combination provisiointhe MGCL, provided that the
business combination is first approved by our badidirectors (including a majority of directors a/are not affiliates or associates of such
persons). In addition, pursuant to a provisionun loylaws, we have opted out of the control shao@ipions of the MGCL. However, our board
directors may by resolution elect to opt in to blusiness combination provisions of the MGCL andwesy, by amendment to our bylaws, opt il
the control share provisions of the MGCL in thaufet

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders toka action against our directors and officers arenlited, which could limit our
stockholder’ recourse in the event of actions not
in our stockholder’ best interests

Under Maryland law, generally, a director will ria liable if he or she performs his or her dutiegaod faith, in a manner he or she
reasonably believes to be in our best interestsadtidthe care that an ordinarily prudent persoa like position would use under similar
circumstances. In addition, our charter limits liability of our directors and officers to us andrstockholders for money damages, except for
liability resulting from:

e actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services; or
e active and deliberate dishonesty by the directasfficer that was established by a final judgmenbaing material to the cause
action adjudicatec

Our charter authorizes us to indemnify our directond officers for actions taken by them in thageecities to the maximum extent
permitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws require usniemnify each director and officer, to the maximextent permitted by Maryland law, in
defense of any proceeding to which he or she issinadthreatened to be made, a party by reasois of ther service to us. In addition, we may
obligated to advance the defense costs incurraibgirectors and officers. As a result, we andstackholders may have more limited rights
against our directors and officers than might otlees exist absent the current provisions in ourtemand bylaws or that might exist with other
companies.

Our shareholders have limited voting rights and ocharter contains provisions that make removal afrairectors difficult, which could
make it difficult for our stockholders to
effect changes to our manageme

Our shares of common stock are the only class $ecurities that carry full voting rights. Votimights for holders of Preferred Stock
exist primarily with respect to the ability to eléwo additional directors to our Board of Direcdn the event that six quarterly dividends
(whether or not consecutive) payable on the PredeBtock are in arrears, and with respect to vaiimgmendments to our charter or articles
supplementary relating to the Preferred Stockrieterially and adversely affect the rights of tldlers of Preferred Stock or create additional
classes or series of senior equity securitieshEurour charter provides that a director may beoreed only for cause (as defined in our charter)
and then only by the affirmative vote of holdersbéres entitled to cast at least two-thirds ofvittes entitled to be cast generally in the electio
of directors. Our charter also provides that vaenon our board of directors may be filled onlyebgnajority of the remaining directors in office,
even if less than a quorum. These requirement®ptestockholders from removing directors exceptse and with a substantial affirmative
vote and from replacing directors with their owmminees and may prevent a change in control of oonpany or effect other management
changes that are in the best interests of our ktddkrs.
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The ability of our board of directors tthange our major policies without the consent abdskholders may not be in our stockholders’
interest.

Our board of directors determines our major pddiciecluding policies and guidelines relating to aoquisitions, leverage, financing,
growth, operations and distributions to stockhad@ur board of directors may amend or revise thadeother policies and guidelines from time
to time without the vote or consent of our stockleos. Accordingly, our stockholders will have ligdtcontrol over changes in our policies and
those changes could adversely affect our finamadadition, results of operations, the market pateur stock and our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

The ability of our board of directors tevoke our REIT qualification without stockholdespproval may cause adverse consequences to
our stockholders.

Our charter provides that our board of directory ne&oke or otherwise terminate our REIT electiwithout the approval of our
stockholders, if it determines that it is no longeour best interest to continue to qualify astER If we cease to be a REIT, we would become
subject to federal income tax on our taxable incamewould no longer be required to distribute nobgtur taxable income to our stockholders,
which may have adverse consequences on the toiah te our stockholders.

We are a holding company with no direct operatiodss a result, we rely on funds received from ourepgting partnership to pay
liabilities and dividends, our stockholders’ clainveill be structurally subordinated to all liabiligs of our operating partnership and our
stockholders will not have any voting rights witlespect to our operating partnership activities, imding the issuance of additional
Common Units or Preferred Units.

We are a holding company and conduct all of ouratpens through our operating partnership. We ddhawee, apart from our
ownership of our operating partnership, any indepehoperations. As a result, we rely on distritmsifrom our operating partnership to pay any
dividends we might declare on shares of our comargreferred stock. We also rely on distributiorms f our operating partnership to meet any
of our obligations, including tax liability on talx income allocated to us from our operating paghip (which might make distributions to us
that do not equal to the tax on such allocateddiaxacome).

In addition, because we are a holding companykhtidders’claims will be structurally subordinated to all gig and future liabilitie
and obligations (whether or not for borrowed monay)ur operating partnership and its subsidiariégrefore, in the event of our bankruptcy,
liquidation or reorganization, claims of our stoolders will be satisfied only after all of our aodr operating partnership’s and its subsidiaries’
liabilities and obligations have been paid in full.

We own approximately 90% of the Common Units in operating partnership, 100% of the general pastigrinterest in our
operating partnership, and 100% of the Preferreitsliimour operating partnership. Any future issteby our operating partnership of additic
Common Units or Preferred Units could reduce ounenship percentage in our operating partnershipase our common stockholders do not
directly own any Common Units or Preferred Unitgyt will not have any voting rights with respecatoy such issuances or other partnership-
level activities of our operating partnership.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities

The New York Stock Exchange (“NYSEQr another nationally recognized exchange may nohtinue to list our securities, which coul
limit stockholders’ ability to make transactions iour securities and subject us to additional tragimestrictions.

Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the syfiWN,” our Series A Preferred Stock trades on M¥éSE under the symbol
“INNPrA,” and our Series B Preferred Stock tradadite NYSE under the symbol “INNPrB.” In order fmur securities to remain listed, we are
required to meet the continued listing requiremenfithie NYSE or, in the alternative, any other oiadilly recognized exchange to which we ap
We may be unable to satisfy those listing requirgsieand there is no guarantee our securitiegevillain listed on a nationally recognized
exchange. If our securities are delisted from tNé&HN or another nationally recognized exchange, euddcface significant material adverse
consequences, including:
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a limited availability of market quotations for asgcurities;

reduced liquidity with respect to our securities;

a determination that our common stock is “pennglstonhich will require brokers trading in our coromstock to adhere to more
° stringent rules, possibly resulting in a reducegll®f trading activity in the secondary tradingriket for the common stoc

a limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and

o a decreased ability to issue additional securiresbtain additional financing in the future.

The cash available for distribution may not be sigfent to make distributions at expected levelsdame cannot assure you of our ability
to make distributions in the future. We may use bmwed funds or funds from other sources to maketdisutions, which may adversely
affect our operations.

Subject to the preferential rights of the holddrewr Series A and Series B preferred stock andagimgr class or series of our stock or
our operating partnership’s partnership units #matsenior to our common stock or our operatingnpaship’s Common Units with respect to
distribution rights, we intend to make quarterlgtdbutions to holders of our common stock and é@df Common Units. Distributions declared
by us will be authorized by our board of directiorits sole discretion out of funds legally avalabor distribution and will depend upon a num
of factors, including restrictions under applicalal& and the capital requirements of our compandlydiatributions will be made at the discretion
of our board of directors and will depend on oung®ys, our financial condition, the requiremersdualification as a REIT, restrictions under
applicable law and other factors as our board r@fatibrs may deem relevant from time to time. We bayequired to fund distributions from
working capital, borrowings under our secured rev credit facility, proceeds of future stock offegs or a sale of assets to the extent
distributions exceed earnings or cash flows fromrafons. Funding distributions from working capiteuld restrict our operations. If we borrow
from the secured revolving credit facility in orderpay distributions, we would be more limitecolr ability to execute our strategy of using that
secured revolving credit facility to fund acquisiis. Finally, selling assets may require us toatispof assets at a time or in a manner that is not
consistent with our disposition strategy. If weroer to fund distributions, our leverage ratios &mdre interest costs would increase, thereby
reducing our earnings and cash available for 8istion from what they otherwise would have been.iéy not be able to make distributions in
the future. In addition, some of our distributionay be considered a return of capital for incomeptarposes. If we decide to make distributior
excess of our current and accumulated earningpunfitis, such distributions would generally be ddased a return of capital for federal income
tax purposes to the extent of the holder’s adjutstrdbasis in their shares. A return of capitalastaxable, but it has the effect of reducing the
holder’s adjusted tax basis in its investmentisfributions exceed the adjusted tax basis of ddrtd shares, they will be treated as gain from the
sale or exchange of such stock.

The market price of our stock may beatde due to numerous circumstances beyond our c¢oht
The trading prices of equity securities issued BYyTR and other real estate companies historicalyetbeen affected by changes in
market interest rates. One of the factors that imtyyence the market price of our common or preférstock is the annual yield from distributions
on our common or preferred stock, respectivelygamspared to yields on other financial instrumeAtsincrease in market interest rates, or a
decrease in our distributions to stockholders, faag prospective purchasers of our common or pexfestock to demand a higher annual yield,
which could reduce the market price of our commopreferred stock, respectively.

Other factors that could affect the market pricewf stock include the following:

actual or anticipated variations in our quartedgults of operations;
changes in market valuations of companies in ttgifg industry;
changes in expectations of future financial perfamoe or changes in estimates of securities analysts

fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes;
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our issuances of common stock, preferred stoc&thmr securities in the future;
the inclusion of our common stock and preferredlsto equity indices, which could induce additiopatchases;
the addition or departure of key personnel,

announcements by us or our competitors of acquiistiinvestments or strategic alliances; and

unforeseen events beyond our control, such asitigtan the national, European or global econorteyrorist attacks, travel related

° health concerns including pandemics and epidernicis as H1N1 influenza (swine flu), avian bird fhidaSARS, political instability,
regional hostilities, increases in fuel prices, asifion of taxes or surcharges by regulatory autleerand travel-related accidents and
unusual weather patterns, including natural disastiech as hurricane

The markets perception of our growth potential and our cureerd potential future cash distributions, whetfin@m operations, sales
refinancings, as well as the real estate marketeval the underlying assets, may cause our commampeferred stock to trade at prices that d
from our net asset value per share. If we retaerating cash flow for investment purposes, worlkdagital reserves or other purposes, these
retained funds, while increasing the value of cudtarlying assets, may not correspondingly incréfasenarket price of our common and prefe
stock. Our failure to meet the market’s expectatiaith regard to future earnings and distributibkely would adversely affect the market price
of our common and preferred stock.

The trading market for our stock will rely in part the research and reports that industry or filshanalysts publish about us or our
business. We do not control these analysts. Fumibrer, if one or more of the analysts who do cowedawngrades our stock or our industry, or
the stock of any of our competitors, the price af stock could decline. If one or more of thesdymia ceases coverage of our company, we coulc
lose attention in the market, which in turn couddise the price of our stock to decline.

The number of shares of our common stock and preéer stock available for future sale could adverselfect the market price per sha
of our common stock and preferred stock, respedtivand future sales by us of shares of our commnsiack, preferred stock, or
issuances by our operating partnership of Commonitdrmay be dilutive to existing stockholders.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our camstoxk or preferred stock in the public marketypon exchange of Common Ur
or exercise of any equity awards, or the perceptiahsuch sales might occur, could adversely affecmarket price of our common stock and
preferred stock. As of February 25, 2013, a tot&®,851,706 Common Units are redeemable and calktbbverted into shares of our common
stock and sold into the public market. The exchasfg@ommon Units for common stock, the vestingf aquitybased awards granted to cert
directors, executive officers and other employeaeten the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, the issuafic@ocommon stock or Common Units in
connection with hotel, portfolio or business acdigiss and other issuances of our common stockosni@on Units could have an adverse effect
on the market price of the shares of our commocksto

Future offerings of debt securities, which would Isenior to our common and preferred stock upon lidation, and issuances of equity
securities (including Common Units), which may béudive to our existing stockholders and be senitorour common stock for purposes
of dividend distributions or upon liquidation, mamaterially and adversely affect the market priceafr common stock.

In the future we may offer debt securities andassguity securities, including Common Units, PneférStock or other preferred
shares, that may be senior to our common stociuggoses of dividend distributions or upon liquidat Upon liquidation, holders of our debt
securities and our preferred shares will receigéridutions of our available assets prior to thilérs of our common stock. Holders of our
common stock are not entitled to pre-emptive rightether protections against us offering senidit @& equity securities. Therefore, additional
common share issuances, directly or through coimerdr exchangeable securities (including Commaitg), warrants or options, will dilute the
holdings of our existing common stockholders archdasuances or the perception of such issuancgsedace the market price of our common
stock. In addition, new issues of preferred stamkld have a preference on liquidating distributiang a preference on dividend payments that
could limit our ability to pay a dividend or makeather distribution to the holders of our commarckt Because our decision to issue securiti
any future offering will depend on market condigamnd other factors beyond our control, we canredipt or estimate the amount, timing or
nature of future issuances. Thus, our stockholbleas the risk of our future offerings reducing tharket price of our common stock and diluting
their interest in us.
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Risks Related to Our Status as a REIT

Failure to remain qualified as a REIT vubd cause us to be taxed as a regular corporatiamjich would substantially reduce funds
available for distributions to our stockholders.

We have limited operating history as a publiclydgd REIT. The REIT rules and regulations are higbthnical and complex. We
cannot assure you that our management team’s ergerivill be sufficient to continue to successfalperate our company as a publicly traded
REIT. We believe that our organization and pregosethod of operation has enabled us to meeetheérements for qualification and taxation
as a REIT commencing with our short taxable yededrDecember 31, 2011. However, we cannot assuréhgd we will remain qualified as a
REIT.

Failure to qualify as a REIT could result from anher of situations, including, without limitation:

if the leases of our hotels to our TRS lesseesnatreespected as true leases for federal incompugposes;

if our operating partnership is treated as a plybtiaded partnership taxable as a corporatiorigderal income tax purposes; or

if our existing or future hotel management compsauie not qualify as “eligible independent contregtar if our hotels are not
° “qualified lodging facilities” as required by federal income tax I

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeae will face serious tax consequences that wiissantially reduce the funds
available for distributions to our stockholders dnese:

we would not be allowed a deduction for dividendglfo stockholders in computing our taxable incand would be subject to
° federal income tax at regular corporate re

we could be subject to the federal alternative mum tax and possibly increased state and loca{ael

unless we are entitled to relief under certain faldacome tax laws, we could notetect REIT status until the fifth calendar yeaes
° the year in which we failed to qualify as a RE

In addition, if we fail to qualify as a REIT, we Mo longer be required to make distributions.adsesult of all these factors, our
failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our abjilto expand our business and raise capital, andutd adversely affect the value of our stock.

Even if we continue to qualify as a REIWe may face other tax liabilities that reduce ocaish flows.

Even if we continue to qualify for taxation as allREve may be subject to certain federal, statelaoal taxes on our income and
assets including, but not limited to, taxes on angistributed income, tax on income from some & conducted as a result of a foreclosure,
and state or local income, property and transfergaln addition, our TRSs are subject to regubaparate federal, state and local taxes. Any of
these taxes would decrease cash available foitdigtns to stockholders.

Failure to make required distributionsomld subject us to federal corporate income tax.

We intend to operate in a manner so as to quaify REIT for federal income tax purposes. In otdeualify as a REIT, we generally
are required to distribute at least 90% of our Rtalable income, determined without regard to ikieldnds paid deduction and excluding any
net capital gain, each year to our stockholdergh&€extent that we satisfy this distribution regoient, but distribute less than 100% of our REIT
taxable income, we will be subject to federal cogp® income tax on our undistributed taxable incameddition, we will be subject to a 4% non-
deductible excise tax if the actual amount thapas out to our stockholders in a calendar yeagss than a minimum amount specified under the
Code.
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REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeour liquidity and may force us to borrow funds eell assets during unfavorabl
market conditions or pay taxable stock
dividends.

In order to satisfy the requirements for qualificatas a REIT and to meet the REIT distributioruisgments, we may need to borrow
funds on a short-term basis or sell assets, evbe ithen-prevailing market conditions are not fatte for these borrowings or sales. Our cash
flows from operations may be insufficient to furedjuired distributions as a result of differencesnning between the actual receipt of income
the recognition of income for federal income taxgmses, or the effect of non-deductible capitaleexitures, the creation of reserves or required
debt service or amortization payments. The insigfficy of our cash flows to cover our distributi@yuirements could have an adverse effect on
our ability to raise short- and long-term debt@lt squity securities in order to fund distributtorequired to maintain our qualification as a REIT.
Also, although the Internal Revenue Service (“IRSias issued private letter rulings to other REITsiclv may be relied upon only by the
taxpayers to whom they were issued, and a reverngegure applicable to our 2007 through 2011 taxgbars sanctioning certain issuances of
taxable stock dividends by REITs under certainusitstances, no assurance can be given that weendlble to pay taxable stock dividends to
meet our REIT distribution requirements.

The formation of our TRSs increases amrerall tax liability.

Our TRSs are subject to federal, state and locahie tax on their taxable income, which typicaliysists of the revenue from the
hotels leased by our TRS lessees, net of the apgrtpenses for such hotels and rent payments émd, in the case of any hotel that is owned
by a wholly owned subsidiary of one of our TRSg, tvenue from that hotel, net of the operatingeesps. Accordingly, although our owners
of our TRSs allows us to participate in the opagtncome from our hotels in addition to receiviegt, that operating income will be fully subj
to income tax. The after-tax net income of our Ti&S®vailable for distribution to us. If we haveyaron-U.S. TRSs, then they may be subject to
tax in jurisdictions where they operate.

Our TRS lessee structure subjects us to the risknafeased hotel operating expenses that could asglely affect our operating results ar
our ability to make distributions to
stockholders

Our leases with our TRS lessees require our TR®éssto pay us rent based in part on revenue fuorhatels. Our operating risks
include decreases in hotel revenue and increadestéhoperating expenses, including but not lichite the increases in wage and benefit costs,
repair and maintenance expenses, energy costerpraaxes, insurance costs and other operatingresgs, which would adversely affect our
TRSs’ ability to pay us rent due under the leakeseases in these operating expenses can hageificsint adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, the market pateur common and preferred shares and our alditpake distributions to our stockholders.

If our operating partnership is treateas a publicly traded partnership taxable as a corgkion for federal income tax purposes, we will
cease to qualify as a REIT.

Although we believe that our operating partnerstiipbe treated as a partnership for federal incaaxepurposes, no assurance can be
given that the IRS will not successfully challerat position. If the IRS were to successfully ot that our operating partnership should be
treated as a publicly traded partnership taxabke @gporation, we would fail to meet the 75% glioseme test and certain of the asset tests
applicable to REITs and, unless we qualified fotaia statutory relief provisions, we would ceasejtialify as a REIT. Also, our operating
partnership would become subject to federal, statelocal income tax, which would reduce signifibathe amount of cash available for debt
service and for distribution to us.
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If Interstate, our other hotel management companjes any other hotel management companies that wayrangage in the future do not
qualify as “eligible independent contractors,” of our hotels are not “qualified lodging facilitie$,we will fail to qualify as a REIT.

Rent paid by a lessee that is a “related partynigrd ours will not be qualifying income for purpes of the two gross income tests
applicable to REITs. An exception is provided, heere for leases of “qualified lodging facilitiesd i TRS so long as the hotels are managed by
an “eligible independent contractor” and certaimeotrequirements are satisfied. We lease subdtgratibof our hotels to our TRS lessees. All of
our hotels are operated pursuant to hotel manageagezements with Interstate and other hotel managecompanies, each of which we believe
qualifies as an “eligible independent contractofrhong other requirements, in order to qualify askgible independent contractor, the hotel
manager must not own, directly or through its stmd#ters, more than 35% of our outstanding sharesna person or group of persons can own
more than 35% of our outstanding shares and theslijar ownership interest) of the hotel managéing into account certain ownership
attribution rules. The ownership attribution rutkat apply for purposes of these 35% thresholds@mplex, and monitoring actual and
constructive ownership of our shares by our hohagers and their owners may not be practical. iiegly, there can be no assurance that
these ownership levels will not be exceeded.

In addition, for a hotel management company toifas an eligible independent contractor, suchgamy or a related person must be
actively engaged in the trade or business of opgragualified lodging facilities” (as defined bel) for one or more persons not related to the
REIT or its TRSs at each time that such compangrerihto a hotel management contract with a TR&ArRS lessee. As of the date hereof, we
believe each of our hotel management companiesitgzequalified lodging facilities for certain pemsavho are not related to us or our TRSs.
However, no assurances can be provided that oal imatnagement companies or any other hotel mantgsra/e may engage in the future will
in fact comply with this requirement. Failure tagaly with this requirement would require us to fiother managers for future contracts, and, if
we hired a management company without knowleddkeofailure, it could jeopardize our status as dTRE

Finally, each property with respect to which ourSTRssees pay rent must be a “qualified lodgingitiat A “qualified lodging
facility” is a hotel, motel or other establishmembre than oné&alf of the dwelling units in which are used omansient basis, including custom.
amenities and facilities, provided that no wagesntjvities are conducted at or in connection witlkh facility by any person who is engaged in
the business of accepting wagers and who is legallyorized to engage in such business at or inezgion with such facility. As of the date
hereof, we believe that the properties that aredleédo our TRS lessees and the property that iedy a wholly owned subsidiary of one of our
TRSs are qualified lodging facilities. Although wend to monitor future acquisitions and improveiseof properties, REIT provisions of the
Code provide only limited guidance for making detigrations under the requirements for qualified lnddacilities, and there can be no assur.
that these requirements will be satisfied.

Our ownership of our TRSs is subject to limitatioasd our transactions with our TRSs could causetosbe subject to a 100% penalty
tax on certain income or deductions if those tram$ins are not conducted on arm’s-length terms.

Overall, no more than 25% of the value of a REBASsets may consist of stock or securities of omeaye TRSs. In addition, the Code
limits the deductibility of interest paid or accdiey a TRS to its parent REIT to assure that th& ©subject to an appropriate level of corporate
taxation. The Code also imposes a 100% excisertaeain transactions between a TRS and its p®ERE that are not conducted on an arm’s-
length basis. The 100% tax would apply, for examtglehe extent that we were found to have chaoygdRS lessees rent in excess of an arm’s-
length rent. We monitor the value of our respectiwestments in our TRSs for the purpose of engwwompliance with TRS ownership
limitations and structure our transactions with ®RSs on terms that we believe are arm’s lengtvaid incurring the 100% excise tax described
above. There can be no assurance, however, thatliee able to comply with the 25% TRS limitation to avoid application of the 100% excise
tax.

We may be subject to adverse legislativeegulatory tax changes that could reduce the et price of our stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws goverrRi§j Ts or the administrative interpretations of #atsvs may be amended. We
cannot predict when or if any new federal incomelaav, regulation, or administrative interpretati@n any amendment to any existing federal
income tax law, regulation or administrative intetiation, will be adopted, promulgated or beconfiectif’e and any such law, regulation, or
interpretation may take effect retroactively. Wel aur stockholders could be adversely affectedryysaich change in, or any new, federal inc
tax law, regulation or administrative interpretatio
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You may be restricted from acquiring vansferring certain amounts of our stock.

The stock ownership restrictions of the Code fofTREand the 9.8% stock ownership limit in our cbarhay inhibit market activity in
our capital stock and restrict our business contlminapportunities.

In order to qualify as a REIT for each taxable yé&ge or fewer individuals, as defined in the Cpd®y not own, beneficially or
constructively, more than 50% in value of our iskaad outstanding stock at any time during theHaltof a taxable year. Attribution rules in the
Code determine if any individual or entity benediti or constructively owns our capital stock unttés requirement. Additionally, at least 100
persons must beneficially own our capital stockrayat least 335 days of a taxable year for eadhbia year. To help insure that we meet these
tests, our charter restricts the acquisition andesghip of shares of our capital stock.

Our charter, with certain exceptions, authorizesditectors to take such actions as are necessadrgesirable to preserve our
qualification as a REIT. Unless exempted by ourtd@d directors, our charter prohibits any persamf beneficially or constructively owning
more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, wkiehis more restrictive, of the outstanding shafeany class or series of our capital stock.
board of directors may not grant an exemption fthase restrictions to any proposed transferee whnsership in excess of 9.8% of the valu
our outstanding shares would result in our failmgjualify as a REIT. These restrictions on trarsféity and ownership will not apply, however,
if our board of directors determines that it islowger in our best interest to continue to quadiéya REIT.

We may pay taxable dividends in our common stockl @ash, in which case stockholders may sell sharesur common stock to pay tax
on such dividends, placing downward pressure on tharket price of our common stock.

We may distribute taxable dividends that are payabtash and common stock at the election of sadkholder. If we made a
taxable dividend payable in cash and common staglable stockholders receiving such dividends beélrequired to include the full amount of
the dividend as ordinary income to the extent ofaurent and accumulated earnings and profitdegarmined for federal income tax purposes.
As a result, stockholders may be required to pagrire tax with respect to such dividends in excésiseocash dividends received. If a U.S.
stockholder sells the common stock that it receagea dividend in order to pay this tax, the spteseeds may be less than the amount includ
income with respect to the dividend, dependinghennharket price of our common stock at the timthefsale. Furthermore, with respect to
certain non-U.S. stockholders, we may be requivegithhold federal income tax with respect to sdshdends, including in respect of all or a
portion of such dividend that is payable in commstotk. If we made a taxable dividend payable im@asl our common stock and a significant
number of our stockholders determine to sell shafesir common stock in order to pay taxes owedigidends, it may put downward pressure
on the trading price of our common stock. We doaustently intend to pay a taxable dividend of oommon stock and cash.

The 100% prohibited transactions tax may limit oability to dispose of our properties, and we couldur a material tax liability if the
IRS successfully asserts that the 100% prohibitegthsaction tax applies to some or all of our pastfature dispositions.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactionsibject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibitedgeations are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosurepgrty, held primarily for sale to customers in ¢indinary course of business. We have
selectively disposed of certain of our propertrethie past and intend to make additional dispasstia the future. Although a safe harbor to the
characterization of the sale of property by a R&3Ta prohibited transaction is available, our gastositions have not qualified for that safe
harbor and some or all of our future dispositiora/mot qualify for that safe harbor. We believet thar past dispositions will not be treated as
prohibited transactions, and we intend to avoigaling of property that may be characterized ad jw@marily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business. Consequently, we rhagse not to engage in certain sales of our priegest may conduct such sales through our
TRS, which would be subject to federal and staterime taxation as a corporation. Moreover, no asg@ can be provided that the IRS will not
assert that some or all of our past or future digjmms are subject to the 100% prohibited traneasttax. If the IRS successfully imposes the
100% prohibited transactions tax on some or atiwfdispositions, the resulting tax liability coldd material.
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Item 1B .

Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2. Properties.

Our Portfolio

A list of our hotel properties owned as of Decenier2012 is included in the table below. We ownlwotels in fee simple, except
six hotels that are held under ground lease ord¢lasehold interest, as described in “-Our Hotgéating Agreements — Ground Leases”
below. According to STR’s current chain scalespfi6ur hotels are categorized as upscale hotélef 8ur hotels are categorized as upper
midscale hotels, and four of our hotels are caiegdras midscale. All financial and room inforroatis for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Later of Year

of

Opening or
Franchise/Brand Location Conversion  # Rooms Segment
Marriott
Courtyard by Marriot®) El Paso, TX 2011 90 Upscal
Courtyard by Marriot® Flagstaff, AZ 2009 164 Upscal
Courtyard by Marriot(®) Germantown, TN 2005 93 Upscalt
Courtyard by Marriot®) Jackson, M¢ 2005 117 Upscal
Courtyard by Marriot Memphis, TN 2005 96 Upscalt
Courtyard by Marriot® Scottsdale, Az 2003 153 Upscal
Courtyard by Marriot®) Arlington, TX 2012 103 Upscalt
Courtyard by Marriot®)@) Atlanta, GA 2012 150 Upscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Baton Rouge, L/ 2004 78 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Bellevue, WA 1997 144 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti®) Boise, ID 1995 63 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Denver, CC 1997 160 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Emporia, KS 1994 57 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Golden, CC 1995 63 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Lewisville, TX 2000 71 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti® Salina, KS 1994 63 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marrioti®) Spokane, WA 1995 84 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn by Marriot() Germantown, TN 2005 80 Upper midscal
Fairfield Inn & Suites by Marriot Fort Worth, TX 1999 70 Upper midscal
Residence Inn by Marrio® Fort Wayne, IN 2006 109 Upscal
Residence Inn by Marrio® Arlington, TX 2012 96 Upscal
Residence Inn by Marrio() Germantown, TN 2005 78 Upscalt
Residence Inn by Marrio(@) Portland, OF 2009 124 Upscal
Residence Inn by Marrio® Ridgeland, M< 2007 100 Upscal
Residence Inn by Marrio® Salt Lake City, UT 2012 178 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot®) Baton Rouge, L/ 2004 78 Upscalt
SpringHill Suites by Marriot®) Bloomington, MN 2011 113 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot() Denver, CC 2007 124 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot() Flagstaff, AZ 2008 112 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot®) Lithia Springs, GA 2004 78 Upscalt
SpringHill Suites by Marriot®) Little Rock, AR 2004 78 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot() Nashville, TN 2004 78 Upscal
SpringHill Suites by Marriot() Scottsdale, Az 2003 121 Upscal
TownePlace Suites by Marric®) Baton Rouge, L/ 2004 90 Upper midscal
Isubtotal 3,456 |
Hilton
Doubletree® Baton Rouge, L4 2011 127 Upscalt
Hampton Inr® Denver, CC 2003 149 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr@ Fort Collins, CC 1996 75 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr® Fort Smith, AR 2005 178 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr® Fort Wayne, IN 2006 118 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr® Medford, OR 2001 75 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr@ Provo, UT 1996 87 Upper midscal
Hampton Inr@ Boise, ID 1995 63 Upper midscal
Hampton Inn & Suite® Smyrna, TN 2012 83 Upper midscal
Hampton Inn & Suite@ Bloomington, MN 2007 146 Upper midscal
Hampton Inn & Suite(@ El Paso, TX 2005 139 Upper midscal
Hampton Inn & Suite@ Fort Worth, TX 2007 105 Upper midscal
Hampton Inn & Suite Tampa, FL 2012 138 Upper midscal
Hilton Garden Inr(® Duluth, GA 2011 122 Upscal
Hilton Garden Inr(®) Smyrna, TN 2012 112 Upscal
Hilton Garden Inr Fort Worth, TX 2012 98 Upscalt



Hilton Garden Inr® Birmingham, AL 2012 130 Upscal
Hilton Garden Inr(®) Birmingham, AL 2012 95 Upscal
Hilton Garden Inr(®) Fort Collins, CC 2007 120 Upscal
Homewood Suite(l) Ridgeland, MS 2011 91 Upscalt
[Subtotal 2,251 |
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IHG

Holiday Inn@ Boise, ID 2011 119 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn®@ Duluth, GA 2011 143 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Expres® Boise, ID 2005 63 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Expres® Charleston, W\ 2011 66 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Expres® Vernon Hills, IL 2008 119 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Express & Suite® Emporia, KS 2000 58 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Express & Suite Las Colinas, Tx 2007 128 Upper midscal
Holiday Inn Express & Suite®) Sandy, UT 1998 88 Upper midscal
Staybridge Suite® Glendale, CC 2011 121 Upper midscal
Staybridge Suite() Jackson, M¢ 2007 92 Upper midscal
[Subtotal 997 |
Hyatt

Hyatt House Englewood, CC 2012 135 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Phoenix, AZ 2012 127 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Scottsdale, Az 2012 127 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Long Island, NY 2012 122 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Owing Mills, MD 2012 123 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Lombard, IL 2012 151 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Arlington, TX 2012 127 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Lone Tree, CC 2012 127 Upscalt
Hyatt Place Englewood, CC 2012 126 Upscalt
Hyatt Place® Atlanta, GA 2006 150 Upscal
Hyatt Place Fort Myers, FL 2009 148 Upscalt
Hyatt Place® Las Colinas, T 2007 122 Upscalt
Hyatt Place® Portland, OF 2009 136 Upscal
[Subtotal 1,721 |
Americlnn

Americlnn Fort Smith, AR 2011 89 Midscale
Americlnn@) Salina, KS 2011 60 Midscale
Americlnn®) Golden, CC 2011 62 Midscale
[Subtotal 211 |
Starwood

Aloft @) Jacksonville, FL 2009 136 Upscal
Carlson

Country Inn & Suites By Carlsc(®) Charleston, W\ 2001 64 Upper Midscal
Country Inn & Suites By Carlsc) San Antonio, TX 2011 126 Upper Midscal
[Subtotal 190 |
Independent

Aspen Hotel & Suite® Fort Smith, AR 2003 57 Midscale
[Total 9,019 |

(1) This hotel is subject to mortgage debt aseddimber 31, 2012. For additional information conicg our debt and lenders, please see ltem
7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finahkiiformation and Results of Operations—Outstagdidebtedness” and Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary —Note 1—Deb{” to Consolidated Financial Statemel

(2) We own a 90% controlling interest in the Cgartl by Marriott hotel located in Atlanta, Georgiéh the obligation to acquire the
remaining 10% interest in approximately three ye

Since December 31, 2012, we have acquired fouthateluding one acquired through a joint venttioe,an aggregate purchase price
of $96.6 million and disposed of two hotels for mggate sales proceeds of $8.1 million.
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As of February 25, 2013, we have also entereddgteements to purchase seven additional hotenfaggregate purchase price of
$152.1 million, which includes the assumption gb@ximately $10.3 million in debt. We anticipatgairing these hotels in the first quarter of
2013. See also “Item 7. Management’s Discussianfaralysis of Financial Condition and Results ofe@qtions—Liquidity and Capital
Resources” and “ltem 7. Management’s Discussi@hfamalysis of Financial Condition and Results ofe@ions—Recent Developments.”

In addition to our hotel portfolio, we own 10 pdecef vacant land that we believe are suitabletlierdevelopment of new hotels,
possible expansion of existing hotels or the dgualent of restaurants in proximity to certain of dotels. We currently do not intend to dew
new hotels or restaurants or expand any of outiegidiotels at these parcels. We may in the fusalethese parcels when market condit
warrant. To reduce the risk of incurring a proteditransaction tax on any sales, we may transfeesw all of those parcels of undeveloped
to our TRSs.

Our Hotel Operating Agreements
Ground Leases

As of December 31, 2012, five of our hotelssurbject to ground lease agreements that covef #tledand underlying the respective
hotel property.

The Americlnn located in Fort Smith, Arkansas ibjeat to a ground lease with an initial lease teation date of August 31, 2022.

° The initial lease term may be extended for an amitht 30 years. Annual ground rent currently is, $80 per year. Annual ground re
is adjusted every fifth year with adjustments basethe Consumer Price Index for All Urban Conswsn&he next scheduled ground
rent adjustment is January 1, 20

The Hampton Inn located in Fort Smith, Arkansasuisject to a ground lease with an initial leasmieation date of May 31, 2030

° with 11, five-year renewal options. Annual grouedtrcurrently is estimated to be $143,400 for 2028nual ground rent is adjusted
on June 1 of each year, with adjustments basedaredses in the hotel's RevPAR calculated in acrare with the terms of the
ground lease

The Residence Inn by Marriott located in Portla@dggon is subject to a ground lease with an ingiase termination date of June 30,

° 2084 with one option to extend for an additionalygars. Ground rent for the initial lease term ywapaid in full at the time we
acquired the leasehold interest. If the optiondterd is exercised, monthly ground rent will bergleal based on a formula established
in the ground leas:

The Hyatt Place located in Portland, Oregon isestitip a ground lease with a lease termination afalene 30, 2084 with one option
° to extend for an additional 14 years. Ground renttie initial lease term was prepaid in full & thme we acquired the leasehold
interest. If the option to extend is exercised, thignground rent will be charged based on a fornagi@blished in the ground lea

The Holiday Inn located in Duluth, Georgia is subj® a ground lease with a lease termination d&geril 1, 2069. Annual ground
° rent currently is $198,057 per year. Annual renhcreased annually by 3% for each successive kgzar, on a cumulative basis.

These ground leases generally require us to maitel fgayments and payments for our share of chacgsss, expenses, assessments
and liabilities, including real property taxes anilities. Furthermore, these ground leases gdlggegjuire us to obtain and maintain insurance
covering the subject property.

In addition, the Hyatt Place located in Garden (Qitgw York is subject to a PILOT (payment in liduaxes) lease with the Town of

Hempstead Industrial Development Authority, or B4\, as lessor. The lease expires on Decembe2@®19. Upon expiration of the lease, we
expect to exercise our right to acquire a fee sinmerest in the Garden City hotel from the IDA fimminal consideration.

29




Franchise Agreements

As of December 31, 2012, all of our hotels, exdepbur one independent hotel, currently operateuafranchise agreements with
Marriott, Hilton, IHG, Hyatt, Starwood Hotels aneé$brts Worldwide, Inc. (“Starwood”), Americinn Intational, LLC or Country Inns & Suites
By Carlson, Inc. We believe that the public’s petan of the quality associated with a brand-namielhis an important feature in its
attractiveness to guests. Franchisors provideiatyasf benefits to franchisees, including cengdi reservation systems, national advertising,
marketing programs and publicity designed to ineedarand awareness, training of personnel and emainte of operational quality at hotels
across the brand system.

The franchise agreements require our TRS lessedgrchisees, to pay franchise fees ranging bet@&eand 6% of each hotel’s
gross revenue. In addition, some of our franchigeements will require our TRS lessees to pay niakéees of up to 4% of each hotel’s gross
revenue. These agreements generally specify mamrsdgeoperational, record-keeping, accounting, répgrand marketing standards and
procedures with which our TRS lessees, as theliiaees, must comply. The franchise agreementsaibligur TRS lessees to comply with the
franchisors’ standards and requirements, incluttimiging of operational personnel, safety, maintejrspecified insurance, the types of services
and products ancillary to guest room servicesrigt be provided by the TRS lessee, display of gigramd the type, quality and age of furniture,
fixtures and equipment included in guest roomshile® and other common areas. Some of the agreenegpiise that we deposit a set percentage,
generally not more than 5% of the gross revenubeohotels, into a reserve fund for capital expemes.

Hotel Management Agreements

As of December 31, 2012, all of our hotels grerated pursuant to hotel management agreemettshivii party hotel management
companies, including the following:

Interstate Management Company, LLC (“Interstatef)l its affiliate Noble Management Group, LLC (“N&b — 64 hotels
Select Hotel Group, LLC (“Hyatt Management”) —@&dils

HP Hotels Management Company, Inc. (“HP Hotels2)hotels

Kana Hotels, Inc. (“Kana Hotels”) — 2 hotels

InterMountain Management, LLC (“InterMountain”-hotels

OTO Development, LLC — 2 hotels

IHG Management (Maryland) LLC (“IHG Management”}L-hotel

Courtyard Management Corporation (“Courtyard Mamagnt”) — 1 hotel

FCH Hospitality, Inc. — 1 hotel

Lodging Dynamics Hospitality Group — 1 hotel

Our typical hotel management agreement requirés pay a base fee to our hotel manager calculaedpgrcentage of hotel
revenues. In addition, our hotel management ageatgenerally provide that the hotel manager eam &n incentive fee for revenue or EBIT
over certain thresholds. Our TRS lessees may gmqpleer hotel managers in the future. We have,vélidhave, no ownership or economic
interest in any of the hotel management compamgaged by our TRS lessees.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved from time to time in litigation sing in the ordinary course of business, howeverave not currently aware of ¢
actions against us that we believe would matergdlyersely affect our business, financial condibomesults of operations.

Item 4 . Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
PART Il

ltem5. Market for Registrant's Common Equty, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchaseof Equity Securities.
Market Information

The common stock of Summit REIT began trading enNlYy SE on February 9, 2011 under the symbol “INRrior to that time, the
was no public trading market for the common stoc®&ummit REIT. The last reported sale price for 3utrREIT's common stock as reported
the NYSE on February 25, 2013 was $ 9.17 per shHme.following table sets forth the high and lcales price per share of common stock
quarter reported on the New York Stock Exchangetraded, and the distributions declared on our commtock and our operati
partnership’s Common Units for each of the quariedicated.

Distribution Declared Per
Common Share and

2012 High Low Common Unit (1
Fourth Quarte $9.53 $8.02 $0.112E
Third Quartel $8.99 $7.63 $0.112E
Second Quarte $8.63 $7.43 $0.112E
First Quarte| $10.16 $7.40 $0.112¢&

Distribution Declared Per
Common Share and

2011 High Low Common Unit (1)
Fourth Quarte $9.77 $6.16 $0.112E
Third Quartel $11.47 $6.68 $0.112E
Second Quarte $11.63 $9.90 $0.0562E

Period Feb 9, 2011 through

March 31, 201 $10.40 $9.26 %

(1) Cash distributions paid per share of commooksequal cash distributions paid per Common Unit.

There is currently no established public tradingkagfor the Common Units of Summit OP. No pultading market for the
Common Units is expected to develop. Pursuarfidddrms of the partnership agreement, beginniegyear after the date of issuance, holders of
Common Units (other than the General Partner aminStREIT) may exercise their right to redeem ti&ammon Units for cash or, at our
option, shares of our common stock on a one-forkmss. During 2012, holders of 4,873,625 Commaitsexercised their right to tender their
Common Units for redemption, leaving 5,226,375 Camrdnits outstanding (not including those held iy General Partner and Summit REIT)
as of December 31, 2012. Any Common Units tendimecedemption will be redeemed in exchange ftrezi(i) shares of our common stock,
a one-for-one basis, or (ii) a cash amount based agen-day average of the closing sale pricaitotommon stock on the NYSE at the time of
redemption, as described in the partnership agneeni® date, all Common Units redeemed were exgbdadufor shares of our common stock.
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Shareholder Information

As of February 22, 2013, the common stock of SunR&IkT was held of record by 302 holders and thezeev65,382,932 shares of
common stock outstanding. As of February 22, 2€H8Common Units of Summit OP were held by 51@iéxd of record and there were
3,251,706 Common Units of Summit OP outstandingcwbdoes not include any Common Units held by tkeed&sal Partner and Summit REIT.

Distribution Information

As a REIT, Summit REIT must distribute annuallyittostockholders an amount at least equal to 90%s &EIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction fordkwids paid and excluding any net capital gain. StREIT will be subject to income tax on its
taxable income that is not distributed and to asisextax to the extent that certain percentagés tdxable income are not distributed by specified
dates. Summit REIT’s cash available for distribatinay be less than the amount required to meeatisibution requirements for REITs under
the Code, and Summit REIT may be required to bormmawey, sell assets or issue capital stock tofgdltie distribution requirements.

The timing and frequency of distributions will betlorized by the Summit REIT board of directorsitsnsole discretion, and declared by
Summit REIT based upon a variety of factors deerakant by its directors, including financial cdiah, restrictions under applicable law and
loan agreements, capital requirements and the REjdirements of the Code. Summit REIT’s abilityriake distributions will generally depend
on receipt of distributions from Summit OP, whiatpends primarily upon lease payments from our T@8Sdes with respect to our hotels.

Summit OP intends to make quarterly distributianbalders of Common Units in a per-unit amount thaqual to the per-share amount
paid by Summit REIT to the holders of Summit REbhomon stock.

We are generally restricted from declaring or pgyany distributions, or setting aside any fundstfier payment of distributions, on our
common stock or the Common Units unless full cutivgadistributions on the Preferred Stock and RreféUnits have been declared and either
paid or set aside for payment in full for all pdistribution periods.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information as of Dedzer 31, 2012 with respect to our securities, &rdsecurities of our operating
partnership, that may be issued under existingtggompensation plans:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of Securities to Weighted Average for Future Issuance
be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Under Equity
Plan Category of Qutstanding Options Qutstanding Options Compensation Plans®)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Summit REIT 893,000 $9.75 1,213,263
Stockholder(?
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Summit REIT — — —
Stockholders
Total 893,000 $9.75 1,213,268

(1) Excludes securities reflected in the column emtitiumber of Securities to be Issued Upon Exerofs®utstanding Options.” Summit OP
has not adopted any equity compensation plans; Venweng-term incentive plan units (“LTIP Units'g,special class of partnership units in
Summit OP, may be issued by Summit OP pursuantton8t REIT's 2011 Equity Incentive Plan. Neithem@uit REIT nor Summit OP has
any current plans to issue LTIP Units pursuanh®3ummit REI’s 2011 Equity Incentive Pla

(2) Consists of Summit REIT’s 2011 Equity IncentiverRlavhich was approved by Summit REIT's board oédiors and Summit REIT’s sole
stockholder prior to completion of the IP
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Share Performance Graph

The following graph compares the yearly changeuinommulative total shareholder return on our comsivares for the period beginn
February 8, 2011 and ended December 31, 2012 tindtuarterly changes in the Standard and PoofsS50ck Index (the S&P 500 Index), and
the SNL US REIT Hotel Index for the same perioduasing a base share price of $100.00 for our constark, the S&P 500 Index and the SNL
US REIT Hotel Index for comparative purposes. BiNL US REIT Hotel Index is composed of publiclydeal REITs which focus on
investments in hotel properties. Total sharehaldirn equals appreciation in stock price plusdginds paid and assumes that all dividends are
reinvested. The performance graph is not indieativfuture investment performance. We do not nakendorse any predictions as to future

share price performance.

Period Endec

Index 02/08/1:  03/31/1: 06/30/1: 09/30/1: 12/31/1: 03/31/1: 06/30/1: 09/30/1: 12/31/1.
Summit Hotel Properties

Inc. $ 1000 $ 101.9t$ 117.0C $ 73.8¢ $ 100.0¢ $ 81.27 $ 91.0C $ 94.17 $ 106.1¢
S&P 500 $ 1000 $ 100.4( $ 100.5C $ 86.5¢ $ 96.7¢ $ 108.9°$ 10597 $ 112.7( $ 112.2¢

SNL US REIT Hote $ 100.0( $ 91.31 $ 89.67 $ 61.2( $ 79.51 $ 90.2( $ 89.6¢ $ 89.51 $ 89.6¢

Total Return Performance
140
120 +
100
@
=
o
=
o
E B0 -
—— Summit Hotel Properties, Inc
60 + [ —8— 5&P 500
—i— 5L US REIT Hotel
40 + : ; — - + |
020811 03131111 06/30/11 09/30/11 12731711 033112 063012 093012 1203112
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Securities Sold
There were no unregistered sales of equity seesirtiiring the year ended December 31, 2012. e no unregistered sales of
equity securities during the year ended DecembgP@11 other than as previously reported in our€hrReport on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on February 18, 2011 relating to the concurrentgpei placement and the formation transactions.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following information should be read in conjtioe with “Management’s Discussion and Analysig-ofancial Conditions and
Results of Operatio” and our audited consolidated financial statemeautsl related notes thereto, appearing elsewhethigmForm 10-K.
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Summit

Hotel
Summit Hotel Properties, Properties
Inc. LLC Combinec Summit Hotel Properties, LL!
2/14/11 - 1/1/11 -
(in thousands, except per share 2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2011 2010 2009 2008
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
DATA
REVENUES
Room revenu $ 181,59¢ $ 12350¢ $ 13,51¢ $ 137,02 $ 123,28 $ 110,09 $ 124,40!
Other hotel operations revenue 7,944 5,01¢ 62€ 5,641 5,30¢ 4,27¢ 4,31¢
Total Revenues 189,54. 128,52: 14,14: 142,66. 128,59. 114,36¢ 128,72
EXPENSES
Hotel operating expens
Rooms 54,08: 37,67¢ 4,66¢ 42,34 38,25¢ 34,05( 34,26
Other direc 25,12¢ 19,00: 2,857 21,85¢ 19,33: 18,82¢ 21,11
Other indirec 51,06: 33,88¢ 4,34¢ 38,23¢ 33,91¢ 30,09¢ 31,30¢
Other 911 70C 73 77% 61E 681 33C
Total hotel operating expens 131,18: 91,26¢ 11,94¢ 103,21( 92,12 83,65! 87,017
Depreciation and amortizatic 34,26: 25,11 3,24¢ 28,35¢ 25,58¢ 22,35: 21,01¢
Corporate general and administrati
Salaries and other compensa 6,03¢ 3,082 - 3,082 - - -
Othet 3,53¢ 3,47¢ - 3,47¢ - - -
Hotel property acquisition cos 3,05(C 254 - 254 367 1,38¢ 1,571
Loss on impairment of assets 66C - - - 6,47¢ 7,50¢ -
Total Expenses 178,72 123,19( 15,19 138,38« 124,55. 114,90( 109,60«
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 10,81¢ 5,331 (1,052) 4,27¢ 4,04( (537 19,12:
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incom: 35 16 7 23 47 50 194
Other income 731 - - - - - -
Interest expens (15,589 (12,609 (4,417 (17,02) (24,909 (17,025 (16,11)
Debt transaction cos (6617) - - - - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of ass (19¢) (36) - (36) (42 (4) (390
Gain (loss) on derivative financial
instruments (2) - - - - - -
Total Other Income (Expense) (15,680 (12,629 (4,410 (17,039 (24,897 (16,979 (16,307
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUINC
OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME
TAXES (4,865 (7,297 (5,462) (12,75 (20,857 (17,510 2,81¢
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT 1,23¢ 2,18 (322) 1,86¢ (18¢) - (770
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUINC
OPERATIONS (3,627) (5,10¢) (5,789 (10,890 (21,045 (17,510 2,04¢
INCOME (LOSS) FROM
DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS 1,35 92¢ (423 50€ 12¢ 1,19¢ 11,417
NET INCOME (LOSS) (2,270 (4,177 (6,207 (10,389 (20,920 (16,319 13,46
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (1,199 (1,240 - (1,240 - - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO
SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC
PREDECESSOR (1,076 (2,937 (6,207 (9,149 (20,920 (16,319 13,46

PREFERRED DIVIDENDS (4,625) (411) - (411) - - -




NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE

TO
COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS/MEMBERS $ (B,70) $ (3,34H $ (6,20) $ (9,559 $ (20,920 $ (16,319 $ 13,46
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON
SHARES
OUTSTANDING
Basic 33,71% 27,27¢
Diluted 33,84¢ 27,27¢
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share
from continuing operatior $ 0.2y $ (0.1¢)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share
from discontinued operations 0.04 0.04
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share $ (0.19) $ (0.12)
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ 0.4t $ 0.2¢
BALANCE SHEET DATA (at period
end)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 810,78 $ 554,00 nfe $ 554,000 $ 493,00¢ $ 518,24t $ 494,75
DEBT $ 312,61 $ 217,10: ne $ 217,100 $ 420,43 $ 426,18 $ 390,09:
EQUITY $ 473,53 $ 319,44 nfe $ 31944¢ $ 59,84« $ 81,29¢ $ 87,76
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Item 7 . Management’s Discussion and Analysbf Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjiamcwvith the “Selected Financial Data,” and our aitel consolidated financial
statements and related notes thereto, appearireylsre in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a self-managed hotel investment companytasiorganized in June 2010 to continue and exfiandxisting hotel investment
business of our predecessor, Summit Hotel ProgettleC, a leading U.S. hotel owner. We focus onuérng and owning premium-branded,
select-service hotels in the upscale and upperaaiedsegments of the U.S. lodging industry, asetlsegments are currently defined by STR.

We completed our IPO, and concurrent private plasgraf common stock and our formation transactamm&ebruary 14, 2011. Net
proceeds were $240.8 million, after underwritingodiunts and offering-related costs, and were pifynased to pay down debt. On October 28,
2011, we completed a public offering of 2,000,008res of 9.25% Series A cumulative redeemable pesfestock. Net proceeds were $47.9
million, after the underwriting discount and offegirelated costs, and were used to pay down theipél balance of our senior secured revolving
credit facility.

On October 3, 2012, we completed our first followammmon stock offering of 13,800,000 shares. Netgreds were $106.4 million,
after the underwriting discount and offering-rethéxpenses, and were used to fund the cash poftexquisitions of 10 hotels and pay down the
principal balance of our senior secured revolvirggit facility. On December 11, 2012, we compleaiguliblic offering of 3,000,000 shares of
7.875% Series B cumulative redeemable preferrazksidet proceeds were $72.5 million, after the umi¢ing discount and offering-related
costs, and were used to pay down the principahlalaf our senior secured revolving credit facility

We had no business activities prior to completibthe IPO and the formation transactions on Felyraidy 2011. As a result of the
formation transactions, we acquired sole ownershipe 65 hotels in our predecessor’s portfolicadtdition, we assumed the indebtedness of our
predecessor and its subsidiaries. Our predecessocansidered the acquiror for accounting purpasdsts financial statements became our
financial statements upon completion of the fororatransactions.

From the completion of our IPO through December2Bi2, we acquired 24 hotel properties with a tot&,915 guestrooms for
purchase prices aggregating $315.5 million. In taldi pursuant to our strategy to continually eaéduour hotel properties, in 2012 we sold five
hotel properties with a total of 421 guestroomsDAtember 31, 2012, our portfolio consisted of 8tels with a total of 9,019 guestrooms loce
in 21 states.
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Substantially all of our assets are held by, ahdfalur operations are conducted through, SumrRit Through a wholly owned
subsidiary, Summit REIT is the sole general pargie@ummit OP. At December 31, 2012, Summit REITned90% of Summit OP’s issued and
outstanding Common Units, including Common Unitgresenting the sole general partnership interadtall of Summit OP’s issued and
outstanding Series A and B Preferred Units. Therdimited partners of Summit OP, which include @xéve officers and directors of the
Company, own the remaining Common Units. Pursuatite Summit OP partnership agreement, througlGemeral Partner, we have full,
exclusive and complete responsibility and discretiothe management and control of Summit OP, thnly the ability to cause Summit OP to
enter into certain major transactions includinguasitjons, dispositions and refinancings, and t&endistributions to partners and to cause
changes in Summit OP’s business activities.

Industry Trends and Outlook

Room-night demand in the U.S. lodging industryderelated to macroeconomic trends. Key driverseshdnd include growth in gross
domestic product, or GDP, corporate profits, cdjpiteestments and employment. Following periodseaission, recovery of room-night demand
for lodging historically has lagged improvementsha overall economy. However, in the economic vecp beginning in early 2010, room-night
demand has led improvements in the overall economy.

In “ PWC Hospitality Directions”, Pricewaterhousefpers LLP projects RevPAR growth increases in Z0L8pscale hotels and upper
midscale hotels of 5.8% and 5.1%, respectivelyh@dlgh we expect that our hotels will realize meghihRevPAR gains as the economy and
lodging industry continue to improve, the risk éxithat global and domestic economic conditions n#se the economic recovery to stall, wi
likely would adversely affect our growth expectaso

While we are guardedly optimistic about macro-eeniccconditions and their effect on demand for cuggirooms, we feel relatively
confident that our near-term results will not beexdely affected by increased lodging supply inroarkets. Growth in lodging supply typically
lags growth in room-night demand. Key drivers afding supply include the availability and cost apital, construction costs, local real estate
market conditions and availability and pricing afsting properties. As a result of scarcity of fieing, severe recession and declining operating
fundamentals, during 2008 and 2009, many plann&gl Hevelopments were cancelled or postponed. Beednomic uncertainty, we believe the
effect of the severe recession will be prolongetdared with prior recessions. According to Lodgidmpnometrics, approximately 395 new
hotels with 40,942 guestrooms will open during 28h8 446 hotels with 48,335 guestrooms will opeRdh4. This compares to 5,883 new hotels
with 785,547 guestrooms that opened during 2008.

If the general economy does not continue its regofa any number of reasons, including, among igthan economic slowdown and
other events outside our control, such as terroagssignificantly increased gasoline prices, loggimdustry fundamentals may not improve as
expected. In the past, similar events have adyeastdcted the lodging industry and if these eveatsir, they may adversely affect the lodging
industry in the future.

Operating Performance Metrics
We use a variety of operating performance indica#ord other information to evaluate the finanaaddition and operating performance

of our business. These key indicators include fif@nnformation that is prepared in accordancén@enerally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP") as well as other financial information thia not prepared in accordance with GAAP. In dddijtwe use other information that may not
be financial in nature, including statistical infation and comparative data. We use this informatiameasure the performance of individual
hotels, groups of hotels and/or our business asakew\We periodically compare historical informatii our internal budgets as well as industry-
wide information. These key indicators include:

Occupancy— Occupancy represents the total number of guestssold divided by the total number of guest roanslable.

Average Daily Rate (ADR)— ADR represents total room revenues divided bytdted number of guest rooms sold.

Revenue Per Available Room (RevPAI) — RevPAR is the product of ADR and Occupancy.
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Occupancy, ADR and RevPAR are commonly used mesasvitein the hotel industry to evaluate operatiegfgrmance. RevPAR is an
important statistic for monitoring operating perf@nce at the individual hotel level and acrossbmusiness as a whole. We evaluate individual
hotel RevPAR performance on an absolute basisamitparisons to budget and prior periods, as wedhas company-wide and regional basis.
ADR and RevPAR include only room revenue. Room mereedepends on demand (as measured by occupariciylg fas measured by ADR),
and our available supply of hotel rooms. Our ADB;upancy and RevPAR performance may be affecteddnroeconomic factors such as
regional and local employment growth, personal ine@nd corporate earnings, office vacancy ratedbasiuhess relocation decisions, airport and
other business and leisure travel, new hotel coatstn, and the pricing strategies of competitbrsaddition, our ADR, occupancy and RevPAR

performance is dependent on the continued sucéess éranchisors and brands.

Hotel Property Portfolio Activity

Acquisitions

We acquired 19 hotel properties in 2012 and fivedal. A summary of these acquisitions follows l@tsl in thousands):

Date Guest- Purchase
Acquired Franchise/Bran Location rooms Price Management Compar
2012
Courtyard Management
January 1: Courtyard by Marriot Atlanta, GA 15C $ 28,90( Corporatior
Birmingham (Liberty HP Hotels Management
February 2¢ Hilton Garden Inr Park), AL 13C 11,50C Company, Inc
Birmingham (Lakeshore HP Hotels Management
February 2¢ Hilton Garden Inr AL 95 8,62t Company, Inc
May 16 Courtyard by Marriot Dallas (Arlington), TX 108 15,00( InterMountain Management, LL
May 16 Hilton Garden Inr Nashville (Smyrna), T! 112 11,50( Kana Hotels, Inc
June 21 Hilton / Hampton Inn & Suite  Nashville (Smyrna), TI 83 8,00( Kana Hotels, Inc
July 2 Residence Inn by Marrio Dallas (Arlington), TX 96 15,50C InterMountain Management, LL
October £ Hyatt Place Dallas (Arlington), TX 127 9,05t Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October £ Hyatt Place Denver (Lone Tree), Ci 127 10,53( Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October £ Hyatt Place Denver (Englewood), Ct 12¢€ 11,51¢ Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October & Hyatt House Denver (Englewood), Ct 13¢ 13,48( Select Hotel Groups, LL!
Baltimore (Owings Mills)
October £ Hyatt Place MD 12¢ 10,23t Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October & Hyatt Place Chicago (Lombard), Il 151 17,02t Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October £ Hyatt Place Phoenix, AZ 127 5,02C Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October £ Hyatt Place Scottsdale, Az 127 10,53( Select Hotel Groups, LL!
October 2: Hilton Garden Inr Fort Worth, TX 98 7,200 FCH Hospitality, Inc
Lodging Dynamics Hospitality
December 2: Residence Inn by Marrio Salt Lake City, UT 17¢ 19,95¢ Group
Long Island (Garden
December 2 Hyatt Place City), NY 12z 31,00 OTO Development, LL(
December 27  Hilton / Hampton Inn & Suites Tampa (Ybor City), FL 13€ 20,84« OTO Development, LLC
Total 2012 19 hotel properties 2,34t $ 265,41¢
2011
April 15 Hilton / Homewood Suite Jackson (Ridgeland), M 91 $ 7,35(C Interstate Management Compe
April 27 IHG / Staybridge Suite Denver (Glendale), Ct 121 10,00( Interstate Management Compe
IHG Management (Maryland),
April 27 IHG / Holiday Inn Duluth, GA 14Z 7,00C LLC
May 25 Hilton Garden Inr Duluth, GA 122 13,35( Interstate Management Compe
July 28 Courtyard by Marriott El Paso, TX 90 12,35( Interstate Management Company
Total 2011 5 hotel properties 567 $ 50,05(
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2012 Acquisitions

On January 12, 2012, we purchased 90% of the owipargerests in a Courtyard by Marriott in Atlan@A for $190,000 per
key. Including renovations, we expect total costhes to be $191,300. Upon expiration of tax credilated to the hotel in 2016, we are oblig;
to purchase the remaining ownership for $0.4 nmilliwhich has been accrued as a liability and ilded in the purchase price of $28.9 million.
We funded this acquisition through assumption $18.0 million term loan and borrowings under ourisesecured revolving credit facility.

On February 28, 2012, we purchased a Hilton Gahdeim Birmingham (Liberty Park), AL for $88,462mpkey. Including renovations,
we expect total cost per key to be $90,200. Weddrttlis acquisition with a $6.5 million term loamdeborrowings under our senior secured
revolving credit facility.

On February 28, 2012, we purchased another Hillam&h Inn in Birmingham (Lakeshore), AL for $90, %89 key. Including
renovations, we expect total cost per key to be7&D. We funded the purchase price with a $5lomiterm loan and borrowings under our
senior secured revolving credit facility.

On May 16, 2012, we purchased a Courtyard by MaiirdDallas (Arlington), TX for $145,631 per kéye expect to perform very
minor renovations at this hotel. We funded thisuésition with borrowings under our senior securedotving credit facility.

On May 16, 2012, we purchased a Hilton Gardenndashville (Smyrna), TN for $102,679 per key. tiihg renovations, we expect
total cost per key to be $106,500. We funded tbipigition through assumption of an $8.7 milliomidoan and borrowings under our senior
secured revolving credit facility.

On June 21, 2012, we purchased a Hampton Inn &sSintNashville (Smyrna), TN for $96,386 per keyclliding renovations, we
expect total cost per key to be $101,900. We furidisdacquisition through assumption of a $5.4iomlterm loan and borrowings under our
senior secured revolving credit facility.

On July 2, 2012, we purchased a Residence Inn liaD@gArlington), TX for $161,458 per key. We expéx perform very minor
renovations at this property. We funded this adgtjoiswith borrowing under our senior secured reirg credit facility.

On October 5, 2012, we purchased from affiliateslyditt Hotels Corporation (Hyatt), a portfolio a§kt hotel properties. We expect to
spend $7.8 million for renovations at these propeifor a total cost of $91,300 per key. We funttesl acquisition with proceeds from our first
follow-on common stock offering completed on OctoBg2012. The renovations will be funded with logving on our senior secured revolving
credit facility.

On October 23, 2012, we purchased a Hilton Gardernn Fort Worth, TX for $73,469 per key. Includirgnovations, we expect total
cost per key to be $98,000. We funded this acguiisitith proceeds from our first follow-on commaocek offering completed on October 3,
2012.

On December 21, 2012, we purchase a ResidenceyIWalriott in Salt Lake City, UT for $112,129 pesk Including renovations, we

expect total cost per key to be $148,500. We furidisdacquisition through assumption of a $14.lianilterm loan and the proceeds from the
of our Courtyard by Marriott in Missoula, MN comf#d on December 11, 2012.
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On December 27, 2012, we purchased a Hyatt Placeng Island (Garden City), NY for $254,098 per kayd a Hampton Inn & Suites
in Tampa (Ybor City), FL for $151,043 per key. Wepect to perform very minor renovations at the H{Pdce, and including renovations, we
expect total cost per key to be $163,400 for thenptan Inn & Suites. We funded this acquisition withrrowings under our senior secured
revolving credit facility.

2011 Acquisitions

On April 15, 2011, we purchased a Homewood Suitelatckson (Ridgeland), MS for $80,769 per key. \Akeslcompleted planned
renovations, resulting in total cost per key of $8®. We funded this acquisition and the relatedvations with borrowings under our senior
secured revolving credit facility.

On April 27, 2011, we purchased a Staybridge Sunt&enver (Glendale), CO and a Holiday Inn in DbJuGA for a combined $64,394
per key. Including renovations, we expect the combitotal cost per key to be $73,500. We fundedlabguisition with borrowings under our
senior secured revolving credit facility.

On May 25, 2011, we purchased a Hilton Gardennnbuluth, GA for $109,426 per key. Including rentwas, we expect the total cost
per key to be $115,000. We funded this acquisititth borrowings under our senior secured revohdredit facility.

On July 28, 2011, we purchased a Courtyard by Mtin El Paso, TX for $137,222 per key. We havmpteted planned renovations,
resulting in total cost per key of $145,000. Weded this acquisition and the related renovatiorib drrowings under our senior secured
revolving credit facility.

2012 Dispositions

Pursuant to our strategy to continually evaluatehatel properties and land held for developmeetsaid five hotel properties and three
parcels of land held for development in 2012. Wagmoperty is identified as being held for saleredassify the property on our consolidated
balance sheets, cease depreciation, evaluate temtfad impairment, and, in the case of a hotepprty, report historical and future results of
operations in discontinued operations. We recoginig@irment charges on hotel properties in disowsil operations and on land held for
development in continuing operations. In 2012, eepgnizedmpairment charges of $2.3 million on hotel projesrand $0.7 million on land he
for development.

On May 16, 2012, we sold the Hampton Inn, Holidaly Express and Americinn in Twin Falls, ID for ajgeegate sales price of $16.5
million. We used the net proceeds to pay off $5ilian in related term debt and reduce borrowingsler our senior secured revolving credit
facility.

On August 15, 2012, we sold the Americlnn Hotel it&s in Missoula, MT for $1.9 million.

On December 11, 2012, we sold the Courtyard by iglhin Missoula, MT for $7.7 million. We used thet proceeds to fund the cash
portion of the purchase price for the ResidencebiMarriott in Salt Lake City, UT.

Other 2012 Hotel Property Investment Activities

On October 30, 2012, we entered into an agreemigémizwv affiliate of Hyatt Hotels Corporation to fli$20.3 million in the form of a
first mortgage loan on a hotel property locatedawntown Minneapolis, MN. The $20.3 million repretea portion of the total acquisition cost
and renovation costs expected to be incurred toarbithe property to a Hyatt Place hotel. Subjeadrtain conditions including the successful
conversion of the property, estimated to be coregl&t fourth quarter 2013, we plan to purchaseptbperty and enter into a management
agreement with a Hyatt affiliate. At December 3112, our investment in this loan was $10.3 milliow is classified as investment in hotel
properties under development in our consolidatéaoe sheet.
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Hotel Revenues and Operating Expenses

Our revenues are derived from hotel operationscandist of room revenue and other hotel operatiemsnue. As a result of our focus
select-service hotels in the upscale and upperaaidsegments of the U.S. lodging industry, sulbist&nall of our revenues are related to the
sales of hotel rooms. Our other hotel operatiomsmee consists of ancillary revenues related tatingpgeooms and other guest services providi
our hotels.

Our hotel operating expenses consist primarilyxpleases incurred in the day-to-day operation ofhatiels. Many of our expenses are
fixed, such as essential hotel staff, real estates, insurance, depreciation and certain typ&sithise fees, and these expenses do not decrease
even if the revenues at our hotels decrease. Qal tygerating expenses consist of room expensege@yaayroll taxes and benefits, linens,
cleaning and guestroom supplies, and complimetaagkfast), other direct expenses (office supplighties, telephone, advertising and bad
debts), other indirect expenses (real and pergoogkrty taxes, insurance, travel agent and coadlit commissions, hotel management fees, and
franchise fees), and other expenses (ground rehtvtuer items of miscellaneous expense).

Results of Operations of Summit Hotel Properties,ric. and Summit Hotel OP, LP

Prior to February 14, 2011, the date we completedRO, concurrent private placement, and formatiansactions, neither Summit
REIT nor Summit OP had any operations other tharigbuance of 1,000 shares of common stock of SURIAIT to our Executive Chairman in
connection with Summit REIT’s formation and inite@dpitalization and activity in connection with tht0 and the formation transactions. As a
result, the following discussion compares our ofxegaresults for the year 2012 with the combinezlihes of our operations for the period from
February 14, 2011 through December 31, 2011 angrealecessor’s operations for the period from Jagnlia2011 through February 13,
2011. We also compare the combined operatingtestul 2011 with the operating results of our pasdsor for the year 2010.

Comparison of 2012 to 2011

The following table contains key operating metfmsour total portfolio and our same-store portidior 2012 compared with 2011
(dollars in thousands, except ADR and RevPAR):

2012 2011 Percentage Chany
Same-Store Total Same-Store Total Same-Store
Total Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
(83 hotels’ (59 hotels’ (64 hotels’ (59 hotels’ (83/64 hotels (59 hotels’

Total revenue $ 189,54. $ 147,760  $ 142,66. $ 132,36 32.% 11.6%
Hotel operating

expense: $ 131,18 $ 102,44( $ 103,21( $ 95,98t 27.1% 6.7%
Occupancy 69.7% 69.1% 65.(% 64.6% 7.2% 7.C%
ADR $ 95.67 $ 9351 $ 90.3: % 89.6¢ 5.¢% 4.2%
RevPAR $ 66.65 $ 64.6: $ 58.6¢ $ 57.8i 13.6% 11.7%

The total portfolio information above includes raues and expenses from the 19 hotel propertiecqugrad in 2012 and five hotel
properties we acquired in 2011 from the date ofieitipn through December 31, 2012, and operatifigrination (occupancy, ADR, and
RevPAR) for the period each hotel was owned. Adogty, the information does not reflect a full twelmonths of operations in 2012 for the 19
hotels acquired in 2012 or a full twelve month®pérations in 2011 for the five hotels acquire@di1. In addition, the Americinn in Golden, (
is excluded from the total portfolio informationealto the classification as held for sale at Decerhe2012.

RevenuesTotal revenues increased $46.9 million, or 32.894189.5 million in 2012, compared with $142.7liom in 2011. The

growth was due to a $15.4 million increase in sahoee revenues, a $6.6 million increase in reveatiéfse five hotels we acquired in 2011, and
$24.9 million in revenues at the 19 hotels we aeglin 2012.
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The same-store revenue increase of 11.6%, to $1difliBn in 2012 compared with $132.4 million in 20, was due to an increase in
occupancy to 69.1% in 2012 compared with 64.6%0ih12 and ADR to $93.51 in 2012 compared with $8%68011. The increases in
occupancy and ADR resulted in an 11.7% increasarne-store RevPAR to $64.63 in 2012 compared V&th8¥ in 2011. These increases were
due to the improving economy and hotel industrydmentals, renovations made at eight hotel pragzeini 2011, and the stabilization of
operations at the hotels involved in the arbitraticatter with Choice Hotels International, Inc. lftiice”) after the successful rebranding and
upgrades that occurred in 2011.

Hotel Operating Expensedhe 27.1% increase in total hotel operating egpsiin 2012 compared with 2011 was largely relatede
increase in revenues and the acquisition of 19 potgerties in 2012 and five hotel propertiesénand and third quarter 2011.

The following table summarizes our hotel operagrgenses for our same-store (59 hotels) portfoli@012 and 2011 (dollars in
thousands):

Percentage Percentage of Reven
2012 2011 Change 2012 2011
Rooms expens $ 42,19: $ 39,30¢ 7.2% 28.€% 29.7%
Other direct expens 19,27( 20,31( (5.1%) 13.(% 15.5%
Other indirect expens 40,34: 35,73t 12.% 27.2% 27.(%
Other expense 642 632 1.704 0.4% 0.5%
Total hotel operating expenses $ 102,44¢ $ 95,98¢ 6.794 69.5% 72.5%

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization expense increasedlfillion, or 20.8%, to $34.3 million in 2012
compared with 2011, primarily due to renovationsxasting hotel properties and depreciation assediaith newly acquired hotel properties. 7
2012 depreciation and amortization expense incl8&2 million of fixed asset depreciation, $2.3lion of financing costs amortization, and
$0.8 million of franchise fees amortization. Defaéion and amortization expense in 2011 of $28.Maniincludes $25.4 million of fixed asset
depreciation, $2.2 million of financing costs anmation, and $0.8 million of franchise fees amatian.

Corporate General and AdministrativeCorporate general and administrative expensesased by $3.0 million, or 45.9%, to $9.6
million in 2012 compared with 2011. The increasprimarily due to an increase in bonuses of $116anj as there were no bonuses in 2011,
equity-based compensation of $0.7 million; coslateel to the development of corporate functions dithnot exist prior to our IPO of $0.3
million; and costs related to the move of our coape headquarters from Sioux Falls, SD, to Augtk,of $0.2 million. In addition, we incurred
$0.2 million in legal expenses related to the Chairbitration.

Other Income/Expensé he major component of other income/expense é&east expense, which decreased $1.4 million, @68dlie to
the repayment of $223.7 million of debt with prodeérom our IPO and concurrent private placeme0itl, partially offset by interest expense
on new debt related to our 2012 acquisition adtisitWe expect to continue to acquire hotels. Aesalt, interest expense is expected to increase.

Income Tax Benefif.he income tax benefit of $1.2 million was a restilhet operating losses at our TRSs. The net tipgrlbsses were
primarily the result of the disruption at the hagtebperties involved in the Choice arbitration.

Cash FlowsThe increase in net cash provided by operatingities of $10.6 million in 2012 compared with 20Ekulted from an $8.1
million improvement in earnings and a $5.1 milliaorease in depreciation, primarily related to hpteperty acquisitions completed in 2011 and
2012; partially offset by $3.9 million less casloyided from operating assets and liabilities. Th495 million increase in net cash used in
investing activities in 2012 compared with 201 luiesd from an increase in hotel property acquisiiof $166.9 million and hotel properties
under development of $10.3 million, partially offéy a reduction in hotel property improvements additions of $4.1 million and an increase in
proceeds from asset dispositions of $25.5 milliime $139.8 million increase in net cash provideditgncing activities in 2012 compared with
2011 resulted from an increase in debt in 201248t % million compared with a reduction in 2011 @03$.3 million. The 2011 reduction was due
to the use of net proceeds from our IPO and coentiprivate placement to repay debt. In additiomreceived net proceeds of $178.9 million
from the issuance of equity in 2012 compared withproceeds of $288.7 million in 2011. The 201Zpsals related to our first follow-on
common stock offering and a preferred offering #2011 proceeds related to our IPO and concuprérgte placement and a preferred
offering. Dividends paid and distributions to memsbiecreased $3.9 million in 2012.
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Comparison of 2011 to 2010

The following table contains key operating metfmsour total portfolio and our same-store portidior 2011 compared with 2010
(dollars in thousands, except ADR and RevPAR):

2011 2010 Percentage Chany
Same-Store Total and Same- Same-Store
Total Portfolio Portfolio Store Portfolic Total Portfolio Portfolio
(64 hotels’ (59 hotels’ (59 hotels’ (64/59 hotels (59 hotels’
Total revenue $ 142,66: $ 132,36 $ 128,59. 10.9% 2.5%
Hotel operating expens $ 103,21 $ 95,98t $ 92,11¢ 12.(% 4.2%
Occupancy 65.(% 64.6% 63.7% 2.(% 1.4%
ADR $ 90.3: $ 89.6¢ $ 87.8¢ 2.8% 2.(%
RevPAR $ 58.6¢ $ 57.81 $ 55.9¢ 4.S% 3.5%

The total portfolio information above includes raues and expenses from the five hotel propertieacgeired in 2011 from the date of
acquisition through December 31, 2011, and opeagatiformation (occupancy, ADR, and RevPAR) for ffegiod each hotel was
owned. Accordingly, the information does not refladull twelve months of operations in 2011 foe five hotel properties acquired in 2011. In
addition, the Americlnn in Golden, CO is excludeahfi the total portfolio information due to the d#igation as held for sale at December 31,
2012. We did not acquire any hotels in 2010.

RevenuesTotal revenues increased $14.1 million, or 10.8%4142.7 million in 2011 compared with $128.6lioil in 2010. The growl
was due to a $3.8 million increase in same-storemges and $10.3 million in revenues at the fivielharoperties we acquired in 2011.

The same-store revenue increase of 2.9%, to $13iflidn in 2011 compared with $128.6 million in ZBwas due to an increase in
occupancy to 64.6% in 2011 compared with 63.7%0h02 and ADR to $89.66 in 2011 compared with $818%010. The increases in
occupancy and ADR resulted in a 3.5% increasernresstore RevPAR to $57.87 in 2011 compared with®6B5 2010. These increases were
primarily due to improving economic conditions atieg our markets, which lead to continued staéilan of revenue. The increase in revenues
occurred despite significant decrease in RevPABuaformer Choice hotels during the same period Besult of continued disruptions associated
with termination of the franchises and the losaafess to national reservations systems, pendiectigeness of new franchises. In addition, n
of the former Choice hotels operating under newdhése brands were operating under lesser-knowgeliise brands, which provide lower levels
of marketing support and guest loyalty programs i@y not be as strong as those of the larger Brakala result, occupancy, ADR, RevPAR
revenues for these hotels were adversely affected.

Hotel Operating Expensedhe 12.0% increase in total hotel operating egpsiin 2011 compared with 2010 was largely relatede
increase in revenues and the acquisition of fitelroperties in second and third quarter 201 haddition, the transition of management of our
initial hotel properties to Interstate resulte@mincrease in expenses as a percentage of reva@mgesansition in hotel management resulted in
an additional $1.9 million of expenses in 2011 cared with 2010. In 2011, we also incurred expen$&.3 million for the franchise
conversions and related renovation expenses dbtheer Choice hotels and $0.3 million of additimyalty fees as a result of franchisor
negotiations related to our IPO.
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The following table summarizes our hotel operagrgenses for our same-store (59 hotels) portfoli@011 and 2010 (dollars in
thousands):

Percentag Percentage of Reven
2011 2010 Change 2011 2010
Rooms expens $ 39,30¢ $ 38,13¢ 3.1% 29.% 29.1%
Other direct expens 20,31( 19,33: 5.1% 15.2% 15.(%
Other indirect expens 35,73t 34,00¢ 5.1% 27.(% 26.2%
Other expense 632 644 (1.€%) 0.5% 0.5%
Total hotel operating expenses $ 95,98t $ 92,11¢ 4.2% 72.5% 71.6%

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization expense increageifillion, or 10.8%, to $28.4 million in 2011
compared with 2010, primarily due to the write-offcapitalized costs related to re-franchisingftrener Choice hotels, refinancing loans, and
renovations at existing hotel properties; and thditeonal depreciation associated with newly acegiinotel properties. The 2011 depreciation and
amortization expense includes $25.4 million of fixasset depreciation, $2.2 million of financingtsamortization, and $0.8 million of franchise
fees amortization. Depreciation and amortizatiopesse in 2010 of $25.6 million includes $23.6 miiliof fixed asset depreciation, $1.8 million
of financing costs amortization, and $0.2 millidrfranchise fees amortization.

Corporate General and AdministrativeCorporate general and administrative expens&s.6fmillion in 2011 were largely new expen
following our IPO. These expenses had not previobiskn incurred by our predecessor. Included mahiount were $1.0 million of legal
expenses related to the Choice arbitration.

Other Income/Expens& he major component of other income/expense é&ést expense, which decreased $7.9 million, @981due
to the repayment of $223.7 million of debt with peeds from our IPO and concurrent private placenme2®11.

Income Tax BenefitThe income tax benefit of $1.9 million was a réstfiinet operating losses at our TRSs. The netatipgrlosses wel
primarily the result of the disruption at the hagtebperties involved in the Choice arbitration.

Cash FlowsNet cash provided by operating activities increggEgl 7 million in 2011 compared with 2010 largelyedo a decline in
prepaid expenses by our predecessor related t@eXBenses, increased expense accruals due to diffexgable timing practices of our
predecessor and Interstate, release of restriefst] and a change in net loss due to a decreageriest expense of $8.5 million. The $80.3
million increase in net cash used in investingvatitis in 2011 compared with 2010 was the resu%@.0 million acquisitions of hotel properties
in 2011 and $33.5 million of improvements and adda to hotel properties. The $69.4 million incee@snet cash provided by financing activit
in 2011 compared with 2010 was primarily due thiepmeceeds from our IPO and concurrent privategtant, partially offset by repayment of
debt and distributions paid by our predecessaistmembers prior to our IPO; the receipt of netpeals from our preferred stock offering; anc
issuance of $65.4 million of new debt related ® sknior secured revolving credit facility and tmm loan from Goldman Sachs. Immediately
prior to completion of the formation transactiomsl & accordance with the terms of the merger agee¢, during February 2011, our predecessor
paid accrued and unpaid priority returns on itss€l& and Class A-1 membership interests in the atmfu$8.3 million. Our predecessor paid
approximately $0.5 million of priority returns iirst quarter 2010. There will be no additional payrs on priority returns to former members of
our predecessor.
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Discontinued Operations

Pursuant to our strategy to continually evaluatehmtel portfolio, we periodically evaluate our @loproperties for potential sale and
redeployment of capital. When a hotel propertyolsl ®r identified as being held for sale, we refsrhistorical and future results of operations,
including impairment charges, in discontinued opens. In 2012, we began reporting the resultspafrations of the following hotel properties in
discontinued operations:

Hampton Inn, Twin Falls, I

Holiday Inn Express, Twin Falls, |
Americlnn, Twin Falls, IC

Americlnn Hotel & Suites, Missoula, M
Courtyard by Marriott, Missoula, M
Americlnn, Golden, C(

The Twin Falls, ID and Missoula, MT hotel propestigere sold in 2012. The Americinn in Golden, CG wiassified as held for sale at
December 31, 2012 and subsequently sold on Jaiag013.

A summary of results from our hotel propertiesuni@d in discontinued operations follows (in thousan

2012 2011
Revenues $ 5351 $ 8,88¢
Hotel operating expens 3,962 6,213
Depreciation and amortizatic 60¢ 1,44¢
Loss on impairment of asse 2,30t -
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass (3,009 -
Interest expense 17¢ 83¢
Total expenses 4,04t 8,49¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations befoopine taxe 1,30¢ 38t
Income tax (expense) benefit 51 121
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 1,357 $ 50€

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Short-Term Liquidity Requirements

Our short-term liquidity requirements consist priityaof operating expenses and other expendituirestlly associated with our hotel
properties including recurring maintenance andteapkpenditures necessary to maintain our hotgeties in accordance with brand standards,
capital expenditures to improve our hotel propsrténd interest expense and scheduled principah@atg on outstanding indebtedness. In
addition, we have funding requirements for the qastiion of the purchase price of hotel propertieder contract, if acquired, and distribution:
our stockholders.

We expect to fund these requirements with workiggital, cash provided by operations, and borrowurgger our senior secured
revolving credit facility. In addition, we may furide purchase price of hotel property acquisitimng cost of required capital improvements by
assuming existing mortgage debt, issuing secufitietuding partnership units issued by Summit QP)ncurring other mortgage debt. Further,
we may seek to raise capital through public orgievofferings of our equity or debt securities. ldger, certain factors may have a material
adverse effect on our ability to access these a@agmurces, including our degree of leverage, tieevof our unencumbered hotel properties,
borrowing restrictions imposed by lenders and ntackeaditions. We will continue to analyze which sms of capital are most advantageous 1
at any particular point in time, but financing magt be consistently available to us on terms tragétractive, or at all. We believe that our
working capital, cash provided by operations, beings under our senior secured revolving crediifgcand other sources of funds available to
us will be sufficient to meet our ongoing shortatdiquidity requirements for at least the next 1@mnths.
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At December 31, 2012, $36.1 million of debt (11.686ur total debt outstanding) matures prior to @eber 31, 2013, including $8.2
million of mortgage debt owed to First National Rasf Omaha paid off in January 2013, prior to mig&guAlthough we believe we will have the
capacity to repay these borrowings, if necessaryweowill be able to refinance them using drawsarralr senior secured revolving credit facil
there can be no assurances that refinance optiditsevavailable on terms acceptable to us, otlabathat our revolving credit facility will be
available to repay such maturing debt, as drawstuodr senior secured revolving credit facility atdject to certain financial covenants.

We anticipate making renovations and other nonsre@icapital expenditures with respect to our hpteperties pursuant to property
improvement plans required by our franchisors. Wfeeet 2013 capital expenditures for these actwiiehotels we own as of February 25, 2013
to be in the range of $38.0 million to $48.0 miflidVe may also make renovations and other non-iegucapital expenditures in 2013 at hotels
we acquire in the future.

Long-Term Liquidity Requirements

Our long-term liquidity requirements consist priifaof the costs of renovations and other menurring capital expenditures that nee
be made periodically with respect to our hotel prtips, maturing debt and scheduled debt paymantsacquisitions of additional hotel
properties. We expect to fund these requirementsighh various sources of capital, including workaagital, cash provided by operations, long-
term mortgage indebtedness and other borrowingsbarrowings under our senior secured revolvinglitfacility. In addition, we may fund the
purchase price of hotel property acquisitions Isyiisg securities (including partnership units isshg Summit OP). We may also seek to raise
capital through public or private offerings of aquity or debt securities. However, certain factoey have a material adverse effect on our
ability to access these capital sources, includingdegree of leverage, the value of our unencueableotel properties, borrowing restrictions
imposed by lenders and market conditions. We wifitmue to analyze which sources of capital aretradgantageous to us at any particular p
in time, but financing may not be consistently &lale to us on terms that are attractive, or at all

To satisfy the requirements for qualification &RET, we must meet a number of organizational gretational requirements, including
a requirement that we distribute annually at 18886 of our REIT taxable income to our stockholddetermined without regard to the deduction
for dividends paid and excluding any net capitahg@herefore, we will need to raise additionalitalfo grow our business and invest in
additional hotel properties. However, there is ssuaance that we will be able to borrow funds weradditional capital on terms acceptable tc
if at all. We anticipate that debt we incur in fo&ure may include, as does our current debt,iotistins (including lockbox and cash management
provisions) that under certain circumstances nrait br prohibit Summit OP and its subsidiaries froraking distributions or paying dividends,
repaying loans or transferring assets.

Outstanding Indebtedness

At December 31, 2012, we had $312.6 million in dsatured by mortgages on 68 hotel properties. Wetad 16 hotel properties
unencumbered by mortgage debt, including 15 (coimgil,843 guestrooms) operating under brands owgedarriott, Hilton, IHG and Hyatt,
that are available to be used as collateral faréutoans. We intend to secure or assume termfioancing or use our senior secured revolving
credit facility, together with other sources ofdirting, to fund future acquisitions. We may notcgea in obtaining new financing on favorable
terms, or at all, and we cannot predict the sizeions of future financings. Our failure to obtaegw financing could adversely affect our ability
grow our business.
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We maintain a prudent capital structure and, wihideratio will vary from time to time, we generaltytend to limit our ratio of
indebtedness to earnings before interest, taxgsedation and amortization (‘EBITDA”) to no moresin six to one. For purposes of calculating
this ratio, we exclude preferred stock from inddbtess. In 2012, we obtained financing through comaral preferred equity issuances and debt
financing having staggered maturities, and intencbintinue to do so in the future. Our debt inckjdend may include in the future, mortgage «

secured by hotel properties and unsecured debt.

We believe we will have adequate liquidity to mesjuirements for scheduled maturities. Howevercareprovide no assurances thai
will be able to refinance our indebtedness asdbhees due and, if refinanced, whether such refingngill be available on favorable terms.
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A summary of our debt at December 31, 2012 follglars in thousands):

Interest Rate  Amortization

December 31 Period Amount of
Lender 2012 (Years) Maturity Date Collateral Debt
$150 Million Senior Secure!
Revolving Credit Facility
Deutsche Bank AG New  3.00% See "$150 Million Senior Secured Revolvin
York Branch Variable n/a May 16, 2015 Credit Facility" 58,00(
Term Loans
ING Life Insurance and
Annuity 6.10% Fixec 20 March 1, 2032 See "Term Loans 66,17
Empire Financial Services, February 1,
Inc. 6.00% Fixec 25 2017 Courtyard by Matrriott, Atlanta, G, 18,69¢
Bank of America September 1,
Commercial Mortgag 6.41% Fixec 25 2017 Hilton Garden Inn, Smyrna, T 8,59:
Merrill Lynch Mortgage
Lending Inc. 6.384% Fixec 30 August 1, 201t Hampton Inn, Smyrna, T 5,341
Courtyard by Marriott, Scottsdale, AZ and
GE Capital Financial Inc 6.03% Fixec 25 May 1, 2017 SpringHill 14,85!
Suites by Marriott, Scottsdale, #
Chambers Ban 6.50% Fixec 20 June 24, 201 Aspen Hotel & Suites, Fort Smith, A 1,417
Bank of the Ozark 5.75% Fixec 25 July 10, 2017 Hyatt Place, Portland, O 8,77¢
February 1, Holiday Inn, Boise, ID and SpringHill Suites
MetaBank 4.95% Fixec 17 2017 by 6,78¢
Marriott, Lithia Springs, G/
September 30
Bank of Cascade 4.66% Fixec 25 2021 Residence Inn by Marriott, Portland, ¢ 12,28:
SpringHill Suites by Marriott, Bloomington,
Goldman Sach 5.67% Fixec 25 July 6, 201€ MN 14,37¢
and Hampton Inn & Suites, Bloomington, N
November 1,
BNC National 5.01% Fixec 20 2013 Hampton Inn & Suites, Fort Worth, T 5,30¢
Compass Ban 4.57% Fixec 20 May 17, 201¢ Courtyard by Marriott, Flagstaff, A 14,14«
General Electric Capital Hilton Garden Inn, Birmingham, AL (95
Corp. 5.46% Fixec 25 April 1, 2017 guestrooms 5,481
Hilton Garden Inn, Birmingham, AL (130
5.46% Fixec 25 April 1, 2017 guestrooms 6,41¢
5.37% Fixec 20 April 1, 2018 SpringHill Suites by Marriott, Denver, CC 7,99¢
5.59% Fixec 25 March 1, 201¢ Double Tree, Baton Rouge, L/ 10,43¢
4.61% Fixec 25 April 1, 2014 Country Inn & Suites, San Antonio, T> 10,56¢
AlIG 6.11% Fixec 20 January 1, 201 Residence Inn by Marriott, Salt Lake City, | 14,05¢
First National Bank of 5.25% February 1,
Omaha Variable 20 2014 Hyatt Place, Atlanta, G, 8,241
5.25% Courtyard by Marriott, Germantown, TN an
Variable 20 July 1, 201 Courtyard by Marriott, Jackson, v 14,66:



Total Term Loans 254,61
Total Debt $ 312,61:

* These three loans are cross-collateralized aadiao secured by the Aloft in Jacksonville FL, #hatt Place in Las Colinas, TX, and the
Fairfield Inn in Boise, ID

The interest rates at December 31, 2012 aboveegfiget to our use of interest rate swaps, wherdicgipe.
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$150 Million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Fadji

We have a $150.0 million senior secured revolvirgglit facility that matures on May 16, 2015, with@ption to extend for one
additional year if we meet certain requirementsutBehe Bank AG New York Branch, is administratigert, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., is
lead arranger, and the syndicate of lenders insliritsche Bank AG New York Branch, Royal Bank ah@da, KeyBank National Association,
Regions Bank, U.S. Bank National Association, aitib&nk, N.A. Citibank was added to the syndicatdNmvember 6, 2012 when we increased
the facility from $125.0 million to $150.0 millioT.he actual amount of borrowing capacity availal#pends upon the value of the hotel
properties comprising the borrowing base collateral

This facility is available to fund future acquisitis, property redevelopments and working capitglirements (including the repayment
of term debt). At December 31, 2012, the maximunowam of borrowing permitted was $112.1 million vafich we had $58.0 million borrowed,
$1.3 million in standby letters of credit and $5&hBlion available to borrow.

The current terms of our $150.0 million senior seduevolving credit facility, as amended, are dégd in the summary below.

Outstanding borrowings are limited to the leasa)f$150.0 million, (b) 60% of the aggregate apmdivalue of the borrowing base
assets, and (c) a formula related to the aggreghtisted net operating income of the borrowing lz@sets securing the facility. The borrowing
base must also have no fewer than 15 properties.

We pay interest on the periodic advances at vamates, based upon, at our option, either (a) 3,d,6month LIBOR, subject to a floc
of 0.50%, plus the applicable LIBOR margin or (¢ tapplicable base rate, which is the greatesf)ahé administrative agent’s prime rate, (y)
0.50% plus the federal funds effective rate, and.{month LIBOR (incorporating the floor of 0.50%us 1.00%, plus the applicable margin for
base rate loans. The applicable LIBOR and basematgin depends upon the ratio of our outstandamgaclidated total indebtedness to
EBITDA. The LIBOR margin ranges from 2.25% to 2.78% the base rate margin ranges from 1.25% t®4..75

The credit facility is secured primarily by a figgtiority mortgage lien on each borrowing base teasd a first priority pledge of our
equity interests in the subsidiaries that holddbeowing base assets and Summit Hotel TRS II, bivich we formed in connection with the
credit facility to wholly own the TRS lessees thegtse each of the borrowing base assets. At Deae3ib2012, the borrowing base assets are as
follows:

SpringHill Suites, Little Rock, AF
Fairfield Inn, Denver C(
Hampton Inn, Fort Collins, Ct
Staybridge Suites, Glendale, (
Americlnn, Golden, C(

Fairfield Inn, Golden, C(
Hampton Inn, Boise, I
Residence Inn, Fort Wayne,
Hilton Garden Inn, Duluth, G,
Holiday Inn, Duluth, GA
Fairfield Inn, Emporia, K¢
Holiday Inn Express, Emporia, k
Americlnn, Salina, K¢

Fairfield Inn, Salina, K¢

Fairfield Inn, Baton Rouge, L.
SpringHill Suites, Baton Rouge, L
TownePlace Suites, Baton Rouge,
Homewood Suites, Ridgeland, N
Hampton Inn, Medford, Ol
SpringHill Suites, Nashville, TI
Courtyard by Marriott, Arlington, T>
Residence Inn, Arlington, T.
Courtyard by Marriott, El Paso, T
Hampton Inn, Provo, U

Fairfield Inn, Bellevue, W/
Fairfield Inn, Spokane, W,

Prior to April 29, 2013, we may elect to incredse amount of our senior secured revolving credilifg by up to an additional $50.0
million, increasing the maximum aggregate amour$2@0.0 million, subject to the identification ofeander or lenders willing to make available
the additional amounts, including new lenders atat®p to us and the administrative agent, and stitijeadding additional properties to the
borrowing base.

We are required to comply with a series of finaharal other covenants to borrow under our seniourgel revolving credit facility. The
material financial covenants, tested quarterlyluide the following:
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a maximum ratio of consolidated indebtedness (dimatkin the loan documents) to consolidated EBIT@& defined in the loi
° documents) ranging from 7.25:1.00 to 5.75:1

a minimum ratio of adjusted consolidated EBITDA ¢egined in the loan documents) to consolidateddigharges (as defined in

loan documents) ranging from 1.40:1.00 to 1.50:1.00

a minimum consolidated tangible net worth (as defim the loan documents) of not less than $228lllom(at December 31, 201
plus 80% of the net proceeds of subsequent comegoity issuances; and

a maximum dividend payout ratio of 95% of FFO (afirced in the loan documents) or an amount necgdsamaintain REIT ta
status and avoid corporate income and excise taxes.

In January 2013, we removed the Americlnn and eddrinn in Golden, CO from the facility’borrowing base. At February 25, 2013,
maximum amount of borrowing permitted under thenteof our senior secured revolving credit facilitgs $ 112.1 million. We had no
borrowings under the facility, $3.7 million in stiby letters of credit and $ 108.4 million availatdeborrow.

Term Loans

At December 31, 2012, we had $254.6 million in témams. These term loans are secured primarilyrbydriority mortgage liens on
hotel properties.

On February 13, 2012, we consolidated four loartk ING Life Insurance and Annuity into a singlenteloan totaling $67.5 million that
matures March 1, 2032. This loan is secured bydh&wing hotel properties:

Fairfield Inn, Lewisville, TX

Hampton Inn, Denver Ci

Holiday Inn Express, Vernon Hills, |
Hampton Inn, Fort Wayne, |
Staybridge Suites, Ridgeland,
Residence Inn by Marriott, Ridgeland, I
Country Inn & Suites, Charleston, W
Holiday Inn Express, Charleston, W

Fairfield Inn & Suites, Germantown, T
Residence Inn by Marriott, Germantown, -
Holiday Inn Express, Boise, |

Hampton Inn & Suites, El Paso, 1
Hampton Inn, Fort Smith, Al

Hilton Garden Inn, Fort Collins, C
SpringHill Suites by Marriott, Flagstaff, A
Holiday Inn Express, Sandy, L

For additional information regarding our term loapkase read our audited consolidated financékstents and related notes the
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Capital Expenditures

In 2012, our capital expenditures related to hpteperties totaled $29.4 million, which includedt$2million on hotel properties that we
owned at the beginning of 2011 and $5.3 milliorhotel properties that we acquired in 2012 and 2012012, we completed renovations at 1
our hotel properties (not including renovations tlu&anchise conversions) and started renovaticaisvary in scope at 21 additional hotel
properties.

From completion of our IPO on February 14, 201bulgh December 31, 2011, we funded $28.9 millionagfital improvements at our
hotel properties. In 2011, we completed renovatadrseven of our hotel properties (not includingoreations due to franchise conversions) and
started renovations at five additional hotel prtipsr
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From time to time, we enter into dfalance sheet arrangements to facilitate our dpasatAt December 31, 2012, we had $1.3 millio

outstanding stand-by letters of credit. Theseretté credit act as credit enhancements on two teams and may be released when the operating
performance of the related hotel properties readéfimed level.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table outlines the timing of requirpdyments related to our long-term debt and otbetractual obligations at
December 31, 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Payments Due By Peric

Less than One One to Three More than Five

Total Year Years Four to Five Year Years
Debt obligation® $ 375,23t $ 51,90 $ 93,98. $ 117,52. $ 111,82¢
Operating lease obligatio® 37,50 59¢ 1,11¢ 1,16¢ 34,62:
Purchase obligatiorts 5,58¢ 5,58¢ - - -
Total $ 418,32: $ 58,08¢ $ 95,10( $ 118,68 $ 146,45(

@  Amounts shown include amortization of principal,tariies, and estimated interest payments on oligatipns. Interest payments on
variable rate obligations have been estimated uiagnterest rates in effect at December 31, 26@ft2r giving effect to our interest r.
swaps.

b)  Primarily ground leases and corporate office lec
©) Represents purchase orders and executed contracenbvation projects at our hotel propert

In addition to the contractual obligations in theae table, at December 31, 2012 we had enteregurchase agreements to acquire
hotels for $17.1 million, including the assumptifrdebt of $10.3 million. These acquisitions arbjeat to certain conditions to closing, included
the approval of the debt assumptions. Thereforezam@ot provide assurance that we will acquiregliegel properties.

We are also obligated to fund the remaining $10l0om of a $20.3 million first mortgage loan orhatel property located in downtown
Minneapolis, MN. The loan represents a portiorheftotal acquisition cost and renovation costs ebgaketo be incurred to convert the property to
a Hyatt Place hotel. Subject to certain conditimctuding the successful conversion of the propersfimated to be completed in fourth quarter
2013, we plan to purchase the property for an estich$31.0 million, which will include forgiveneskthe loan as partial purchase price
consideration. We cannot provide assurance thatiacquire this hotel property.

Inflation

Operators of hotel properties, in general, postesability to adjust room rates daily to refldw effects of inflation. However,
competitive pressures may limit the ability of ms@anagement companies to raise room rates.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andrapsions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities at the date offimancial statements and the reported amountsw@fimues and expenses during the reporting
period. While we do not believe the reported amewuuld be materially different, application of sleepolicies involves the exercise of judgment
and the use of assumptions as to future unceeaiatid, as a result, actual results could diftenfthese estimates. We evaluate our estimates an
judgments on an ongoing basis. We base our essmatexperience and on various other assumptiatsvin believed to be reasonable undel
circumstances. All of our predecessor’s significetounting policies are disclosed in the notatstoonsolidated financial statements. The
following represent certain critical accountingipigs that require us to exercise our businessmaig or make significant estimates:

Investment in Hotel Propertie

AcquisitionsWe allocate the purchase price based on the fhieva the acquired assets and assumed liabilifiessdetermine the
acquisition-date fair values of all assets andrasslliabilities using methods similar to those usgdndependent appraisers, for example, using a
discounted cash flow analysis that utilizes appedprdiscount and/or capitalization rates and ab#l market information. Estimates of future
cash flows are based on a humber of factors inefubistorical operating results, known and anti@gddrends, and market and economic
conditions. Acquisition costs are expensed as redutChanges in estimates and judgments relatie tallocation of the purchase price could
result in adjustments to our investment in hotelpgrties or intangible assets, which can affecteggation and/or amortization expense and our
results of operations.
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Depreciation and Amortizatiomdotel properties are recorded at cost and depegtising the straight-line method over an estimated
useful life of 25 to 40 years for buildings and tteal5 years for furniture, fixtures and equipméte are required to make subjective assessment
as to the useful lives of our assets for purpo$determining the amount of depreciation expengefiect each year. While we believe our
estimates are reasonable, a change in the estimseéa lives could affect our results of operasion

Impairment of Hotel PropertiesVe monitor events and changes in circumstancasdarators that the carrying value of a hotel prope
or land held for development may be impaired. Fadteat could trigger an impairment analysis inelugimong others: i) significant
underperformance relative to historical or projdateerating results, ii) significant changes inttenner of use of a property or the strategy o
overall business, iii) a significant increase imgetition, iv) a significant adverse change in ldgeators or regulations, and v) significant negati
industry or economic trends. When such factorsdmnetified, we prepare an estimate of the undistemifuture cash flows, without interest
charges, of the specific property and determimaiifinvestment is recoverable based on the undmeduuture cash flows. If impairment is
indicated, we estimated the fair value of the priypand an adjustment is made to reduce the carmatue of the property to fair value. These
assessments may affect the results of our opesation

Equity-Based Compensation

Our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan provides for thengiaf stock options, stock appreciation rightstrieted stock, restricted stock units,
dividend equivalent rights and other stock-basedrds We account for equity-based compensatiorg ki Black-Scholes option-pricing model
for stock options and the grant date fair valuewwfcommon stock for all other awards. We expehese awards over the vesting period. The
amount of the expense may be subject to adjustimduature periods depending on the attainment et#jr performance goals, which affect the
vesting of certain equity-based awards, or a chamf@feiture assumptions.

Income Taxes

Commencing with our short taxable year ended Deeer®b, 2011, we elected and qualified to be taxea BEIT. To qualify as a REIT,
we must meet certain organizational and operatimwalirements, including a requirement to distibamnually to our stockholders at least 90¢
our REIT taxable income, determined without redgarthe deduction for dividends paid and excludiagaapital gains, which does not necess
equal net income as calculated in accordance WitARS As a REIT, we generally will not be subjectféaleral income tax (other than taxes paid
by our TRSs) to the extent we currently distribl®®% of our REIT taxable income to our stockholddrae fail to qualify as a REIT in any
taxable year, we will be subject to federal incdmeon our taxable income at regular corporatenmetax rates and generally will not be
permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT foe four taxable years following the year during vihigualification is lost, unless we satisfy cer
relief provisions. Such an event could materiatlyersely affect our net income and net cash availalp distribution to stockholders. However,
we intend to be organized and operate in such aenas to qualify for treatment as a REIT.

We account for federal and state income taxes oT®$s using the asset and liability method. Defittax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences ataibetto differences between carrying amounts aftexj assets and liabilities based on GAAP
and respective carrying amounts for tax purposa$operating losses and tax-credit carry forwabagerred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to &pgalyable income in the years in which temporaiffgences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets anditied of a change in tax rates is recognizechitome in the period that includes the enactment
date. In the event that these assumptions chamgeeferred taxes may change.
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New Accounting Standards Adopted

In first quarter 2012, we adopted Accounting Stadsl&dJpdate (“ASU”) 2011-04;air Value Measurements and DisclosurgsSU 2011-
04 developed common requirements for measuring/édire and for disclosing information about faitueameasurements.

In first quarter 2012, we also adopted ASU 2011Rresentation of Comprehensive IncomfeSU 201105 required the presentatior
total comprehensive income, the components of mainne, and the components of other comprehenso@mia either in a single continuc
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdrat consecutive statements; eliminating the apt® present the components of o
comprehensive income as part of the statement afigds in equity. We elected to present a sepacaigolidated statement of comprehen
income (loss). In December 2011, the Financial Aotiog Standards Board deferred the effective datee portion of ASU 20105 related t
the presentation of reclassification adjustmenthéstatement of income by issuing ASU 2011d@mnprehensive Income (Topic 220): Defe
of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presient of Reclassifications of ltems Out of AccurtedaOther Comprehensive Income
Accounting Standards Update 2(-05.

In first quarter 2011, we adopted ASU 2010-/B48ir Value Measurements and DisclosurgsSU 2010-06 improved disclosure
requirements for transfers, classes of assetsalnitities, and inputs and valuation techniques.

Adoption of these new standards did not have anmhtdfect on our consolidated financial statemnsent
Reclassification of Certain Prior Period Financiallnformation

We reclassified $2.7 million of food and beveragsts previously included as a reduction of othéelhaperations revenue to other dir
expenses in both 2011 and 2010.

Recent Developments
Capital Markets

On January 2, 2013, we redeemed 1,974,669 Commits, Mich had been tendered November 5, 201X%Hares of our common
stock. On January 31, 2013, 249,846 Common Unite vendered for redemption, which we intend to eadéor shares of our common stock on
April 1, 2013.

On January 14, 2013, we completed our second fetlowommon stock offering of 17,250,000 shares.dXeteeds were $148.1 millic
after the underwriting discount and offering-rethéxpenses.

On January 14, 2013, we paid off two variable tate loans with First National Bank of Omaha thatevsecured by three hotel
properties. These loans totaled $22.8 million aad tmaturity dates of July 1, 2013 and FebruarnP142There were no associated prepayment
penalties. We used proceeds from our common stifeking to fund these payments.

On January 25, 2013, we closed on a $29.4 milkomtoan with KeyBank that is secured by four Hywitel properties we acquired in
October 2012. This loan has a fixed interest r&te46%, matures February 1, 2023 and amortizes 3¥gears.

We intend to use the remaining proceeds from oomeon stock offering, proceeds from the KeyBank laad borrowings under our
senior secured credit facility to fund the cashtiparof acquisitions of hotel properties under caat to purchase, currently expected to be
approximately $141.8 million. In addition, we fueedd$34.6 million to a joint venture with an afftéaof IHG for the acquisition of a Holiday Inn
Express & Suites in San Francisco, CA.

Acquisitions
On January 22, 2013, we purchased from affiliaf¢syatt, a portfolio of three hotel properties for aggregate purchase price of $36.1

million. The properties include a 151 guestroom ttiipéace in Orlando (Universal), FL, a 149 guestnddyatt Place in Orlando (Convention
Center), FL, and a 126 guestroom Hyatt Place ic&ju (Hoffman Estates), IL.
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On February 11, 2013, through a joint venture \aitheffiliate of IHG, we purchased a 252 guestroaltiddy Inn Express & Suites in
San Francisco, CA. The purchase price was $60lbmand included the assumption of debt of $23ilion. We contributed $34.6 million,
including $2.8 million in renovation reserves, e joint venture for an 80% controlling interest.

We funded the Hyatt acquisition and our contributio the joint venture with proceeds from our secfmilow-on common stock offerir
completed on January 14, 2013.

Dispositions

On January 15, 2013, we sold the Americinn & Suitdsakewood, CO for $2.6 million. On February 2513, we sold our Hampton
Inn in Denver, CO for $5.5 million.

Pending Acquisitions

We have entered into purchase agreements to a@@Beuestroom Holiday Inn Express & Suites inidiapolis (Minnetonka), MN for
$6.9 million, which includes the assumption of mrtédoan of $3.8 million, and a 97 guestroom Hil®arden Inn in Minneapolis (Eden Prairie),
MN for $10.2 million, which includes the assumptigina term loan of $6.5 million. These acquisiti@me subject to certain conditions to closing,
including the approval of the debt assumptionsctvimay not be satisfied. Therefore, we cannot peaissurance that we will acquire these hotel
properties.

On January 22, 2013, we entered into a purchasergnt to acquire five hotel properties in New @mte LA for an aggregate purchase
price of $135.0 million. These properties includsmingHill Suites and two Courtyards by MarriattNew Orleans and a Residence Inn and a
Courtyard by Marriott in Metairie. Although closimgexpected to occur prior to the end of the fipsarter of 2013, it is subject to the completion
of due diligence and other customary conditionstefore, we cannot provide assurance that we egjlisie these hotel properties.

We intend to fund the cash portion of these pendoguisitions, if completed, with proceeds from second follow-on common stock
offering and borrowings under our senior securgdliéng credit facility.

ltem 7A . Quantitative and Qualitative Disabsures about Market Risk.
Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from chanigeaterest rates, foreign currency exchange ra@smodity prices, equity prices and
other market changes that affect market-sensitisgiments. In pursuing our business strategiegtiimary market risk to which we are exposed
is interest rate risk. Our primary interest ratpasures are to 30-day LIBOR and 90-day LIBOR. Wmarily use fixed interest rate financing to
manage our exposure to fluctuations in intereststadn a limited basis we also use derivative firdinstruments to manage interest rate risk.

At December 31, 2012, we were party to four interate swap agreements, with a total notional arnofii41.1 million, where we
receive variable-rate payments in exchange for ngpfiked-rate payments. These agreements are aecbfor as cash flow hedges and have a
termination value of $0.6 million.

At December 31, 2012, after giving effect to oueiest rate swap agreements, $229.6 million, at¥%30f our debt had fixed interest
rates and $83.0 million, or 26.6%, had variablenest rates. At December 31, 2011, $122.6 milliwrs6.5%, of our debt had fixed interest rates
and $94.5 million, or 43.5%, had variable interases. Assuming no increase in the level of ouialde rate debt outstanding as of December 31,
2012, if interest rates increased by 1.0% our Haghwould decrease by $0.6 million per year.
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As our fixed-rate debts mature, they will becomigject to interest rate risk. In addition, as ouliatale-rate debts mature, lenders may
impose interest rate floors on new financing aresmgnts because of the low interest rates expedeshagng the past few years. At December 31,
2012, $36.1 million of our long-term debt is schieduo amortize or mature in 2013, of which $13iffiom has fixed interest rates and $22.9
million has variable interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemtary Data.
See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-1.
ltem9. Changes in and Disagreements witkccountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedures.
Controls and Procedures—Summit REIT
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatioBammit REIT's management, including its Chief Exae Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, Summit REIT has evaluated thfe@fveness of the design and operation of itsla$sge controls and procedures pursuant to
Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act as of theoétitke period covered by this report. Based ohéhaluation, Summit REIT’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer haa@ncluded that, as of the end of the period covbyeithis report, these disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to provide reasonablgrasse that information required to be disclosethéreports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedeguated within the time periods specified in 8tC'’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to SitREIT's management to allow timely decisions nmetyag required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovétinancial Reporting

Summit REIT’s management is responsible for esthinlg and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting, as such
term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(Rlemthe Exchange Act. Under the supervision ant thi¢ participation of Summit REIT’s
management, including Summit REIT’s Chief Executdféicer, we conducted an evaluation of the effeatiess of Summit REIT’s internal
control over financial reporting based on the freaumik in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworkued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. BaseS8unmit REIT’s evaluation under the framework irehnal Control—Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that SummiT RHEiternal control over financial reporting waeetive as of December 31, 2012.

Consolidated subsidiaries of Summit REIT acquir@dndtels ( “ acquired hotels ) in 2012. Althoudjie tacquired hotels are subject to
our controls upon acquisition, management excldded its assessment of the effectiveness of SurRBIT's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012, the acquiredi$ianternal control over financial reporting asiated with total revenue of $24.9 million
included in the consolidated financial statemeftSwnmit REIT and subsidiaries as of and for tharyded December 31, 2012.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fic@l reporting as of December 31, 2012, has begliteal by KPMG, LLP, a
independent registered certified public accountimg as stated in their report, which appears o# Bf this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportin
There have been no changes in Summit REIT’s inteargrol over financial reporting that occurredidg the last fiscal quarter of

2012 that have materially affected, or are readgriddely to materially affect, Summit REIT’s inteal control over financial reporting.
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Controls and Procedures—Summit OP
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiosammit OP’s management, including the Chief Exeeudfficer and Chief Financial
Officer of the sole member of Summit GRjeneral partner, Summit OP has evaluated thetwiaess of the design and operation of its dsck
controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-1B(t¢r the Exchange Act as of the end of the pexasgred by this report. Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chiafdncial Officer of the sole member of its gengaitner have concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this report, these disclosargrols and procedures were effective to provédesonable assurance that information required
to be disclosed in the reports filed or submittader the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, sumedand reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and thehsaformation is accumulated and communicatedumi@it OP’s management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officafrthe sole member of Summit OP’s general partt@gllow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Caot Over Financial Reporting

Summit OP’s management is responsible for estabjsgnd maintaining adequate internal control diemcial reporting, as such
term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(lemthe Exchange Act. Under the supervision ant thi participation of Summit OP’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officethe sole member of Summit OP's general partnercenducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of Summit OP’s internal control ofreancial reporting based on the framework in IngControl — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission. Based on Summit OP’s evaloathder the framework in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework, our management caledithat Summit OP’s internal control over finahoigorting was effective as of
December 31, 2012.

Summit OP acquired 19 hotels (“ acquired hotglin"2012. Although the acquired hotels are suligctur controls upon acquisition,
management excluded from its assessment of thetigffaess of Summit OP's internal control overriicial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
the acquired hotels' internal control over finaheorting associated with total revenue of $2#dilion included in the consolidated financial
statements of Summit OP and subsidiaries as ofartde year ended December 31, 2012.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2012, has badiet by KPMG, LLP, an
independent registered certified public accountimg as stated in their report, which appears ob Bf this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financi&eporting

There have been no changes in Summit OP’s inteomdtol over financial reporting that occurred dgrihe last fiscal quarter of 2012
that have materially affected, or are reasonakblylito materially affect, Summit OP’s internal ¢tarh over financial reporting.

Item 9B . Other Information.
None.
PART Ill
Item 10 . Directors, Executive Officers an€orporate Governance.

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to Summit REIT's Proxy Statementhe 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ltem 11 . Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference to Summit REIT’s Proxy StatementHe 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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Item 12 . Security Ownership of Certain Berfecial Owners and Management and Related Stockholadevatters.

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to Summit REIT's Proxy Statementhe 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Relate@ransactions, and Trustee Independence.

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to Summit REIT’s Proxy StatementHe 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Item 14 . Principal Accountant Fees and Seices.

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to Summit REIT's Proxy Statementhe 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

PART IV

ltem 15 . Exhibits and Financial Statement&edules.

1. Financial Statemen
Included herein at page-1 throughF-41
2. Financial Statement Schedu
The following financial statement schedule is imed herein at pag#-42 - F-43.
Schedule Il Real Estate and Accumulated Deprecia
All schedules for which provision is made in Regiola S-X are either not required to be includeceirepursuant to the related

instructions or are inapplicable or the relatedinfation is included in the footnotes to the aggiie financial statement.
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3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipost:

Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7t

Description of Exhibit

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of SummiteHBtoperties, Inc. (incorporated by referencexbilit 3.1 to Annual Report on
Form 1(-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Februa8g, 2012

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Summit Ho@¥P, LP, as amended (incorporated by reference libEx8.1 to Amendment No. 2
Registration Statement on Fort-A filed by Summit Hotel OP, LP on February 11, 2D

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Summit Hotel Praggennc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ® 2mendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Novemb, 2010

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limitedreeship of Summit Hotel OP, LP, dated February2D4,1, as amended
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to AnnRaport on Form 1-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febgua8g, 2012’
Specimen certificate of common stock of Summit HBteperties, Inc. (incorporated by reference thikix 4.1 to Amendment No. 5-
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febyug 2011)

Amended and Restated Hotel Management Agreemeet] &abruary 14, 2011, among Interstate Manage@emipany, LLC and the
subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. p#mgreto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Current Report on Form 8-K
filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Februagy 2011)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Hotel Memagt Agreement, dated June 30, 2011, among latefgtanagement
Company, LLC and the subsidiaries of the Compamiypghereto (incorporated by reference to Exhildit2lto Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on AugiSt 2011)

Second Letter Amendment and Limited Waiver, datetber 21, 2011, between Deutsche Bank AG New Bodnch, as
Administrative Agent and Summit Hotel OP, LP (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the Cong{saRegistration

Statement on Form-11 filed on October 24, 201

First Letter Amendment to Secured Credit Facilitgted August 15, 2011, between Deutsche Bank AG Ya Branch, as
Administrative Agent, and Summit Hotel OP, LP (iqmorated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Conypm@uarterly Report on Form
1C-Q filed on August 15, 201:

Accession Agreement, dated May 13, 2011, among Sunwtel OP, LP, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branahgd U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated herein by refieesto Exhibit 10.17 to Quarterly Report on Forr-Q filed by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on May 16, 201

$100,000,000 Credit Agreement dated April 29, 28itbng Summit Hotel OP, LP, Summit Hotel Properties,, Summit Hospitality
LLC and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, DeutsBhaek Securities Inc., Royal Bank of Canada, KeyBakional Association
and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by referémé&sxhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed Summit Hotel Properties,
Inc. on May 2, 2011

Accession Agreement, dated November 6, 2012, arSBongnit Hotel OP, LP, Deutsche Bank AG New York Btarand Citibank,
N.A.
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10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

Third Amendment to Credit Facility among Summit elabP, LP, Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Sunihoispitality |, LLC, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, Royal Bank of &#m KeyBank National Association, Regions Bank@dBdBank National
Association, dated May 16, 2012 (incorporated lbgremce to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Fork Bled by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on May 23, 201

Consolidated, Amended and Restated Loan Agreenaded d~ebruary 13, 2012, between Summit Hotel ORsAdPING Life Insurance
and Annuity Company (incorporated by referencexhiltit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed Bymmit Hotel Properties, Inc.
on February 16, 201.

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvEummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Kerry W. Bile&ide (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Current Report on F8-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febguas, 2011)*

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvEummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Daniel P.ddar(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Current Report on F8-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febsuas, 2011)*

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvEummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Craig J. 2evsski (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Current Report omk-&-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011)*

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvEummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Stuart Jk&egncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Current Report omk&-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011)*

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. 2011 Equity IncenfRlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10d8trrent Report on Form 8-K
filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Februagy 2011)*

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Summitéi@roperties, Inc. and each of its Executive €ff$ and Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Adrent No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form 8ldd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on November 1, 20:

Form of Option Award Agreement (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. 1 to Reaigin Statement on Form S-
11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Sedien23, 2010)’

Form of Lease Agreement between Summit Hotel OPaiidPTRS Lessee (incorporated by reference to Extob4 to Amendment No.
2 to Registration Statement on For-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Novemh, 2010

Sourcing Agreement between Six Continents Hotel, lvb/a InterContinental Hotels Group, and Sunttaitel Properties, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Adraent No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form 8ldd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on December 3, 20

Form of Severance Agreement between Summit Hotgdd?ties, Inc. and Christopher R. Eng (incorpor&gdeference to Exhibit
10.12 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staternarfform 11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Segten23, 2010)’
Form of Severance Agreement between Summit Hotgld?ties, Inc. and JoLynn M. Sorum (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 10.13
to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement omFg-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Segten23, 2010)’

Form of Severance Agreement between Summit Hotgd?ties, Inc. and Troy L. Hester (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed by Summit Hotel Properties on November @12)*

Form of Incentive Award Agreement between SummiteHBroperties, Inc. and its executive officerc¢irporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report of Form 10Q filed Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on May 5, 201

Form of Stock Award Agreement (Performance Basete9h between Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. aneXésutive officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to QeaytReport of Form 1-Q filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on May2B12)*
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10.24 Form of Stock Award Agreement (Service-Based Shdretsveen Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and itatiee officers (incorporated
) by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Quarterly ReporFofm 1(-Q filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on May2B12)*

12.1t Calculation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charged Breferred Stock Dividen

21.1t List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Properties;.|

21.2t List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel OP, |

23.11t Consent of KPMG LLF

311+t Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntiiotel Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14Ea)/14(a), as adopted pursuant to
' Section 302 of the SarbarOxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HdtProperties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/14(@), as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntiiotel OP, LP pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(&adopted pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HBtOP, LP pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(aqdapted pursuant to Section 302

of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit HbtProperties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectlB0]las adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the SarbarOxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HdtProperties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®#B0]1as adopted pursuant to Sec

906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit HBtOP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptad pursuant to Section 90€

the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

324t Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HBtOP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptad pursuant to Section 906 of

) the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS XBRL Instance Document(:

101.SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

101.CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase DocutGE)

101.DEFXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurti@n

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Documen

101.PREXBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Documen

312 %
3137
314 ¢
3217
322 ¢

32371

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gaarent.

T Filed herewith.

(D) Users of this data are advised punsteaRule 406 T of Regulation S-T that this intd¢iree data file is deemed not filed or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purpo&gctions 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1988amended, is deemed not filed for purpos:
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 84189s amended, and otherwise is not subjecthititjgunder these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1é&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduly authorized.

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC.
(registrant)

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Kerry W. Boekelheide
Kerry W. Boekelheidt
Executive Chairman of the Boa

SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP (registrant)
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr

Bv: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole
Y- member

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Kerry W. Boekelheide
Kerry W. Boekelheic
Executive Chairman of the Bo.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrants and in the capacities and on the dadésated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Kerry W. Boekelheid Executive Chairman of the Board February 26,320
Kerry W. Boekelheidt
/s/ Daniel P. Hanse President, Chief Executive Officer February 2613
Daniel P. Hanse and Directol

/s/ Stuart J. Becke

Stuart J. Becke

/sl Troy L. Heste

Troy L. Hestel

/s/ JoLynn M. Sorun

JoLynn M. Sorun

/s/ Bjorn R. L. Hanso

Bjorn R. L. Hansor

/s/ David S. Kay

David S. Kay

/s/ Thomas W. Store

Thomas W. Store

/sl Wayne W. Wielgu

Wayne W. Wielgu:

(principal executive officer

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer’

Chief Accounting Officer

Vice President and Controller

Director

Director

Director

Director

61

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013




Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7%1

10.8

10.9

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of SummiteHBtoperties, Inc. (incorporated by referencexbiltit 3.1 to Annual Report on
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National Association (incorporated herein by refeseto Exhibit 10.17 to Quarterly Report on Forr-Q filed by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on May 16, 201
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Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntiiotel Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14a)/14(a), as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HdtProperties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/1&@), as adopted pursuant to
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balameets of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and idisves (the Company) as
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related cdasedi statements of operations, comprehensive iadtoss), and changes in equity for
year ended December 31, 2012 and the period frdmuBey 14, 2011 (commencement of operations) thrdbgcember 31, 2011, the rele
consolidated statements of operations, compreherisaome (loss) and changes in equity of SummiteHBtoperties, LLC and subsidial
(Predecessor) for the period from January 1, 206tdugh February 13, 2011 and the year ended Decedlb@010, the related consolide
statement of cash flows of Summit Hotel Properiiles, and subsidiaries for the year ended Dece®be?012, the related combined consolid
statement of cash flows of Summit Hotel Properties, and subsidiaries and Summit Hotel Propertie§; and subsidiaries (Predecessor) fol
year ended December 31, 2011, and the related lmeteal statement of cash flows of Summit Hotel gerties, LLC and subsidiari
(Predecessor) for the year ended December 31, 2Db@nnection with our audits of the consolidatiedincial statements, we also have auc
the financial statement schedule lll. These codatdd financial statements and financial statensehedule are the responsibility of
Companys management. Our responsibility is to expresspanian on these consolidated financial statementsfaancial statement sched
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedsiials of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBo(United States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finastateiments are free of material misstater
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, eMddesupporting the amounts and disclosures initla@dial statements, assessing the accot
principles used and significant estimates made Bgagement, as well as evaluating the overall fighistatement presentation. We believe
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matengspects, the financial position of Summit H
Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decembge2@112 and 2011, and the results of Summit Hotep@rties, Inc. and subsidiaries operation
the year ended December 31, 2012 and the periad February 14, 2011 (commencement of operatiomsytiin December 31, 2011, the res
of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiariese(fecessor) operations for the period January 111 #trough February 13, 2011 and the
ended December 31, 2010, and Summit Hotel Propedi®l subsidiaries cash flows for the year endeckiber 31, 2012, Summit Hc
Properties, Inc. and Summit Hotel Properties, LInd aubsidiaries (Predecessor) combined cash flomthé year ended December 31, 2011
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Boedsor) cash flows for the year ended Decembet(1, in conformity with U.S. geners
accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinithe related financial statement schedule lllemwltonsidered in relation to the b
consolidated financial statements taken as a whoésents fairly, in all material respects, theinfation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Summit Ho
Properties, Inc.’s internal control over finanaieporting as of December 31, 2012, based on @itstablished internal Control —Integratec
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regattd February 26, 20:
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigertd the Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.’s interc@trol over financial reporting.

Our audit report on the effectiveness of interraitool over financial reporting as of December 2012, contains an explanatory paragraph
states consolidated subsidiaries of Summit Hotepétties, Inc. acquired 19 hotels (the Acquireddiftin 2012, and management excluded
its assessment of the effectiveness of Summit Heteperties, Incs internal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2012, t
Acquired Hotels’internal control over financial reporting assoaibtgith total revenue of $24.9 million included inet consolidated financ
statements of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. andislidries for the year ended December 31, 2012.andit of internal control over financ
reporting of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. alsoleded an evaluation of the internal control oveaficial reporting of the Acquired Hotels.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 26, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Unitholders
Summit Hotel OP, LP:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Summit Hotel OP, LP and subsidiattes Partnership) as of December
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statsnué operations, comprehensive income (loss), drahges in equity for the year en
December 31, 2012 and the period from February2041 (commencement of operations) through DeceBibe?011, the related consolide
statements of operations, comprehensive incoms)(fed changes in equity of Summit Hotel Propertie€ and subsidiaries (Predecessor
the period from January 1, 2011 through Februan2031 and the year ended December 31, 2010, ltedeconsolidated statement of cash fl
of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and subsidiar@stlie year ended December 31, 2012, the relatedbioed consolidated statement of cash f
of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and subsidiariesl Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiariese@@cessor) for the year en
December 31, 2011, and the related consolidatéensésmt of cash flows of Summit Hotel PropertiesCLand subsidiaries (Predecessor) fo
year ended December 31, 2010. In connection withaadits of the consolidated financial statementsalso have audited the financial stater
schedule Ill. These consolidated financial statémand financial statement schedule are the regplitysof the Companys management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesotidated financial statements and financial state schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedsiials of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBo(United States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finastateiments are free of material misstater
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, eMddesupporting the amounts and disclosures initla@dial statements, assessing the accot
principles used and significant estimates made agagement, as well as evaluating the overall fighistatement presentation. We believe
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matengspects, the financial position of Summit H
OP, LP and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012ah#l, and the results of Summit Hotel OP, LP arabigliaries operations for the year er
December 31, 2012 and the period from Februar@2] (commencement of operations) through Dece®he?011, and the results of Sumr
Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecésgoerations for the period January 1, 2011 throBghruary 13, 2011 and the year er
December 31, 2010, and Summit Hotel OP, LP andidiabies cash flows for the year ended Decembe2812, Summit Hotel OP, LP a
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Boedsor) combined cash flows for the year endectrleer 31, 2011 and Summit Hc
Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecessor) ttesls for the year ended December 31, 2010, infaramity with U.S. generally accept
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, theateld financial statement schedule Ill, when comsidién relation to the basic consolide
financial statements taken as a whole, presentg,fai all material respects, the information s®th therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Summit Hotel C
LP’s internal control over financial reporting asecember 31, 2012, based on criteria establighécternal Control —Integrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 26, 2013, expresse
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the &inhtHotel OP, LP’s internal control over financraporting.

Our audit report on the effectiveness of interraitool over financial reporting as of December 2012, contains an explanatory paragraph
states consolidated subsidiaries of Summit Hote] I and subsidiaries acquired 19 hotels (the AeguHotels) in 2012, and managen
excluded from its assessment of the effectiveneéSummit Hotel OP, L internal control over financial reporting as afdember 31, 2012, t
Acquired Hotels’internal control over financial reporting assoadihteith total revenue of $24.9 million included inet consolidated financ
statements of Summit Hotel OP, LP and subsididdethe year ended December 31, 2012. Our audittefnal control over financial reporti
of Summit Hotel OP, LP also excluded an evaluatibtine internal control over financial reportingtbe Acquired Hotels.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 26, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.:

We have audited Summit Hotel Properties, l¢the Company) internal control over financial ogimg as of December 31, 2012, basel
criteria established irinternal Control — Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohghe Treadwa
Commission (COSO). The Compasynanagement is responsible for maintaining effediternal control over financial reporting and fts
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomygag Managemeng Report on Internal Cont
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isetqpress an opinion on the Company’s internal céotrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stafedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaiasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corgwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and evadutite design and operating effectiveness of matecontrol based on the assessed risk
audit also included performing such other procesllas we considered necessary in the circumstaki¢esbelieve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assurancairegéhe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:éeor external purposes in accordance with gelyeadcepted accounting principles.
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (1) pertaitmneéomaintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet titansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€dimpany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
transactions are recorded as necessary to peregagation of financial statements in accordancé wénerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compamypeaing made only in accordance with authorizatioh management and directors of
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagaprevention or timely detection of unauthorizezhuisition, use, or disposition of
company'’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mateespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of December 31, 2012, b
on criteria established iinternal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioihthe Treadws
Commission.

Consolidated subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Propsrtiec. acquired 19 hotels (the Acquired Hotels@®12, and management excluded fror
assessment of the effectiveness of Summit HotgddPties, Inc$ internal control over financial reporting as agdember 31, 2012, the Acqui
Hotels’ internal control over financial reporting assoadibtith total revenue of $24.9 million included imetconsolidated financial statement
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and subsidiariestfar year ended December 31, 2012. Our audit ofnatecontrol over financial reporting
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. also excluded anwatan of the internal control over financial refiog of the Acquired Hotels.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Biofdnited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. aarnu$idiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 ttendelated consolidated statement
operations, comprehensive income (loss), and clsaimgequity for the year ended December 31, 2012tha period from February 14, 2(
(commencement of operations) through December @11,2the related consolidated statements of opasticomprehensive income (loss),
changes in equity of Summit Hotel Properties, L@ gubsidiaries (Predecessor) for the period franudry 1, 2011 through February 13, Z
and the year ended December 31, 2010, the relatesblidated statement of cash flows of Summit HBtelperties, Inc. and subsidiaries for
year ended December 31, 2012, the related comlzimesblidated statement of cash flows of Summit HBteperties, Inc. and subsidiaries
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Boedsor) for the year ended December 31, 201lthenelated consolidated statement of
flows of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsigiar(Predecessor) for the year ended December030, 2nd our report dated February
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosenfish statements

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 26, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Unitholders
Summit Hotel OP, LP:

We have audited Summit Hotel OP, ERthe Partnership) internal control over financegborting as of December 31, 2012, based on
established innternal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe Treadway Commissi
(COSO0). The Partnershipmanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fis assessment
the effectiveness of internal control over finahai@porting, included in the accompanying ManagefiseReport on Internal Control o
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exggen opinion on the Partnership’s internal cordvelr financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stafedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaiasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corgwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and evadutite design and operating effectiveness of matecontrol based on the assessed risk
audit also included performing such other procesllas we considered necessary in the circumstaki¢esbelieve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assurancairegéhe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:éeor external purposes in accordance with gelyeadcepted accounting principles.
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (1) pertaitmneéomaintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet titansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€dimpany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
transactions are recorded as necessary to peregagation of financial statements in accordancé wénerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compamypeaing made only in accordance with authorizatioh management and directors of
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagaprevention or timely detection of unauthorizezhuisition, use, or disposition of
company'’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, inraliterial respects, effective internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria establishedlimernal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairtbe Treadwa
Commission.

Summit Hotel OP, LP and subsidiaries acquired lfe¢leqthe Acquired Hotels) in 2012, and managenesctuded from its assessment of
effectiveness of Summit Hotel OP, LP’s internal ttohover financial reporting as of December 31120the Acquired Hotelghternal contrc
over financial reporting associated with total rewe of $24.9 million included in the consolidatéuhfcial statements of Summit Hotel OP,
and subsidiaries for the year ended December 32.2Z0ur audit of internal control over financiapogting of Summit Hotel OP, LP also exclu
an evaluation of the internal control over finahcgporting of the Acquired Hotels.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Biofdnited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Summit Hotel OP, LP and sub&diais of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and theedetainsolidated statements of operat
comprehensive income (loss), and changes in etprithe year ended December 31, 2012 and the pé&ooadFebruary 14, 2011 (commencen
of operations) through December 31, 2011, theadlabnsolidated statements of operations, compsaleeimcome (loss), and changes in ec
of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiariese¢fécessor) for the period from January 1, 201dutjin February 13, 2011 and the year e
December 31, 2010, the related consolidated statieaiecash flows of Summit Hotel OP, LP and sulzsids for the year ended Decembel
2012, the related combined consolidated statenferash flows of Summit Hotel OP, LP and subsidmdaed Summit Hotel Properties, LLC
subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the year ended Dre®i, 2011, and the related consolidated stateofieash flows of Summit Hotel Properti
LLC and subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the yeae@rdecember 31, 2010, and our report dated Feb2Br013 expressed an unquali
opinion on those financial statements

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 26, 2013
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except share amounts)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS

Investment in hotel properties, 1
Investment in hotel properties under developr
Land held for developme
Assets held for sa

Cash and cash equivale
Restricted cas

Trade receivable

Prepaid expenses and ot
Deferred charges, n

Deferred tax ass

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Derivative financial instruments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, 100000 shares authorize
9.25% Series + 2,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at Dece3tf
2012 and 2011 (liquidation preference of $50,39Betember 31
2012 and 2011
7.875% Series |- 3,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at Dece3hf
2012 (liquidation preference of $75,324 at Decand{ie 2012,
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 450,00G:8ares authorize
46,159,652 and 27,278,000 shares issued and aditsgeat December 3
2012 and 2011, respective
Additional pai¢-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I
Accumulated deficit and distributions
Total stockholders' equi
Noncontrolling interests
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2012 2011
734,36 $ 498,87
10,30: -
15,80: 20,29t
4,83¢ -
13,98 10,53
3,62 1,46+
5,47¢ 3,42t
5,311 4,721
8,89t 8,92
3,997 2,19¢
4,201 3,561
810,78 $ 554,00
312,61 $ 217,10
5,01 1,671
18,98t 15,78
641 -
337,25. 234,55
20 20

30 -

462 27¢
468,82 288,90:
(52€) -
(31,98 (11,020
436,81 278,17
36,71¢ 41,27+
473,53 319,44
810,78 $ 554,00




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (in thousands, except per share amounts)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

Summit Hotel Properties, In (Predecesso
Period 2/14/1  Period 1/1/11
through through
2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2010
REVENUES
Room revenu $ 181,59¢ $ 123,50¢ $ 13,51¢ $ 123,28t
Other hotel operations revenue 7,944 5,01t 62€ 5,30/
Total Revenues 189,54: 128,52! 14,14: 128,59:
EXPENSES
Hotel operating expens
Rooms 54,08: 37,67¢ 4,66¢ 38,25¢
Other direc 25,12¢ 19,00: 2,857 19,33:
Other indirec 51,06: 33,88¢ 4,34¢ 33,91¢
Other 911 70C 73 61E
Total hotel operating expens 131,18: 91,26« 11,94¢ 92,12
Depreciation and amortizatic 34,26: 25,11 3,24¢ 25,58¢
Corporate general and administrati
Salaries and other compensa 6,03¢ 3,082 - -
Other 3,53¢ 3,47¢ - -
Hotel property acquisition cos 3,05(C 254 - 367
Loss on impairment of assets 66( - - 6,47¢
Total Expenses 178,72 123,19( 15,19« 124,55.
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 10,81¢ 5,331 (1,052) 4,04(
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incom: 35 16 7 47
Other income 731 - - -
Interest expens (15,585 (12,609 (4,417 (24,907)
Debt transaction cos (661) - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of ass (19¢) (36) - (42
Gain (loss) on derivative financial instruments (2 - - -
Total Other Income (Expense) (15,680 (12,629 (4,410 (24,897)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATION
BEFORE INCOME TAXES (4,865 (7,299 (5,462) (20,857
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT 1,23¢ 2,18 (322) (18€)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATION (3,627) (5,10¢) (5,789 (21,045
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 1,35 92¢ (423) 12t
NET INCOME (LOSS) (2,270 (4,177 (6,207 (20,920
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TC
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (1,199 (1,240 - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SUMMIT
HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC./PREDECESSOR (1,076) (2,937) (6,207) (20,920
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS (4,625 (411 - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS/MEMBERS $ (5,70) $ (3,348 $ (6,207) $ (20,920

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDIN(



Basic 33,71% 27,27¢

Diluted 33,84¢ 27,27¢
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share ftontinuing

operation: $ 0200 $ (0.1%)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share fl@oontinuec

operations 0.0z 0.0z
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.19) $ (0.12)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)(in thousands)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

Summit Hotel Properties, In (Predecesso
Period 2/14/1  Period 1/1/11
through through
2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2010
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (2,270 $ (4,177 $ (6,207 $ (20,920
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of

Changes in unrealized loss on derivatives (639 - - -
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (639) - - -
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS (2,909 (4,177) (6,207 (20,920
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE T(

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (1,305 (1,240 - -
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE T(

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC./PREDECESS! (96%) (2,937 (6,207 (20,920
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS (4,625 (417 - -
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE T(

COMMON STOCKHOLDERS/MEMBERS $ (5,590 $ (3,348 $ (6,207 $ (20,920

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (in thousands, except share amounts)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Accumulatec Total
Shares ¢ Shares o Additional Other Accumulater  Stockholders
Preferrec Preferrec  Common Commor  Paic-In Comprehensiv  Deficit and Members  Noncontrolling Total
Stock Stock Stock Stock Capital  Income (Loss Distributions Equity Interests Equity
Predecesso
BALANCES, JANUARY 1, 201( - % = 5 63 = &3 -3 - % - % 82,92: $ (1,629 $ 81,29¢
Net income (loss - - - - - - - (20,920 - (20,920
Distributions to members - - - - - - - (53€) - (53€)
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 201 - $ - -3 -3 - $ - 3 - $ 61,46¢ $ (1,629 $ 59,84«
Net income (loss - - - - - - - (6,20%) - (6,207
Distributions to membet - - - - - - - (8,287) - (8,28:)
BALANCES, FEBRUARY 13, 2011 - $ - - $ - $ -3 - 8 - $ 46,97¢ $ (1,629 $ 45,35!
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.
Equity from Predecess - - - - - - - - 45,35t 45,35"
Net proceeds from sale
common stocl - - 27,278,00 272 240,56 - - 240,84( - 240,84(
Net proceeds from sale
preferred stocl 2,000,00t 2C - - 47,85t - - 47,87" - 47,87"
Dividends paic - - - - - - (8,089 (8,087) (2,84) (10,929
Equity-based compensatic - - - - 48( - - 48( - 48C
Net income (loss) - - - - - - (2,937) (2,937) (1,240 (4,177)
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31,201 2,000,000 $ 2C 27,278,00 $ 27 $ 288,90: $ - $ (11,020 $ 27817t $ 41,27: $319,44¢
Net proceeds from sale
common stocl - - 13,800,00 13¢ 106,26 - - 106,40! - 106,40!
Net proceeds from sale
preferred stocl 3,000,001 3C - - 72,42: - - 72,45! - 72,45!
Common stock redemption
common units - - 4,873,62 49 20% - - 254 (254) -
Dividends paic - - - - - - (19,889 (19,889 (3,177  (23,06¢)
Equity-based compensatic - - 208,02 2 1,02 - - 1,02¢ 18C 1,20¢
Other comprehensiy
income (loss - - - - - (529) - (52¢) (111 (639)
Net income (loss) - - - - - - (1,076 (1,076 (1,199 (2,270
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2012 5,000,000 $ 5C 46,159,65 $ 46z $ 468,82( $ (528 $ (31,98Y $ 436,81¢ $ 36,71¢ $473,53

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss
net cash provided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatis
Amortization of prepaid lea:
Loss on impairment of assi
Equity-based compensatic
Deferred tax ass
(Gain) loss on derivative
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Restricted cash released (fund
Trade receivable
Prepaid expenses and ot
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of hotel propertie
Investment in hotel properties under developr
Improvements and additions to hotel propel
Purchases of office furniture and equiprmr
Proceeds from asset dispositions, net of closisgs
Restricted cash released (funded)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of d
Principal payments on de
Financing fees on de
Proceeds from equity offerings, net of offerirgts
Dividends paid and distributions to members

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF PERIOD

END OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE Ol
CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest

Capitalized interest

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterr

2012 2011 2010
(2,270 (10,389 (20,920)
34,87 29,80¢ 27,25

73 47 47
2,96¢ - 6,47¢
1,20¢ 48¢ -

(1,807) (2,196) -
2 - -
(2,81)) 36 43
(69) 78t 562
(1,42¢) (394) (57)
(1,049) 1,637 (4,947)
5,00¢ 4,327 1,96:
34,70: 24,14¢ 10,42:
(216,89 (50,017 (1,419
(10,307) ; .
(29,39¢) (33,519 (1,357
(210) - -
25,88 361 15
(2,097) (316) (410
(233,009 (83,48¢) (3,165)
130,65¢ 65,38: 4,91¢
(82,317 (268,71() (10,66¢)
(2,399 (4,276) (1,239)
178,85t 288,71 -
(23,06¢) (19,20 (535)
201,74 61,90( (7,520
3,44¢ 2,56( (262)
10,53’ 7,971 8,23¢
13,98( 10,53’ 7,977
15,59: 18,85: 25,86
53 - -
43¢ 162 (22)
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SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except unit amounts)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
ASSETS
Investment in hotel properties, 1 $ 734,36: $ 498,87¢
Investment in hotel properties under developr 10,30: -
Land held for developme 15,80z 20,29t
Assets held for sa 4,83¢ -
Cash and cash equivale 13,98( 10,53
Restricted cas 3,62¢ 1,464
Trade receivable 5,47¢ 3,42¢
Prepaid expenses and ot 5,311 4,721
Deferred charges, n 8,89t 8,92¢
Deferred tax ass 3,997 2,19¢
Other assets 4,201 3,561
TOTAL ASSETS $ 810,78¢ $ 554,00!
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Debt $ 312,611 $ 217,10:
Accounts payabl 5,01z 1,671
Accrued expense 18,98¢ 15,78:
Derivative financial instruments 641 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 337,25: 234,55t
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
EQUITY
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., 46,159,652 an@23,000 common uni
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 201fpeotisely, and 5,000,0C
and 2,000,000 preferred units outstandingestenber 31, 2012 ai
2011, respectively (preferred units liquidatmreference of $125,717 a
$50,393 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, raesphot 436,81¢ 278,17¢
Unaffiliated limited partners, 5,226,375 and T®,000 common uni
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 201fieotisely 36,71¢ 41,27«
TOTAL EQUITY 473,53 319,44¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 810,78¢ $ 554,00!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (in thousands, except per unit amounts)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

Summit Hotel OP, LI (Predecesso
Period 2/14/1  Period 1/1/11
through through
2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2010
REVENUE
Room revenu $ 181,59¢ $ 123,50¢ $ 13,51¢ $ 123,28t
Other hotel operations revenue 7,944 5,01t 62€ 5,30/
Total Revenue 189,54: 128,52! 14,14: 128,59:
EXPENSES
Hotel operating expens
Rooms 54,08: 37,67¢ 4,66¢ 38,25¢
Other direc 25,12¢ 19,00: 2,857 19,33:
Other indirec 51,06: 33,88¢ 4,34¢ 33,91¢
Other 911 70C 73 61E
Total hotel operating expens 131,18: 91,26« 11,94¢ 92,12
Depreciation and amortizatic 34,26: 25,11 3,24¢ 25,58¢
Corporate general and administrati
Salaries and other compensa 6,03¢ 3,082 - -
Other 3,53¢ 3,47¢ - -
Hotel property acquisition cos 3,05(C 254 - 367
Loss on impairment of assets 66( - - 6,47¢
Total Expenses 178,72 123,19( 15,19« 124,55.
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 10,81¢ 5,331 (1,052) 4,04(
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incom: 35 16 7 47
Other income 731
Interest expens (15,585 (12,609 (4,417 (24,907)
Debt transaction cos (661) - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of ass (19¢) (36) - (42
Gain (loss) on derivative financial instruments (2 - - -
Total Other Income (Expense) (15,680 (12,629 (4,410 (24,897)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATION
BEFORE INCOME TAXES (4,865 (7,299 (5,462) (20,857
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT 1,23¢ 2,18 (322) (18€)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATION (3,627) (5,10¢) (5,789 (21,045
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,35 92¢ (423) 12t
NET INCOME (LOSS) (2,270 (4,177) (6,207 (20,920
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS (4,625 (411 - -
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TC
COMMON UNIT HOLDERS $ (6,895 $ (4,58¢) $ (6,207) $ (20,920
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON UNITS OUTSTANDINC
Basic 40,78( 37,37¢
Diluted 40,91: 37,37¢

EARNINGS PER UNIT
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per unit frantauing



operation: $ 0200 $ (0.15)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per unit frdetantinuec
from discontinued operations 0.0 0.0z

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.17) $ (0.12)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP AND SUMMIT HOTEL
PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)(in thousands)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Changes in unrealized loss on derivatives

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS

PREFERRED DIVIDENDS

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE T(
COMMON UNIT HOLDERS/MEMBERS

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

Summit Hotel OP, LI (Predecesso
Period 2/14/1  Period 1/1/11
through through

2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2010
(2,270) $ (4,177 $ (6,207 $ (20,920
(639) - - -
(639 - - -
(2,909 (4,177) (6,207 (20,920
(4,625 (417) - -
(7,539) $ (4,589 $ (6,200 $ (20,920

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP AND SUMMIT HOTEL

PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (in thousands)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Preferrec Common
Total
Members'
Unaffiliated
Summit Hotel ~ Summit Hotel Limited Noncontrolling Total
Properties, Inc  Properties, Inc  Partners' Equit Interests Equity

Predecesso
BALANCES, JANUARY 1, 201( $ - $ - $ 82,927 $ (1,629 81,29¢

Net income (loss - - (20,920 - (20,920

Distributions to members - - (535) - (535)
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2010 $ - $ - $ 61,46¢ $ (1,629 59,84

Net income (loss - - (6,207 - (6,207

Distributions to members - - (8,282) - (8,2872)
BALANCES, FEBRUARY 13, 2011 $ - $ - $ 46,97¢ $ (1,629 45,35¢
Summit Hotel OP, LP

Equity from predecessor a

limited partners $ - % - % 45,35F $ - 45,35¢

Contributions 47,87¢ 240,84( - - 288,71!

Distributions (417 (7,672) (2,84)) - (10,929

Equity-based compensatic - 48C - - 48C

Net income (loss) 411 (3,349 (1,240 - (4,177
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2011 $ 47,878 $ 230,300 $ 41,27 $ - 319,44¢

Contributions 72,45 106,40! - - 178,85¢

Common stock redemption of common ui - 254 (259 - -

Distributions (4,625 (15,269 (3,179 - (23,06€)

Equity-based compensatic - 1,02t 18C - 1,20¢

Other comprehensive income (lo - (528 (117 - (639

Net income (loss) 4,62F (5,709 (1,199 - (2,270
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2012 $ 120,32¢ $ 316,49. $ 36,71¢ $ = 473,53

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP AND SUMMIT HOTEL
PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss
net cash provided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatis
Amortization of prepaid lea:
Loss on impairment of assi
Equity-based compensatic
Deferred tax ass
(Gain) loss on derivative
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Restricted cash released (fund
Trade receivable
Prepaid expenses and ot
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of hotel propertie
Investment in hotel properties under developr
Improvements and additions to hotel propel
Purchases of office furniture and equiprmr
Proceeds from asset dispositions, net of closisgs
Restricted cash released (funded)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of d
Principal payments on de
Financing fees on de
Contributions
Distributions

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF PERIOD

END OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE Ol
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash payments for interest

Capitalized interest

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterr

2012 2011 2010
(2,270 (10,389 (20,920)
34,87 29,80¢ 27,25

73 47 47
2,96¢ - 6,47¢
1,20¢ 48¢ -

(1,807) (2,196) -
2 - -
(2,81)) 36 43
(69) 78t 562
(1,42¢) (394) (57)
(1,049) 1,637 (4,947)
5,00¢ 4,327 1,96:
34,70: 24,14¢ 10,42:
(216,89 (50,017 (1,419
(10,307) ; .
(29,39¢) (33,519 (1,357
(210) - -
25,88 361 15
(2,097) (316) (410
(233,009 (83,48¢) (3,165)
130,65¢ 65,38: 4,91¢
(82,317 (268,71() (10,66¢)
(2,399 (4,276) (1,239)
178,85t 288,71 -
(23,06¢) (19,20 (535)
201,74 61,90( (7,520
3,44¢ 2,56( (262)
10,53’ 7,971 8,23¢
13,98( 10,53’ 7,977
15,59: 18,85: 25,86
53 - -
43¢ 162 (22)
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC., SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP, AND SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) isedf-advised hotel investment company that wasrorga on June 30, 2010 as a Maryland
corporation. The Company holds both general aniddahpartnership interests in Summit Hotel OP, ttfe (Operating Partnership”), a Delaware
limited partnership also organized on June 30, 20t0February 14, 2011, the Company closed omitigli public offering (“IPO”)of 26,000,00(
shares of common stock and a concurrent privateepiant of 1,274,000 shares of common stock. Effedtebruary 14, 2011, the Operating
Partnership and Summit Hotel Properties, LLC (tAestlecessor”) completed the merger of the Predacesth and into the Operating
Partnership (the “Merger”). At the effective timktbe Merger, the outstanding Class A, Class Alas€B, and Class C membership interests in
the Predecessor were converted into and cancaellexchange for, a total of 9,993,992 common urfifsaotnership interest in the Operating
Partnership (“Common Units”), and the members efRinedecessor were admitted as limited partnatrseeddperating Partnership. Also effective
February 14, 2011, The Summit Group, Inc. (“The BlitnGroup”), the parent company of the Predecessmtributed its 36% Class B
membership interest in Summit Group of Scottsdatizona LLC (“Summit of Scottsdale”) to the OperggiPartnership in exchange for 74,829
Common Units and an unaffiliated third-party inestontributed its 15% Class C membership intéreSummit of Scottsdale to the Operating
Partnership in exchange for 31,179 Common Unite. Hitedecessor owned 49% of Summit of Scottsdade foriFebruary 14, 2011. Effective
February 14, 2011, the Company contributed therateeds of the IPO and the concurrent privateeptent to the Operating Partnership in
exchange for an aggregate of 27,274,000 CommorsUnitluding Common Units representing the soleegarpartnership interest in the
Operating Partnership, which are held by a whollyed subsidiary of the Company as the sole geparater of the Operating Partnership.
Unless the context otherwise requires, “we” and™oefer to the Company and the Operating Partiprsbilectively.

While the Operating Partnership was the survivaaraf the legal acquirer of the Predecessor in tbg®t, for accounting and financial reporting
purposes, the Predecessor is considered the aswpantuirer in the Merger. As a result, the hisedrconsolidated financial statements of the
Predecessor are presented as the historical cdatalifinancial statements of the Company and therd®ing Partnership after completion of the
Merger and the contributions of the Class B andeintrership interests in Summit of Scottsdale taddperating Partnership (collectively, the
“Reorganization Transaction”).

As a result of the Reorganization TransactionQperating Partnership and its subsidiaries acquiotel ownership of the 65 hotels in its initial
portfolio. In addition, the Operating Partnershifa dts subsidiaries assumed the liabilities, inzlgdndebtedness, of the Predecessor and its
subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2012, our portfolio consists ofuécale, upper midscale and midscale hotels wittedof 9,019 guestrooms located in 21

states. The hotels are leased to subsidiaries (‘T#¥Sees”) of our taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS#/e indirectly own 100% of the
outstanding equity interests in the TRS Lessees.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentatio

The accompanying consolidated financial statemefitise Company include the accounts of the ComptlreyQOperating Partnership, and their
subsidiaries. The accompanying consolidated firrdistatements of the Operating Partnership inclbdeccounts of the Operating Partnership
and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompadrgtances and transactions have been eliminatdx ioansolidated financial statements.

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsiriormity with U.S. generally accepted accounpnigciples, which requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities at the date ettnsolidated financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses in the repomtingdp Actual results could differ from those esttes.

We made certain reclassifications to the prior-ygemncial information to conform to our 2012 pretion, which included the reclassification of
$2.7 million of food and beverage costs previoustyuded as a reduction of other hotel operatingnee to other direct expenses in both 2011
and 2010. These reclassifications had no effegrewiously reported results of operations or gquit

Investment in Hotel Propertie

We allocate the purchase price of hotel acquisstimased on the fair value of the acquired assetassumed liabilities. We determine the
acquisition-date fair values of all assets andrasslliabilities using methods similar to those usgindependent appraisers, for example, using a
discounted cash flow analysis that utilizes appeatprdiscount and/or capitalization rates and at#l market information. Estimates of future
cash flows are based on a number of factors inefubistorical operating results, known and antiggddrends, and market and economic
conditions. Acquisition costs are expensed as necur

Our hotel properties and related assets are reg@tdeost, less accumulated depreciation. We diggitdne costs of significant additions and
improvements that materially extend a propertyfs [These costs may include hotel refurbishmentwation, and remodeling expenditures. We
expense the cost of repairs and maintenance.

We depreciate our hotel properties and relatedsasseng the straight-line method over their estadaiseful lives as follows:

Classification Estimated Useful Lives
Buildings and improvemen 25 to 40 year
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 2 to 15 year

We periodically reevaluate asset lives based on current assessnfieatsaining utilization, which may result in chasge estimated useful live
Such changes are accounted for prospectively ahtheriease or decrease depreciation expense.

When depreciable property and equipment is retratisposed of, the related costs and accumulagpckdiation are removed from the balance
sheet and any gain or loss is reflected in cumeetations.

F-17




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC., SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP, AND SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On a limited basis, we provide financing to develgpof hotel properties for development or majookation. We evaluate these arrangements to
determine if we participate in residual profitstioé hotel property through the loan provisionstheo agreements. Where we conclude that these
arrangements are more appropriately treated asvastment in the hotel property, we reflect thenlea an investment in hotel properties under
development in our consolidated balance sheettadtified as hotel properties under developmeninterest income is recognized on the loan
and interest expense is capitalized on our invastimethe hotel property during the constructiorremovation period.

We monitor events and changes in circumstancesdizators that the carrying value of a hotel proper land held for development may be
impaired. Factors that could trigger an impairnmamdlysis include, among others: i) significant upgeformance relative to historical or projec
operating results, ii) significant changes in theenmer of use of a property or the strategy of eerall business, iii) a significant increase in
competition, iv) a significant adverse change galdactors or regulations, and v) significant nagaindustry or economic trends. When such
factors are identified, we prepare an estimatd@findiscounted future cash flows of the specifopprty and determine if the investment is
recoverable. If impairment is indicated, we estigrthte fair value of the property and an adjustnsentade to reduce the carrying value of the
property to fair value.

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operat

We classify assets as held for sale in the periadhich certain criteria are met, including whea #ale of the asset within one year is probable.
Assets held for sale are no longer depreciatechemndarried at the lower of carrying amount or Yailue, less cost to sell.

We present the results of operations of hotel pt@sethat have been sold or otherwise qualifyssets held for sale in discontinued operations if
the operations and cash flows of the hotel propeftave been or will be eliminated from our ongaipgrations.

We periodically review our hotel properties and laund held for development based on establisheerierisuch as age, type of franchise, adverse
economic and competitive conditions, and stratégito identify properties which we believe aréheir nonstrategic or no longer complement
business.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchaséith an original maturity of three months or lés$e cash equivalents. At times, cash on
deposit may exceed the federally insured limit. M&ntain our cash with high credit quality finardrestitutions.

Restricted Cas

Restricted cash consists of certain funds maintkim&scrow for property taxes, insurance, anchoedapital expenditures. Funds may be
disbursed from the account upon proof of expenedwand approval from the lenders.

Trade Receivables and Credit Policies

We grant credit to qualified customers generallthait collateral, in the form of trade accountsreable. We believe our risk of loss is minimal
due to our periodic evaluations of the credit wiortlss of our customers.
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Trade receivables result from the rental of hatelms and the sales of food, beverage, and banguétes due under normal trade terms requ
payment upon receipt of the invoice. Trade recdashre stated at the amount billed to the cust@mérdo not accrue interest.

We review the collectability of our trade receivabmonthly. A provision for losses is determinedtanbasis of previous loss experience and
current economic conditions. There were no materabllectible receivables and no allowance forldfuh accounts recorded as of December
2012 and 2011. Bad debt expense was $0.2 milli@®1? and was not significant in 2011 or 2010.

Deferred Charge

Our deferred charges consist of deferred finanfg@ieg and initial franchise fees. Costs incurreditaining financing are capitalized and
amortized on the straiglite method over the term of the related debt, thaipproximates the interest method. Initial fraeeHees are capitaliz
and amortized over the term of the franchise agee¢msing the straight-line method.

Noncontrolling Interest

A noncontrolling interest represents the portioe@dity in a subsidiary held by owners other thedonsolidating parent. Noncontrolling
interests are reported in the consolidated balaheets within equity, separately from stockholdetgiity. Revenue, expenses and net income
(loss) attributable to both the Company and normrodlimtg interests are reported in the consolidatiedements of operations.

Our consolidated financial statements include naotrodling interests related to Common Units of @gerating Partnership held by unaffiliated
third parties.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue when rooms are occupied amdeag have been rendered. Revenues are recortletiarey sales and other taxes collected
from customers. All rebates or discounts are remwik a reduction to revenue.

Sales and Other Taxes

We have operations in states and municipalitiesithpose sales and/or other taxes on certain 3Me<ollect these taxes from our customers
remit the entire amount to the various governmamték. The taxes collected and remitted are exiftbm revenues and are included in accrued
expenses until remitted.

Equity-Based Compensation

Our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan provides for thengiaf stock options, stock appreciation rightstrieted stock, restricted stock units, dividend
equivalent rights, and other stock-based awardsd&t¥ermine the fair value of stock options at gdate using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The fair value of other awards is basechergtant date price of our common stock. We exptrese awards over the vesting period. The
amount of the expense may be subject to adjustimduature periods depending on the attainment et8jr performance goals, which affect the
vesting of certain equity-based awards, or a chanf@feiture assumptions.
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Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedgi

All derivative financial instruments are recordédadr value and reported as a derivative finanitisfrument asset or liability in our consolidated
balance sheets. We use interest rate derivatiiesdge our risks on variable-rate debt. Interdstdarivatives could include swaps, caps and
floors. We assess the effectiveness of each hedelationship by comparing changes in fair valueash flows of the derivative financial
instrument with the changes in fair value or cdstv$ of the designated hedged item or transaction.

For interest rate derivatives designated as cashtfedges the effective portion of changes invfaiue is initially reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)aretjuity section of our consolidated balance sta®tgeclassified to interest expense in our
consolidated statements of operations in the péniechich the hedged item affects earnings. Th&eg&ve portion of changes in fair value is
recognized directly in earnings through gain (lassderivative financial instruments in the condated statements of operations.

Income Taxe

Commencing with our short taxable year ended Deeer®b, 2011, we elected to be taxed as a REIT wetgin provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code. To qualify as a REIT, we must megdioeorganizational and operational requirementsuding a requirement to distribute
annually to our stockholders at least 90% of oufTRExable income, determined without regard todbduction for dividends paid and exclud
net capital gains, which does not necessarily egeiaincome as calculated in accordance with géperecepted accounting principles. As a
REIT, we generally will not be subject to federatome tax (other than taxes paid by our TRSs)d@#tent we currently distribute 100% of our
REIT taxable income to our stockholders. If we faifualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we Wwél subject to federal income tax on our tax
income at regular corporate income tax rates andrgdly will not be permitted to qualify for treaémt as a REIT for the four taxable years
following the year during which qualification issip unless we satisfy certain relief provisions.

We account for federal and state income taxes 0T®$s using the asset and liability method. Defétex assets and liabilities are recognize
the future tax consequences attributable to diffezs between carrying amounts of existing assetdiarilities based on generally accepted
accounting principles and respective carrying ansftor tax purposes, and operating losses andrekitcarry forwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratpe@rd to apply to taxable income in the yearshickiwvtemporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tartasand liabilities of a change in tax rates@®gaized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date of the change in tax rates.

Fair Value Measuremet
Fair value measures are classified into a threediair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the itp used in measuring fair value as follows:
Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actarkets.

Level 2 Directly or indirectly observable inputs, otherthguoted prices in active marke
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which require a reporting entity teedep its own assumption
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value a@aseld on one or more of the following valuationéiegues:

Market approac! Prices and other relevant information generatethlket transactions involving identical or compégadssets or liabilitie:

Cost approac Amount required to replace the service capacitgroasset (replacement co:

Income approach  Techniques used to convert fatmm@unts to a single amount based on market exmedincluding present-value, option-
pricing, and exce-earnings models

Our estimates of fair value were determined usiralable market information and appropriate valatinethods. Considerable judgment is
necessary to interpret market data and develomat&d fair value. The use of different market agstions or estimation methods may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value amaus classify assets and liabilities in the failueshierarchy based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.

We elected not to use the fair value option fohcasd cash equivalents, restricted cash, tradévedites, prepaid expenses and other, debt,
accounts payable, and accrued expenses. With tepon of our fixed-ate debt, the carrying amounts of these finaneg&fuments approxima
their fair values due to their short-term natur@aniable interest rates.

New Accounting Standart

In first quarter 2012, we adopted Accounting Stadsl&Jpdate (“ASU”") 2011-04;air Value Measurements and DisclosurésSU 2011-04
developed common requirements for measuring fairevand for disclosing information about fair valmeasurements.

In first quarter 2012, we also adopted ASU 2011Rgsentation of Comprehensive Inconf&SU 201165 required the presentation of tota
comprehensive income, the components of net incamdthe components of other comprehensive incdtineren a single continuous staternr
of comprehensive income or in two separate butemrs/e statements; eliminating the option to pnesiee components of other comprehern
income as part of the statement of changes inyeqWié elected to present a separate consolidatenstnt of comprehensive income (loss
December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standamir@deferred the effective date of the portioA8fJ 201105 related to the presentatior
reclassification adjustments in the statement obime by issuing ASU 2011-1Zomprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of tHfedfive
Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Redieaons of ltems Out of Accumulated Other Comprsiive Income in Accounting Stand:
Update 2011-05

In first quarter 2011, we adopted ASU 2010-B&ir Value Measurements and DisclosurésSU 2010-06 improved disclosure requirements for
transfers, classes of assets and liabilities, apdt$ and valuation techniques.

Adoption of these new standards did not have anmbtffect on the consolidated financial stateraaftthe Company, our Operating Partnership,
or our Predecessor.
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NOTE 3 - HOTEL PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS

Hotel property acquisitions in 2012 and 2011 inelgith thousands):

Date Acquirec Franchise/Bran Location Purchase Pric Debt Assumet
2012
January 1: Courtyard by Marriot Atlanta, GA $ 28,90( $ 19,01:
February 2¢ Hilton Garden Inr Birmingham (Liberty Park), Al 11,50( -
February 2¢ Hilton Garden Inr Birmingham (Lakeshore), A 8,62¢ -
May 16 Courtyard by Marriot Dallas (Arlington), TX 15,00¢( -
May 16 Hilton Garden Inr Nashville (Smyrna), T! 11,50¢( 8,70¢
June 21 Hilton / Hampton Inn & Suite Nashville (Smyrna), Tt 8,00( 5,38¢
July 2 Residence Inn by Marrio Dallas (Arlington), TX 15,50( -
October £ Hyatt Place Dallas (Arlington), TX 9,05¢ -
October & Hyatt Place Denver (Lone Tree), Ci 10,53( -
October £ Hyatt Place Denver (Englewood), Ct 11,51t -
October £ Hyatt House Denver (Englewood), Ct 13,48( -
October £ Hyatt Place Baltimore (Owings Mills), MC 10,23t -
October & Hyatt Place Chicago (Lombard), Il 17,02t -
October £ Hyatt Place Phoenix, AZ 5,02( -
October £ Hyatt Place Scottsdale, Az 10,53( -
October 2: Hilton Garden Inr Fort Worth, TX 7,20( -
December 2: Residence Inn by Marrio Salt Lake City, UT 19,95¢ 14,05¢
December 2 Hyatt Place Long Island (Garden City), N 31,00( -
December 27 Hilton / Hampton Inn & Suites Tampa (Ybor City), FL 20,84« -
Total 2012 19 hotel properties $ 265,41 $ 47,16.
2011
April 15 Hilton / Homewood Suite Jackson (Ridgeland), M $ 7,35(C $ -
April 27 IHG / Staybridge Suite Denver (Glendale), Ct 10,00( -
April 27 IHG / Holiday Inn Duluth, GA 7,00( -
May 25 Hilton Garden Inr Duluth, GA 13,35( -
July 28 Courtyard by Marriott El Paso, TX 12,35( -
Total 2011 5 hotel properties $ 50,05( $ -

The allocation of the aggregated purchase pricésetair value of assets and liabilities acquii@cthe above acquisitions follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Land $ 33,87 $ 7,25¢
Hotel buildings and improvemer 220,59¢ 41,36¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 10,94 1,42¢
Other assets 62¢ 36E
Total assets acquire 266,04 50,41¢
Debt assume 47,16: -
Other liabilities 1,99: 39¢
Net assets acquire $ 216,89 $ 50,017
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Total revenues and net income (loss) for hotel @rigs acquired in 2012 and 2011, which are indudeour consolidated statements of
operations for the years 2012 and 2011are (in Hols:

2012 Acquisition: 2011 Acquisitions

2012 2012 2011
Revenues $ 24,93¢ $ 16,84« $ 10,29:
Net income (loss $ 1,75¢ $ 2,451 $ 1,98¢

The results of operations of acquired hotel propgire included in the consolidated statementgefations beginning on their respective
acquisition dates. The following unaudited conddns® forma financial information presents the hessof operations as if the 2012 and 2011
acquisitions had taken place on January 1, 2014 uhlaudited condensed pro forma information exduigcontinued operations, is for
comparative purposes only, and is not necessadligative of what actual results of operations widuhve been had the hotel acquisitions taken
place on January 1, 2011. This information doegpogbort to represent results of operations fanriperiods.

The unaudited condensed pro forma financial infeionafor 2012 and 2011, assuming the hotel propemicquired in 2012 and 2011 were
acquired at the beginning of 2011, follows (in thands, except per share):

2012 2011
(unaudited
Revenues $ 72,567 $ 83,98¢
Net income (loss $ 23,84( $ 7,49¢
Net income (loss) per share attributable to com
stockholders - basic and diluted $ 0.5¢ $ 0.2C

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT IN HOTEL PROPERTIES

Investment in hotel properties at December 31, 20422011 include (in thousands):

2012 2011
Land $ 105,57: $ 76,84¢
Hotel buildings and improvemer 649,69¢ 444,37
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 124,38! 103,82:
879,65! 625,04«
Less accumulated depreciation 145,29: 126,16¢

$ 73436. $ 498,87t

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENT IN HOTEL PROPERTIES UNDER DEVEL OPMENT

In 2012, we entered into an agreement with aniafilof Hyatt Hotels Corporation to fund $20.3 ioifl in the form of a first mortgage loan on a
hotel property in downtown Minneapolis, MN. The $2@nillion represents a portion of the total acdiais cost and renovation costs expected to
be incurred to convert the property to a Hyatt laatel. Subject to certain conditions, includihg successful conversion estimated to be
completed in fourth quarter 2013, we plan to pusehihie hotel property. Since we anticipate pasdidiyg in the residual profits of the hotel
property, we have classified this loan as an imaest in hotel properties under development. We mateecognized interest income on the loan;
however, we capitalized interest expense of $0llomin 2012 on our investment. At December 31120our total investment in this hotel
property, including capitalized interest was $1@iBion.
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NOTE 6 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale at December 31, 2012 includn¢usands):

2012
Land $ 3,097
Building 1,47¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 27C
$ 4,83¢

Assets held for sale include the Americinn & Suite§olden, CO, which was sold on January 15, 2@hd,land parcels in Jacksonville, FL and

Missoula, MT, which are under contract to sell.

NOTE 7 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash at December 31, 2012 and 2011diesl(in thousands):

Property FF&E

Lender Taxes Insurance Reserve: 2012 2011
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Lending Inc $ 7% % 13 $ 634 $ 72¢ % =
Bank of America Commercial Mortga 23 22 59¢ 63€
ING Life Insurance and Annuil 514 - 10€ 62C 95&
Goldman Sach 13z 97 15¢€ 38¢ 322
First National Bank of Omar - - 35€ 35€ -
General Electric Capital Corporatir 32¢ - - 32¢ -
Bank of the Ozark 32 42 227 301 123
Marriott Internationa - - 187 187 -
GE Capital Finance Ini 80 - - 80 -
National Western Life Insuran: - - - - 64

$ 1,18 $ 18C $ 225¢ % 3,62¢ $ 1,46¢

NOTE 8 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER

Prepaid expenses and other at December 31, 20120d4rddnclude (in thousands):

2012
Deposits on pending acquisitio $ 2,75¢
Prepaid insuranc 663
Income tax receivabl -
Other 1,88¢
$ 5,311

2011
$ 2,641
42€

452

1,207

$ 4,721
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NOTE 9 - DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferred charges at December 31, 2012 and 20ldd@d¢in thousands):

2012 2011
Initial franchise fee: $ 6,201 $ 5,81(
Deferred financing costs 9,50( 7,581
15,70: 13,39
Less accumulated amortization 6,80¢ 4,467
Total $ 8,89 $ 8,92¢

Amortization expense for 2012, 2011 and 2010 wath@usands):

2012 2011 2010

Initial franchise fee: $ 784 % 834 % 15€
Deferred financing costs 2,29¢ 2,19% 1,822

$ 3,087 $ 3,027 $ 1,97¢

Future amortization expense is expected to bén@indands):

2013 $ 2,73:
2014 1,871
2015 90¢€
2016 703
2017 501
Thereafter 2,181

$ 8,89t

NOTE 10 - OTHER ASSETS
Other assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 inlutteousands):

2012 2011

Prepaid land leas $ 3,46¢ $ 3,541
Seller financed notes receivable 732 26

$ 4,201 $ 3,561
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NOTE 11 - DEBT

Our debt is comprised of a senior secured revoleneglt facility and term loans secured by varibogel properties. At December 31, 2012 and
2011 our debt included (in thousands):

Interest
Rate at  Amortizatior Number of
Note  December Period Properties
Lender Referenc 31, 2012 a (Years) Maturity Date Encumbere 2012 2011
Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facil
3.00%
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch b) Variable n/a May 16, 2015 26 $ 58,000 $ 11,42¢
Term Loans
6.10%
ING Life Insurance and Annuit c) Fixed 20 March 1, 203: 16 66,17 -
-- - - - - 27,64¢
-- - - - - 28,15¢
-- - - - - 6,047
-- - - - - 7,65t
6.00% February 1,
Empire Financial Services, In d) Fixed 25 2017 1 18,69¢ -
6.41% September 1,
Bank of America Commercial Mortgay e) Fixed 25 2017 1 8,59 -
6.384%
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Lending Inc f) Fixed 30 August 1, 201! 1 5,341 -
6.03%
GE Capital Financial Inc 0) Fixed 25 May 1, 2017 2 14,85: -
National Western Life Insuran -- - - - 13,19
6.50%
Chambers Ban h) Fixed 20 June 24, 201 1 1,417 1,507
5.75%
Bank of the Ozark i) Fixed 25 July 10, 2017 1 8,77¢ 6,33¢
4.95% February 1,
MetaBank )] Fixed 17 2017 2 6,78¢ 7,05¢
4.66% September 3C
Bank of Cascade k) Fixed 25 2021 1 12,28: 12,55°
5.67%
Goldman Sach Fixed 25 July 6, 201¢€ 2 14,37¢ 14,64«
5.01% November 1,
BNC National Fixed 20 2013 1 5,30¢ 5,51¢
-- - - - - 5,70(
4.57%
Compass Ban ) Fixed 20 May 17, 201¢ 1 14,14« 16,08:
5.46%
General Electric Capital Corporati m) Fixed 25 April 1, 2017 1 5,481 -
5.46%
m) Fixed 25 April 1, 2017 1 6,41¢ -
5.37%
n) Fixed 20 April 1, 2018 2 7,99¢ 8,31t
5.59%
n) Fixed 25 March 1, 201¢ 2 10,43« 10,70¢
4.61%
n) Fixed 25 April 1, 2014 2 10,56¢ 10,86(
6.11%
AlIG 0) Fixed 20 January 1, 201 1 14,05¢ -
5.25% February 1,
First National Bank of Omal p) Variable 20 2014 1 8,241 8,557
5.25%

p) Variable 20 July 1, 2013 2 14,66 15,13"




Total Term Loans 42 254.61! 205,67¢

Total Debt 68 $ 312,61 $ 217,10

Notes:
a) Interest rates at December 31, 2012 give efifectir use of interest rate swaps, where applicable

b) This is a $150.0 million facility with DeutsclBank AG New York Branch as the administrative agent Deutsche Bank Securities as the lead
manager. The syndicate of lenders includes DeutBehk&, Royal Bank of Canada, KeyBank National Agsgm, Regions Bank, U.S. Bank
National Association, and Citibank, N.A. We payeirst on advances at varying rates, based upoar aption, either (i) 1, 2, 3, o-month

LIBOR, subject to a floor of 0.50%, plus a LIBOR mgia between 2.25% and 2.75%, depending upon tieeahour outstanding consolidated
indebtedness to EBITDA (as defined in the loan doents), or (ii) the applicable base rate, whictihnésgreatest of the administrative agent’s
prime rate, 0.50% plus the federal funds effectate, or 1-month LIBOR (incorporating the floor@50%) plus 1.00%, plus a margin between
1.25% and 1.75%, depending upon the ratio of ouditg consolidated indebtedness to EBITDA. Avaligbunder the facility is subject to a
borrowing base of properties pledged as collatandlother conditions. At December 31, 2012, thedvaing base was $112.1 million, of which

we had $58.0 million borrowed, $1.3 million in sty letters of credit, and $52.8 million availabdeborrow.
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c) On February 13, 2012, we consolidated and refied our four loans with ING Life Insurance and Aty (“ING”) into a single term loan. IN
has the right to call the loan in full at March2D19, 2024 and 2029. If the loan is prepaid pgoanaturity, other than if called, there is a
prepayment penalty equal to the greater of i) 1%hefprincipal being prepaid or ii) the yield ma&nance premium.

d) On January 12, 2012, we entered into a termtoamodify the loan assumed in our acquisitionhaf Courtyard by Marriott in Atlanta, GA.

e) On May 16, 2012, we assumed a term loan in cguisition of the Hilton Garden Inn in Smyrna, This loan is subject to defeasance if
prepaid.

f) On June 21, 2012, we assumed a term loan imoguisition of the Hampton Inn & Suites in Smyrfill,. This loan is subject to defeasance if
prepaid.

g) On April 4, 2012, we refinanced two National \Wées Life Insurance loans with GE Capital Finandigl. The new loans have prepayment
penalties of 1% plus defeasance and are crossiimfaund cross-collateralized.

h) On June 24, 2012, we refinanced and extendech#terity of this loan. We also replaced a guardirtgn an affiliate of our Predecessor with a
guaranty from Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. limitechon-recourse carve-outs.

i) On June 29, 2012, we refinanced and extendeth#tarity of this loan. In addition, we borrowedadfditional $2.5 million representing the
amount available pursuant to the earn-out provisidhe loan. The interest rate is fixed for thyears, with the rate variable at 90-day LIBOR
plus 3.75% with a floor of 5.5% thereafter.

) On February 14, 2012, we refinanced and exteridednaturity of this loan. The new loan has a gyement penalty in the first two years of 3
in year three of 2%, and in years four and fiva%f.

k) The fixed rate of 4.66% resets on SeptembeB06 to the then-current Federal Home Loan Bartkesittle Intermediate/Long-Term,
Advances Five-year Fixed Rate plus 3.00%.

[) This loan has a variable interest rate of 30-dBOR plus 350 basis points (3.71% at Decembe2812). On October 11, 2012, we entered
into an interest rate derivative that effectivebyneerted 85% of this loan to a fixed rate.

m) On March 2, 2012, we entered into two term |danshe purchase of two Hilton Garden Inns in Birgham, AL. The interest rate on these
new term loans is fixed for the first three yeand ¢hen each loan will convert to a variable rdt8@day LIBOR plus 5.28%. The loans may not
be prepaid in the first year and have prepaymemalfies in the second year of 2% and in the th&aryof 1%. These loans are cross-defaulted anc
cross-collateralized.

n) These loans have a variable interest rate afe80LIBOR plus 350 basis points. On May 4, 2012 entered into interest rate derivatives that
effectively converted these loans to a fixed rateese loans are cross-defaulted and cross-coliatta
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0) On December 20, 2012, we assumed a term loanriacquisition of the Residence Inn by MarriotSalt Lake City, UT. This loan has a
prepayment penalty of the greater of 1% or thedyeaintenance premium.

p) These loans have a variable interest rate afe§0LIBOR plus 4.0% and a floor of 5.25% and amssrdefaulted and cross-collateralized.

Our total fixed-rate and variable-rate debt at Detoer 31, 2012 and 2011, after giving effective wo ioterest rate derivatives, follows (in
thousands):

2012 2011
Fixec-rate deb $ 22958 § 122,63
Variable-rate debt 83,02¢ 94,47

$ 312610 % 217,10

Maturities of long-term debt for each of the nexefyears are (in thousands):

2013 $ 36,10z
2014 10,80(
2015 58,37(
2016 33,74¢
2017 67,43¢
Thereafter 106,16(

The weighted average interest rate for all borrgaiwas 5.15% and 5.38% at December 31, 2012 arid Bfspectively.

In 2011, we utilized $227.2 million of the net peecls from our IPO and concurrent private placerteptepay the following mortgage
indebtedness in full, including associated costs:

— $89.3 million to Fortress Credit Corp., including.$ million of exit fees, interest and legal fe

— $78.2 million to Lehman Brothers Bank, including4nillion in extinguishment premium and other saction costs

— $21.4 million to Marshall & Isley Bank; ar

— $38.3 million to First National Bank of Omat

Information about the fair value of our fixed-rakebt that is not recorded at fair value followstfinusands):

2012 2011
Carrying
Value Fair Value Carrying Value  Fair Value Valuation Technigu
Fixed-rate debt $ 188,56! $ 193,44( $ 122,830 $ 122,95( Level 2 - Market approach

At December 31, 2012, we had $41.0 million of deith variable interest rates that had been condeddixed interest rates through derivative
financial instruments which are carried at fairnalDifferences between carrying value and faineaf our fixed-rate debt are primarily due to
changes in interest rates. Inherently, fixed-ratet ds subject to fluctuations in fair value.
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NOTE 12 - ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2012 and 204idm¢in thousands):

2012 2011
Accrued sales and property ta: $ 8,89: $ 6,141
Accrued salaries and benet 5,56: 2,11t
Accrued interes 1,031 80€
Other accrued expenses 3,49¢ 6,71¢

$ 18,98t $ 15,78

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Ground Leases

We lease land for two hotel properties in Fort 8im&R under the terms of operating ground leaseeagents expiring August 2022 and May
2030. We have options to renew these leases fardsethat range from 5-30 years. We lease landtierhotel property in Duluth, GA under the
terms of an operating ground lease agreement agpipril 1, 2069. We also have a prepaid land léasevo hotel properties in Portland, OR
which expires in June 2084 and had a remaininggidpalance of $3.5 million at December 31, 201@ 2@1.1. Total rent expense for these le
for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $0.4 million, $0.4 iolland $0.2 million, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments for noncancelablrating leases with a remaining term in excessefyear are (in thousands):

2013 $ 43¢
2014 44¢
2015 46C
2016 471
2017 482
Thereafter 34,62

$ 36,92:

In addition, we lease land for one hotel propemtarden City, NY under a PILOT (payment in lieuafes) lease. We pay a reduced amount of
property tax each year of the lease as rent. Tdeelexpires on December 31, 2019. Upon expirafitiredease, we expect to exercise our right to
acquire a fee simple interest in the hotel for nahconsideration.

Franchise Agreements

All of our hotel properties, except for our indedent hotel, operate under franchise agreementsmagbr hotel franchisors. The terms of our
franchise agreements generally range from 10 tge2@s with various extension provisions. Each fnésar receives franchise fees ranging from
2% to 6% of each hotel property’s gross revenué,smme agreements require that we pay marketirsgofegp to 4% of gross revenue. In
addition, some of these franchise agreements eethat we deposit a percentage of the hotel prgpagtoss revenue, generally not more than
5%, into a reserve fund for capital expenditura2012, 2011 and 2010, we expensed fees relatmar toanchise agreements of $20.7 million,
$15.2 million and $14.0 million, respectively.
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Management Agreements

Our hotel properties operate pursuant to manageaggaements with various third-party managementpeones. The terms of our management
agreements range from three to 25 years with vagatension provisions. Each management compaeyesca base management fee, generally
a percentage of total hotel property revenuesomescases there are also monthly fees for ceraiices, such as accounting, based on numt
rooms. Generally there are also incentive feesthasettaining certain financial thresholds. In 2@hd 2011, we expensed fees related to our
hotel management agreements of $9.2 million an@ @#llion, respectively. Our predecessor did na tiérd-party management companies,
therefore, there was no expense related to managgsmgreements in 2010.

Pending Hotel Property Acquisitions

At December 31, 2012, we had purchase agreemarasHoliday Inn Express & Suites in Minneapolis (Metonka), MN and a Hilton Garden

Inn in Minneapolis (Eden Prairie), MN that have hetn closed as of the issuance of these finasteigiments. The aggregated purchase prices ©
these hotel properties is $17.1 million, which ut#gs debt to be assumed of $10.3 million. Theseisitigns are contingent upon customary
closing conditions and approval of the debt assiongt therefore, there is no assurance that thibypgcompleted.

Litigation
We are involved from time to time in litigation sirig in the ordinary course of business; howeverave not currently aware of any actions
against us that we believe would have a signifid@pict on our financial condition or results okogtions.

In March and June 2011, Choice Hotels Internatidnal (“Choice”) terminated the franchise agreetaem 11 of our hotel properties. We filed
an arbitration action against Choice claiming wifohtermination of our franchise agreements. Ipogse to our arbitration action, Choice made
counterclaims of fraudulent inducement, negligeisrapresentation, breach of contract, and tradeiméikgement. The parties agreed to litigate
all claims in the arbitration action. The arbitoatihearings were held in December 2011 and Jara@drg. In April 2012, the arbitration panel
determined, among other things, that Choice impigpgerminated the 11 franchise agreements, thaidghis not entitled to recover liquidated
damages in connection with the 11 hotel properéied,that we did not make any materially false meading statements to Choice or omit any
material information. The panel awarded us damagtse amount of $0.3 million as full settlementatifclaims submitted in the arbitration. We
received these funds on April 30, 2012. Neithetypamas entitled to recover attorney’s fees.

Following the termination of the 11 franchise agneats with Choice, we entered into new licenseandhise agreements for all 11 hotel
properties. On April 6, 2011, we entered into ariige agreement with Holiday Hospitality Franchising. for the Holiday Inn in Boise, ID. On
April 15, 2011, we entered into franchise agreem&iith Americinn International, LLC for five hotels Salina, KS; Missoula, MT; Golden, CO;
Twin Falls, ID; and Fort Smith, AR. On May 17, 201le entered into a license agreement with Caiisorfor the Country Inn & Suites in San
Antonio, TX. On June 24, 2011, we entered intcaadhise agreement with Marriott International, fioc.the SpringHill Suites in Bloomington,
MN. On August 5, 2011, we entered into a franchigeeement with Hilton Worldwide for the DoubleTiaeBaton Rouge, LA. On August 22,
2011, we entered into a franchise agreement wittribtafor the Fairfield Inn & Suites in Fort Worti X, upon completion of certain capital
improvements, which were completed in the secoradtquof 2012. On August 24, 2011, we enteredanfi@nchise agreement with
InterContinental for the Holiday Inn Express in @aston, WV.
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NOTE 14 - EQUITY

Common Stock

On February 14, 2011, we completed our IPO of 2@ shares of common stock and our concurrevaterplacement of 1,274,000 shares of
common stock. Net proceeds received from the IRDtla@ concurrent private placement were $240.8anijllafter underwriting discounts of
$17.7 million and offering-related expenses of $7iBion. We contributed the net proceeds to the@ping Partnership in exchange for Common
Units, representing limited and general partnersitigrests. The Operating Partnership primarilyditse proceeds to pay down debt.

On October 3, 2012, we completed our first followadfering and issued 13,800,000 shares commok tomet proceeds of $106.4 million,
after the underwriting discount and offering-rethéxpenses of $6.1 million. We contributed thepreteeds to the Operating Partnership in
exchange for Common Units. The Operating Partngnséd the proceeds to fund the cash portion afisitigns of 10 hotels that were under
contract to purchase and pay down the principarsad of our senior secured revolving credit facilit

In 2012, we issued 4,873,625 shares of common s$tolakited partners of the Operating Partnershgpruredemption of their Common Units. In
addition, we issued 208,027 shares of common stoolar independent directors and executive offipensuant to our 2011 Equity Incentive
Plan.

Preferred Stock

On October 28, 2011, we completed a public offedfg,000,000 shares of 9.25% Series A Cumulatieddemable Preferred Stock for net
proceeds of $47.9 million, after the underwritingodunt and offering-related expenses of $2.1 omllWe contributed the net proceeds of this
offering to the Operating Partnership in excharmmgePreferred Units. The Operating Partnership tiseghroceeds to pay down the principal
balance of our senior secured revolving creditlitsci

On December 11, 2012, we completed a public offeoiin3,000,000 shares of 7.875% Series B Cumul&ae@eemable Preferred Stock for net
proceeds of $72.5 million, after the underwritingodunt and offering-related expenses of $2.5 amillMWe contributed the net proceeds of this
offering to the Operating Partnership in excharmgePfeferred Units. The Operating Partnership tiseghroceeds to pay down the principal
balance of our senior secured revolving creditlitsci

Both our Series A and Series B preferred stock laa$25 per share liquidation preference and pagelins at an annual rate of $2.3125 per share
of Series A and $1.96875 per share of Series Repef stock. Dividend payments are made quarterdyriears on or about the last day of
February, May, August and November of each year.

Noncontrolling Interest
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, unaffiliated thiagtips owned 5,226,375 and 10,100,000 Common Whitee Operating Partnership
representing 10% and 27% limited partnership istarethe Operating Partnership, respectively.

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement,nméggy February 14, 2012, the unaffiliated thirdtigarhave the right to cause us to redeem their
Common Units in exchange for cash based upon thede of an equivalent number of our sharesoofimon stock at the time of redemption

at our option, shares of our common stock on afonene basis. The number of shares of our comntark $ssuable upon redemption of
Common Units may be adjusted upon the occurrencertdin events such as share dividends, sharéviibds or combinations.
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In 2012, we redeemed 4,873,625 Common Units fof3@25 shares of our common stock.

We classify outstanding Common Units held by utiatéd third parties as noncontrolling interestspanponent of equity in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. The portion of nenirec(loss) allocated to these Common Units is tedayn the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBihe2012 and the period February 14, 2011 thrdggember 31, 2011 as net income (loss)
attributable to noncontrolling interests.

NOTE 15 - BENEFIT PLANS

On August 1, 2011, we initiated a qualified conitiry retirement plan (the “Plan”), under Secti@1) of the Internal Revenue Code which
covers all full-time employees who meet certaigibllity requirements. Voluntary contributions mbag made to the Plan by employees. The Plan
is a Safe Harbor Plan and requires a mandatoryamptontribution. The employer contribution expefar the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 was $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respety.

NOTE 16 - EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

Our equity-based awards were issued under our EQuity Incentive Plan which provides for the gragtbf stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, restricted stock unitgidgnd equivalent rights, and other equity-basedrd or incentive awards up to an aggregate of
2,318,290 shares of common stock. Stock optionstggamay be either incentive stock options or natified stock options. Vesting terms may
vary with each grant, and stock option terms areegdly five to ten years. We have outstanding tyefpsed awards in the form of stock options
and restricted stock awards. All of our existingiggbased awards are classified as equity awards.

Stock Options
Concurrent with the completion of our IPO, we gezhoptions to our executive officers to purchade®0 shares of common stock. These

options have an exercise price of $9.75 per slta@enarket value of the common stock on the datgait, and vest ratably over five years based
on continued service, or upon a change in control.

The fair value of stock options granted was estahaising a Black-Scholes valuation model and theviing assumptions:

2011
Expected dividend yiel 5.09%
Expected stock price volatilit 56.6%
Risk-free interest rat 2.51%
Expected life of options (in year 6.5
Weighted average estimated fair va
of options at grant date per sh $ 3.4¢

The expected dividend yield was calculated basesuomnnual dividend payments. The expected vitjatilas based on historical monthly price
changes of a peer group of comparable entitiesdbas¢he expected life of the options at the datgant. The risk-free interest rate was based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the ddtgrant. The expected life of options is the agernumber of years we estimate that options will
be outstanding.
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The following table summarizes stock option acgivinder our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan for 2012:

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Weighted Value
Average (Current
Weighted Remaining Value Less
Number of Average Contractual Exercise
Options Exercise Pric Terms Price)
(Per share (In years) (in thousands
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 940,000 $ 9.7t 8 $ -
Grantec - $ -
Exercisec - 3% =
Forfeited (47,000 $ 9.7t
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 893,000 ¢ 9.7¢ 8 3 -
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 - % - $ -

At December 31, 2012, the exercise price of oustantling options exceeds the market price of oomaeon stock.

Time-Based Restricted Stock Awards

On April, 25, 2012, we awarded time-based restlisteck awards for 110,137 shares of common swokit executive officers. These awards
vest over a three year period based on continustteg25% at December 31, 2012 and 2013 and 5@&etmber 31, 2014), or upon a change
in control. The holders of these awards have et to vote the related shares of common stockecgive all dividends declared and paid
whether or not vested.

The following table summarizes time-based restiist®ck activity under our 2011 Equity IncentivariPfor 2012:

Weighted Averag

Grant Date Fair Aggregate
Number of Share Value Current Value
(Per share (In thousands
Nor-vested January 1, 20 -
Grantec 110,13° $ 7.7¢€
Vested (27,539 $ 7.7¢€
Forfeited -
Non-vested December 31, 2012 82,60 $ 7.7¢ $ 78E

PerformanceéBased Restricted Stock Awards

On April, 25, 2012, we awarded performance-basstlicted stock awards for 82,602 shares of comnmekgo our executive officers. These
awards vest ratably over a three year period stitjebe attainment of certain performance goats@mtinued service, or upon a change in
control. No shares vested during 2012. The holdEtisese awards have the right to vote the relglhedles of common stock and any dividends
declared will be accumulated and will be subjedhtosame vesting conditions as the awards.
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The following table summarizes performance-bassttioted stock activity under our 2011 Equity Intbem Plan for 2012:

Weighted Averag

Grant Date Fair Aggregate
Number of Share Value Current Value
(Per share (In thousands

Non-vested January 1, 20: -

Grantec 82,60: $ 7.7¢

Vested -

Forfeited -

Non-vested December 31, 2012 82,60: ¢ 7.7¢ $78¢

Director Stock Awards

On June 7, 2012, we granted 15,288 shares of comstook to our directors and, concurrent with themptetion of our IPO on February 11, 2011,
we granted 4,000 shares of common stock to ouctdire These grants were made under our 2011 Ebpaigntive Plan and were vested upon
grant.

Equity-Based Compensation Expense
Equity-based compensation expense for 2012 and @@&Xin thousands):

2012 2011
Included in corporate general and administrativarizs
and other compensation in the consolidated statenoéoperation:
Stock option: $ 70C $ 441
Time-based restricted stor 214 -
Performance-based restricted stock 171 -
1,08t 441
Included in corporate general and administrativeeoin
the consolidated statements of operat
Director stock 12C 39
$ 1,208 $ 48C

The amount of expense may be subject to adjustiméature periods depending upon the attainmespetific goals, which affect the vesting of
the performance-based restricted stock, or a chianttpe forfeiture assumptions.

Unrecognized equity-based compensation expens#l foon-vested awards was $3.1 million at Decen3iiei2012. We expect to recognize this
cost over a remaining weighted-average periodyafets.

NOTE 17 - LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

In 2012, we recognized impairments totaling $2.Bioni related to the Americinns in Twin Falls, IBlissoula, MT and Lakewood, CO. These
hotel properties were sold in 2012 or classifietiels for sale at December 31, 2012, and theiradpey results, including impairment charges,
included in discontinued operations. In additienconjunction with sale of our Missoula, MT hotebperties, we determined that a land parcel in
Missoula was impaired and wrote it down to its faitue due to the change in estimated holding geAs a result, a loss on impairment of $0.7
million was charged to operations.
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In 2011, we did not incur a loss on impairment.

In 2010, our Predecessor, in conjunction with #rentnation of a contract for sale of land helddexrelopment, determined that four land parcels
were impaired and wrote them down to their faiueal As a result, a loss on impairment of $6.5iamllwas charged to operations in 2010.

NOTE 18 - DERIVITIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDG ING

We are exposed to interest rate risk through otiabterate debt. We manage this risk primarily by mangdie amount, sources, and duratio
our debt funding and through the use of derivdiivancial instruments. Specifically, we enter inferivative financial instruments to manage our
exposure to known or expected cash payments relataar variable-rate debt. The maximum lengthiraktover which we have hedged our
exposure to variable interest rates with our exgstierivative financial instruments is approximatstven years.

Our objectives in using derivatives financial instients are to add stability to interest expense@ntanage our exposure to interest rate
movements. To accomplish these objectives, we pilynsse interest rate swaps as part of our inteete risk management strategy. Our interest
rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges invodvieteipt of variable-rate payments from a copay in exchange for making fixed-rate
payments over the life of the agreements withoaharge of the underlying notional amount.

Our agreements with our derivative counterpart@gain a provision where if we default, or are ddpaf being declared in default, on any of
indebtedness, then we could also be declared autlefn our derivative financial instruments.

Information about our derivative financial instrumte at December 31, 2012 follows (dollar amounthausands):

Number of
Instruments Notional Amoun Fair Value Valuation Technigu

Interest rate swaps (liability) 4 $ 41,098 $ (641) Level 2 - Market Approach

As of December 31, 2012, we had not posted angteodll related to these agreements and were hoeath of any financial provisions of the
agreements. If we had breached any agreement fmnasjsve could have been required to settle ougatibns under these agreements at their
aggregate termination value of $0.6 million at Dmber 31, 2012.

The table below details the location in the finahstatements of the loss recognized on derivdithaacial instruments designated as cash flow
hedges (in thousands). We had no derivative firgistruments in 2011.
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2012
Gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other cormgarsive income on derivative financial
instruments (effective portion) $ (786€)
Gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other m@hnensive income to interest expense
(effective portion) $ (147
Gain (loss) recognized in gain (loss) on derivafimancial instruments (ineffective portion ant
amounts excluded from effectiveness testing) $ (2)

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreherisoane related to derivative financial instrumentt be reclassified to interest expense as
interest payments are made on the hedged variatdedebt. In 2013, we estimate that an additio@a8 #illion will be reclassified from other
comprehensive income as an increase to intereshegp

NOTE 19 - INCOME TAXES

Our deferred tax asset of $4.0 million and $2.2iomlat December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelgtes primarily to the taxable loss of our
TRSs. Our earnings (losses), other than in our TR@snot generally subject to federal corporatestate income taxes due to our REIT election.
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we estimated netitpg loss carry forwards of our TRSs for fedenadl state income tax reporting purposes of
$11.7 million and $6.2 million, respectively. Nolwation allowances have been recorded againsteferréd tax assets, as we believe the benefit
is fully realizable based upon projected futureatd® income.

We had no unrecognized tax benefits at Decembe2®I2 or in the three year period then ended. Vde&xno significant changes in
unrecognized tax benefits due to changes in taitipes within one year of December 31, 2012. Weehaw material interest or penalties relating
to income taxes recognized in the consolidate@stants of operations for 2012, 2011 or 2010 ohéndonsolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2012 or 2011.

Current tax liabilities of $0.2 million and $0.1lkwn at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivaly included in accrued expenses in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and telatate and local tax expense of the Operatingn&aship.

The components of income tax expense (benefi2@d2, 2011 and 2010 are (in thousands):

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

Summit Hotel Properties, In (Predecesso
Period 2/14/11 Period 1/1/11
2012 through 12/31/1  through 2/13/1. 2010
Current:
Federa $ - $ - $ - $ -
State and loce 512 (129 33¢ 20z
Deferred:
Federal (34% (1,53)) (1,867 - -
State and local (6%) (270 (329 - -
$ (1,289 $ (2,325 $ 33¢€ $ 202
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Our Predecessor was a limited liability company alhéederal taxable income flowed through and teasble to its members.

For federal income tax purposes, the cash distdbsifpaid to our common and preferred shareholdessbe characterized as ordinary income,
return of capital (generally non-taxable), or calpjains.

A summary of the average taxable nature of our comand Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferradetids for 2012 and 2011 follows:

Common Dividend: Preferred Dividend

2012 2011 2012 2011
Total dividends per share $ 0.45$ 0.2¢ $ 2.31% 0.21
Ordinary income 44.8% 33.8% 100.0% 100.0(%
Capital gair 27.0% 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Return of capital 28.1%% 66.11% 0.0(% 0.0(%
100.0(% 100.0(% 100.0(% 100.0(%

NOTE 20 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

We have adjusted our consolidated statement ofatipas for 2012, 2011 and 2010 to reflect the djmra of hotel properties sold or classified as
held for sale in discontinued operations. Thesellmbperties include the Hampton Inn, Holiday Express, and Americlnn in Twin Falls, ID
which were sold in May 2012; the Americinn in Mistm MT which was sold in August 2012; the Courtiyby Marriott in Missoula, MT which
was sold in December 2012; and the Americlnn &eih Golden, CO which was classified as held & at December 31, 2012 and
subsequently sold on January 15, 2013. There weh®tel properties sold or classified as held &e $n 2011 or 2010.

Condensed results for the hotel properties includetiscontinued operations follows (in thousands):

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. Summit Hotel Properties, LLC

and Summit Hotel OP, L (Predecesso
Period 2/14/1  Period 1/1/11
through through
2012 12/31/11 2/13/11 2010
REVENUE $ 5351 $ 8,132 $ 75z $ 9,781
Hotel operating expens 3,962 5,48t 72¢€ 6,517
Depreciation and amortizatic 60¢ 1,267 181 1,66¢
Loss on impairment of asse 2,30¢ - - -
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass (3,009 - - -
Interest expense 17¢ 58¢ 24¢ 1,46(
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,04 7,341 1,15¢ 9,64
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXE! 1,30¢ 791 (40€) 13¢
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT 51 13¢ (17) (14)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS $ 1,357 $ 92¢ $ (427 $ 12t
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTEREST $ 23t $ 251 $ (119 $ 34
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS
MEMBERS $ 1,12: $ 67¢ $ (309 $ 91
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NOTE 21 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE/UNIT

We apply the two-class method of computing earnpegsshare, which requires the calculation of sspagarnings per share amounts for our non-
vested time-based restricted stock awards anduioc@mmon stock. Our non-vested time-based restristock awards contain nonforfeitable
rights to dividends and are considered securitigismparticipate in undistributed earnings with enam stock. Under the two-class computation
method, net losses are not allocated to particigatecurities unless the holder of the securityaheantractual obligation to share in the losses.
Our non-vested time-based restricted stock awardsthave such an obligation so they are not afiémtlosses.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had 893,000 46890 stock options outstanding, respectively ctvlavere not included in the computation
of diluted earnings per share, as the options’@seiprice was greater than the average market pfiour common shares.

In 2012 and 2011, our basic and diluted earningsipgre are based on basic weighted average comsimaoes outstanding due to our loss from
continuing operations.

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.
Below is a summary of the components used to cleddasic and diluted earnings per share (in tholssaxcept per share):

2012 2011
Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (3,627 $ (5,106
Less: Preferred dividen 4,62¢ 411
Allocation to participating securgi 37 -
Attributable to noncontrolling intste (1,429 (1,499
Income (loss) attributable to common sharehol
from continuing operatior (6,860 (4,026
Income (loss) attributable to common sharehol
from discontinued operations 1,122 67¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharmddrsl $ (5,739 $ (3,349
Denominator
Weighted average common shares outstar- basic 33,71 27,27¢
Dilutive effect of equity-based compensation algar 132 -
Weighted average common shares outstandingtedilu 33,84¢ 27,27¢
Earnings per common she- basic and dilutec
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharmd¢rs
from continuing operatior $ 0.20) $ (0.15)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shaddrs
from discontinued operations 0.02 0.0z
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharmddrsl $ (0.179) $ (0.12)
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC., SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP, AND SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summit Hotel OP, LP
Below is a summary of the components used to aleddasic and diluted earnings per unit (in thodsaexcept per unit):

2012 2011
Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (3,627 $ (5,106€)
Less preferred dividends 4,62F 411
Income (loss) attributable to common unitholc
from continuing operatior (8,257) (5,517
Income (loss) attributable to common unitholc
from discontinued operations 1,35] 92¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common unitieod $ (6,895 $ (4,589
Denominator
Weighted average common units outstan- basic 40,78( 37,37¢
Dilutive effect of equity-based compensation aigar 132 -
Weighted average common units outstanding -efilut 40,91: 37,37¢
Earnings per common ur- basic and dilutec
Net income (loss) attributable to common unitleod
from continuing operatior $ 0.20) $ (0.15)
Net income (loss) attributable to common unitieok
from discontinued operations 0.02 0.0
Net income (loss) attributable to common unitieotd $ (0.17) $ (0.12)

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Equity Transactions

On January 3, 2013, we redeemed 1,974,669 Commits, Miich had been tendered November 5, 201%Hares of our common stock. On
January 31, 2013, 249,846 Common Units were teddereedemption, which we intend to redeem forshaf our common stock on April 1,
2013.

On January 14, 2013, we completed our second fetlowommon stock offering of 17,250,000 shares.dxeteeds were $148.1 million, after
underwriting discount and offering-related expenses

On January 31, 2013, our Board of Directors dedlaeesh dividends of $0.1125 per share of commarks&®.578125 per share of 9.25% Series
A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, and $0p482hare of 7.875% Series B Cumulative Redeenkablerred Stock. These dividends
payable February 28, 2013.

Debt Transactions
On January 14, 2013, we paid off two variable tatms loans with First National Bank of Omaha thatevsecured by three hotel properties. T
loans totaled $22.8 million and had maturity date3uly 2013 and February 2014. There were no &socprepayment penalties.

On January 25, 2013, we closed on a $29.4 mileomtoan with KeyBank that is secured by four & Hyatt hotels we acquired in October
2012. This loan has a fixed interest rate of 4.46ftures February 1, 2023, and amortizes over 8fsye
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC., SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP, AND SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hotel Property Acquisitions Closed

On January 22, 2013, we purchased from affiliafé¢syatt, a portfolio of three hotel properties for aggregate purchase price of $36.1 million.
The properties include a Hyatt Place in Orlandoiyersal), FL, a Hyatt Place in Orlando (Conventi@enter), FL, and a Hyatt Place in Chicago
(Hoffman Estates), IL.

On February 11, 2013, through a joint venture \aithaffiliate of IHG, we purchased a Holiday Inn Eegs & Suites in San Francisco, CA. The
purchase price was $60.5 million and included gmimption of debt of $23.5 million. We contribu&&#.6 million, including $2.8 million in
renovation reserves, to the joint venture for a¥o&ontrolling interest.

Hotel Property Purchase Agreements Entered Into

On January 22, 2013, we entered into a purchasergmt to acquire five hotel properties in New @mte LA for an aggregate purchase price of
$135.0 million. These properties include a Spririgbliites and two Courtyards by Marriott in New €rhs and a Residence Inn and a Courtyard
by Marriott in Metairie. Although closing is expedtto occur prior to the end of the first quarteP@13, it is subject to the completion of due
diligence and other customary conditions; therefae cannot provide assurance that we will acaihiese hotel properties.

Hotel Property Dispositions
On January 15, 2013, we sold the Americlnn & SuiteSolden, CO for $2.6 million. On February 15130we sold the Hampton Inn in Denver,
CO for $5.5 million.

NOTE 23 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.
Selected consolidated quarterly financial date2fit2 and 2011 follows (in thousands, except peregha

2012
Summit Hotel Properties, In
First Quartel Second Quarte Third Quartelr Fourth Quarte

Total revenue $ 40,10: $ 47,21:  $ 50,80 $ 51,42:
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (1,609 $ 44  $ 1,03: $ (3,495
Net income (loss) from discontinued operati $ (1,19¢ $ (801) $ 60 $ 2,74¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhisl: $ (2,89) $ 1,239 $ 40€ $ (1,979
Earnings per shar- basic and dilutec

Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.08) $ 0.0y $ 0.01 $ (0.12)

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.0%) (0.0%) - 0.0¢

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhdd $ (0.1) $ (0.04) $ 0.01 $ (0.09)

2011
Predecessc Summit Hotel Properties, In

Period 1/1 Period 2/14
through 2/1:  through 3/31 Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarte

Total revenue $ 14,14 $ 18,10 $ 36,81F $ 40,03 $ 33,56¢
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (5,789 $ (1,689 $ 474 $ 941 $ (2,956
Net income (loss) from discontinued operati $ (429 $ 69 $ 13C $ 98z $ (252)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhisl $ (6,207 $ 1,17¢) $ 441 $ 3¢ % (2,647
Earnings per shar- basic and dilutec
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.0 $ 0.01 $ 0.0y $ (0.12)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations - 0.01 0.01 0.0z
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhalde $ (0.0 $ 0.0 $ - $ (0.10
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC., SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP, AND SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC (PREDECESSOR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summit Hotel OP, LP

Selected consolidated quarterly financial date2f@¥2 and 2011 follows (in thousands, except péed:uni

2012
Summit OP, LF
Fourth
First Quarter Second Quarte Third Quartel Quarter
Total revenue $ 40,10: $ 47,21 $ 50,80¢ $ 51,42
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (1,609 $ 444 $ 1,03 $ (3,495
Net income (loss) from discontinued operati $ (1,19¢ $ (801 $ 60 $ 2,74¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common unit hed $ (3,960 $ (1,519 $ 48t $ (1,906
Earnings per un- basic and dilutec
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.08) $ 0.01) $ 0.01 $ (0.12)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.09) (0.09) - 0.0¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common unit hodde $ (0.1) $ (0.04) $ 0.01 $ (0.09)
2011
Predecessc Summit OP, LF
Period 1/1 Period 2/14 Fourth
through 2/1%  through 3/31 Second Quart¢ Third Quartel Quarter
Total revenue $ 14,14: $ 18,10¢ $ 36,81F $ 40,03 $ 33,56¢
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (5,789 $ (1,689 $ 474 $ 941 $ (2,956
Net income (loss) from discontinued operati $ (423 $ 69 $ 13C $ 98z $ (252)
Net income (loss) attributable to common unit hed $ (6,207 $ (1,619 $ 604 $ 41 $ (3,619
Earnings per un- basic and dilutec
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.0 $ 0.01 $ 0.0y $ (0.11)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ - $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ 0.01
Net income (loss) attributable to common unit hodde $ (0.0 $ 0.0 $ - $ (0.10
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Location

Arlington, TX
Arlington, TX

Arlington, TX
Atlanta, GA
Atlanta, GA
Baltimore, MD

Baton Rouge, L,
Baton Rouge, L,

Baton Rouge, L,
Baton Rouge, L,

Bellevue, WA
Birmingham, AL
Birmingham, AL
Bloomington,
MN
Bloomington,
MN

Boise, ID
Boise, ID
Boise, ID
Boise, ID
Charleston, W\
Charleston, W\
Denver, CC

Denver, CC

Denver, CC
Denver, CC
Denver, CC
Denver, CC

Duluth, GA
Duluth, GA
El Paso, TX
El Paso, TX
Emporia, KS
Emporia, KE
Flagstaff, AZ

Flagstaff, AZ
Ft. Collins, CC

Ft. Collins, CC
Ft. Myers, FL
Ft. Smith, AR
Ft. Smith, AR

Ft. Smith, AR
Ft. Wayne, IN

Ft. Wayne, IN
Ft. Worth, TX
Ft. Worth, TX

Ft. Worth, TX
Garden City, NY
Germantown, TI

Germantown, TI

Germantown, TI
Glendale, CC
Golden, CC

Golden, CC
Jackson, M¢

Jackson, M¢
Jacksonville, FL

Las Colinas, Tx
Las Colinas, Tx

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC / SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
Schedule Il - Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciatio
December 31, 201

(in thousands)

Initial Cost
Cost
Capitalized
Year Subsequen
Acquired/ Building & to
Eranchise Constructed Land Improvements Acquisition
Courtyard by Marriot 2012 $ 1491% 13,50: $ 11
Hyatt Place 2012 65( 8,40¢ 9
Residence Inn by
Marriott 2012 1,64¢ 13,85¢ 12
Courtyard by Marriot 2012 2,05( 26,85( 237
Hyatt Place 2006 1,15¢ 9,60t 3,04¢
Hyatt Place 2012 2,10(¢ 8,13t 1C
DoubleTree 2008 1,10 14,06: 874
Fairfield Inn by Marriotl 2004 34t 3,057 2,23¢
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott 2004 44¢ 3,72¢ 1,93¢
TownePlace Suite 2004 25¢ 3,74¢ 1,34¢
Fairfield Inn by Marriotl 2004 2,708 12,94+ 3,247
Hilton Garden Inr 2012 1,40 10,10( 14C
Hilton Garden Inr 2012 1,40 7,22¢ 90z
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott 2007 1,65¢ 14,07: 717
Hampton Inr 2007 1,65¢ 14,59¢ 10€
Fairfield Inn by Marriot 2004 564 2,874 352
Hampton Inr 2004 597 3,29¢ 1,34(
Holiday Inn Expres: 2005 1,03¢ 2,42: 29z
Holiday Inn 2007 1,93¢ 10,96¢ -
Country Inn & Suite: 2004 1,04z 3,48¢ 53¢
Holiday Inn Expres: 2004 907 2,90: 2,17
Fairfield Inn by Marriotl 2004 1,56¢ 6,78% 3,430
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott 2007 1,07¢ 11,07¢ 48
Hampton Inr 2004 1,12¢ 3,67¢ 88¢€
Hyatt Place 2012 2,00( 9,51t 3C
Hyatt Place 2012 1,30 9,23( 14
Hyatt House 2012 2,70C 10,78( 6€
Holiday Inn 2011 - 7,00( 12t
Hilton Garden Inr 2011 2,20( 11,15( 662
Courtyard by Marriot 2011 1,64( 10,71( 77t
Hampton Inr 2005 2,05t 10,74t 3,007
Fairfield Inn by Marriot 2004 32C 2,43¢ 26€
Holiday Inn Expres: 2004 297 2,84( 48t
Courtyard by Marriot 2009 3,35 20,78t 3€
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott 2008 1,39¢ 9,35 4,89t
Hampton Inr 2004 73¢ 4,36 1,17(
Hilton Garden Inr 2007 1,30( 11,80¢ 22¢
Hyatt Place 2009 3,60¢ 16,58: 32
Americinn 2004 - 3,71¢ 704
Aspen Hote 2004 22¢ 3,18¢ 58¢
Hampton Inr 2005 - 12,40: 1,43¢
Hampton Inr 2006 78€ 6,56¢ 1,99t
Residence Inn by
Marriott 2006 914 6,73¢ 745
Hampton Inr 2007 1,50( 8,18¢ 267
Hilton Garden Inr 2012 974 6,22¢ 977
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott 2004 55: 2,69¢ 3,04
Hyatt Place 2012 4,20( 26,80( -
Courtyard by Marriot 2005 1,86( 5,44¢ 1,612
Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2005 767 2,70C 552
Residence Inn b
Marriott 2005 1,08 5,20( 81C
Staybridge Suite 2011 2,10(¢ 7,90( 1,06¢
Fairfield Inn by Marriot 2004 521 2,43: 35z
Americinn 2004 547 2,41¢ 24z
Courtyard by Marriot 2005 1,301 7,322 2,45¢
Staybridge Suite 2007 69¢ 8,45¢ 1,46¢
Aloft 2009 1,70C 15,77t 64
Hyatt Place 2007 781 5,72¢ 1,83
Holiday Inn Expres: 2007 91z 6,68¢ 1,63¢

Accumulated Accumulated Mortgage

Total Cost

Net of

14,737
8,89¢

15,24¢
28,20¢
9,627
10,11:
12,35¢
4,214

4,38¢
3,511

14,89(
11,23¢
9,137

12,57t

12,47
2,67¢
3,77¢
2,58¢
8,33¢
3,67(
4,807
9,38¢

9,08(
3,46¢
11,37:
10,37¢
13,33¢

6,58¢
13,23¢
12,487
12,36¢
2,04¢
2,50¢
20,64¢

12,08:
4,71C

9,19(
16,53:
3,041
2,291

9,86¢
7,41¢

6,194
7,33¢
8,10¢

5,181
31,00(
6,542

2,91:

5,21(
10,33¢
2,29:¢
2,291
8,571
8,791
14,27¢
5,16¢

Total Cost
Building &
Land Improvements Total Depreciation Depreciation
$ 1,497 $ 13,51« $ 15,01. $ (274 $

65(C 8,41¢ 9,06¢ (16€)
1,64¢ 13,86¢  15,51: (26€)
2,05( 27,080 29,137 (92¢)
1,15¢ 12,65. 13,80¢ (4,17¢)
2,10¢ 8,14t  10,24* (133)
1,10(C 14,937 16,03] (3,679
34t 5,29¢ 5,64( (1,42¢)
44¢ 5,66¢ 6,11¢ (1,737
25¢ 5,091 5,35( (1,839
2,70t 16,19. 18,89t (4,00¢)
1,40( 10,24 11,64( (40€)
1,40( 8,12¢ 9,52¢ (397
1,65¢ 14,78¢  16,44¢ (3.87))
1,65¢ 14,70: 16,36( (3,88¢)
564 3,22¢ 3,79( (1,112
1,33¢ 3,897 5,23 (1,457
78( 2,972 3,75 (1,16¢)
781 12,12:  12,90: (4,56¢)
1,042 4,02¢ 5,07( (1,400
907 5,08( 5,987 (1,180
1,56¢ 10,22( 11,78t (2,39¢)
1,07¢ 11,127 12,20¢ (3,129)
1,12¢ 4,564 5,68¢ (2,228
2,00( 9,54t 11,54 172
1,30¢ 9,24¢ 10,54« (16¢9)
2,70C 10,84¢  13,54¢ (211)
- 7,128 7,2t (536)
2,20( 11,81¢ 14,01 (775)
1,64( 11,488 13,12¢ (63¢€)
2,05¢ 13,75: 15,80° (3,447)
32C 2,702 3,02: (97¢)
292 3,32¢ 3,617 (1,113
3,35¢ 20,82: 24,17: (3,52¢)
1,39¢ 14,247 15,64¢ (3,56%)
73¢ 553 6,271 (1,567)
1,30(C 12,03¢ 13,33 (4,143
3,60¢ 16,61¢  20,22¢ (3,699)
- 4,42: 4,42 (1,38)
22¢ 3,77¢ 4,001 (1,710
- 13,837 13,83] (3,979)
78¢ 8,55¢ 9,34t (1,927)
914 7,481 8,39t (2,20))
1,50( 8,451 9,951 (2,617)
974 7,200 8,17 (74)
552 5,741 6,29¢ (1,119
4,20( 26,80(  31,00( -
1,86( 7,06( 8,92( (2,379
767 3,25¢ 4,02( (1,107%)
1,08t 6,01( 7,09:% (1,887)
2,10(¢ 8,96¢  11,06¢ (732)
521 2,78¢ 3,307 (1,014
547 2,65¢ 3,20¢ (914
1,301 9,77¢ 11,077 (2,50¢)
69¢ 9,91¢ 10,61° (1,82¢)
1,70C 15,83¢  17,53¢ (3,260
781 7,561 8,34 (3,177)
89¢ 8,33¢ 9,231 (3,117)

6,12(

Debt

18,69¢
8,241

10,43¢

6,41¢
5,481

2,19¢

12,18:

1,237
6,78¢
4,08¢
3,07i

7,99¢
2,02¢

10,55¢

14,14«

5,78¢

4,44¢

1,415
8,28:
5,11¢

5,30¢

6,357
884

2,43¢

8,30¢
3,44
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Lewisville, TX
Lithia Springs,
GA

Little Rock, AR
Lombard, IL

Medford, OR
Memphis, TN

Nashville, TN
Phoenix, AZ
Portland, OF

Portland, OF
Provo, UT
Ridgeland, M<

Ridgeland, M<
Salina, KE
Salina, KE

Salt Lake City,
uT

San Antonio, TX
Sandy, UT
Scottsdale, Az
Scottsdale, Az

Scottsdale, Az
Smyrna, TN
Smyrna, TN
Spokane, W/
Vernon Hills, IL
Yrbor City, FL
Austin, TX
Land Parcel:

Fairfield Inn by Marriotl
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott

SpringHill Suites by
Marriott

Hyatt Place

Hampton Inr
Courtyard by Marriot
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott

Hyatt Place

Hyatt Place
Residence Inn by
Marriott

Hampton Inr
Homewood Suite
Residence Inn by
Marriott
Americlnn

Fairfield Inn by Marriotl
Residence Inn by
Marriott

Country Inn & Suite!

Holiday Inn Expres:
Courtyard by Marriot
Hyatt Place
SpringHill Suites by
Marriott

Hampton Inr

Hilton Garden Inr

Fairfield Inn by Marriotl

Holiday Inn Expres:
Hampton Inr
Corporate Office

Draw on secured revolving credit facility

468 2,95¢ 54¢ 468 3,50:  3,96¢ (1,280 2,68¢ 75C
48¢ 3,57 651 48¢ 422: 4,70 (1,647 3,05¢ -
87¢ 3,431 62t 87¢ 4,05¢ 4,93 (1,592 3,341 -
1,55( 15,47 ¢ 1,550 15,48: 17,03t (217) 16,81¢
1,23 4,78¢ 68 1,23 5471 6,70 (1,849 4,861 -
68€ 5,81 241 54¢ 6,19 6,741 (2,079 4,66 -
777 3,57¢ 1,80¢ 777 538  6,16: (1,690) 4,47 -
582 4,43¢ 12 582 445] 5,03 77 4,95¢
- 16,71 3C - 16,74:  16,74: (3,402) 13,33¢  8,77¢
- 16,40¢ 14 - 16,42: 16,42 (3,08 13,33¢ 12,28
90¢ 2,86: 2,07 90¢ 493 584 (1,139 4,711 -
1,31« 6,03¢ 1,268 1,31 7,301 8,61 (491) 8,12 -
1,05( 10,04¢ 35 1,05 10,078 11,12t (3,367) 7,75¢ 7,92
98¢ 1,65( 407 98¢ 2,051 3,041 (689) 2,35¢ -
49¢ 1,74 321 49¢ 2,068 2,56¢ 777 1,787 -
2,39: 17,56 - 2,39: 17,567  19,95¢ - 19,95¢ 14,05
2,497 12,83 408 2,49 13,24:  15,73¢ (3,47)) 12,267 10,56
72( 1,76¢ 1,56+ 72( 3,33;  4,05: (1,029 3,03 4,03
3,22t 10,15: 3147 322t 13,29¢ 16,52 (3,689 12,84.  9,65¢
1,50 9,03¢( 36 1,50 9,06¢ 10,56 (166) 10,40
2,19 7,12( 2,03¢ 2,19 10,05¢  12,25: (2,686) 9,56¢  5,19¢
1,14¢ 6,85¢ 20 1,14t 6,87t 8,02 (159) 7,867 5341
1,18¢ 10,31 147 1,18¢ 10,45¢ 11,64’ (234) 11,41 8,509:
1,637 3,66¢ 2,577 163 6,24¢ 7,88 (1,779 6,10 -
1,19¢ 6,0¢ 1,19 1,19¢ 7,291  8,48¢ (2,39)) 6,09¢  2,07:
3,60( 17,24« - 3,60 17,24: 20,84« - 20,84+
- 21C : : 21( 21( ®) 202
19,91 - (1,569 18,34 - 18,34’ - 18,34 -
$126,85($ 697,60 $ 76,74 $12446'$ __ 776,74. $901,20 $  (146,20) $ 755,000 $254,61.
58,00(
$312,61;

(1) Property is collateral for our draw on secured hemg credit facility.
(2) In addition to the DoubleTree in Baton Rouge, ISpringHill Suites in Denver CO and Country InrB&ites in San Antonio TX; the
Fairfield Inn in Boise ILC, Aloft in Jacksonville FL and Hyatt Place in Lasli@as TX are collateral for the GE Capital Corpris.

(3) Property is collateral for the ING Life InsurangedaAnnuity loan.
(4) In addition to the Holiday Inn in Boise ID; the 8mhill Suites in Lithia Springs GA is collaterarfthe MetaBank loar
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. / SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
Notes to Schedule IlI- Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciatiol
As of December 31, 201
(in thousands)

ASSET BASIS Total

(a) Balance at January 1, 201( $ 574,60:
Additions to land, buildings and improveme 2,77(
Disposition of land, buildings and improveme (89)
Impairment loss (6,476
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 570,80
Additions to land, buildings and improveme 79,90!
Disposition of land, buildings and improvements (5,369
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 645,33!
Additions to land, buildings and improveme 294,31(
Disposition of land, buildings and improveme (35,477)
Impairment loss (2,965)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 901,20°
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Total

(b) Balance at January 1, 201! $ 79,60¢
Depreciation for the period ended December 31, : 25,23t
Depreciation on assets sold or disposed (46)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 104,79°
Depreciation for the period ended December 31, : 26,74(
Depreciation on assets sold or disposed (5,369
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 126,16t
Depreciation for the period ended December 31, . 31,73
Depreciation on assets sold or disposed (11,697)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 146,20°

(c) The aggregrate cost of land, buildings, furniturd aquipment for Federal income tax purposes iexapately $898 million
(d) Depreciation is computed based upon the followisefui lives:

Buildings and improvements-40 years

Furniture and equipme-15 years

(e) We have mortgages payable on the properties ad.nddeglitional mortgage information can be foundNiote 11
to the consoldiated financial stateme

(f) The negative balance for costs capitalized subsgeqae@cquisition could include c-parcels sold, disposal of assets,
impairment loss that was record:
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Exhibit 10.7

ACCESSION AGREEMENT
Dated as of November 6, 2012

Reference is made to that certain Credit Agreerdated as of April 29, 2011 (as amended to dateasnotherwise amend:
amended and restated, supplemented or modified tiroeto time, the ‘Credit Agreement; capitalized terms not otherwise defined hereinl
have their respective meanings set forth in theli€fgreement), by and between Summit Hotel OP('LBorrower”), Summit Hotel Propertie
Inc., the Subsidiary Guarantors party thereto, Behé Bank AG New York Branch, as administrativenader the Lender Parties (in st
capacity, “Administrative Agent”), the Lender Parties identified therein and the Ageanparty thereto. Each of the Administrative A
Borrower and Citibank, N.A., (Citi ") desires that Citi become a Lender pursuant éa¢inms and conditions set forth below.

Citi (in its capacity as a Lender Party, th&cceding Lender) agrees as follows:

1.  Citi proposes to become an Acceding Lender pursimaS8ection 2.17 of the Credit Agreement havingezd®iing Credi
Commitment of $25,000,000, and hereby agrees WwighAdministrative Agent and the Borrowers thatialsbecome a Lender for all purpose
the Credit Agreement on the Effective Date (asraefibelow).

2. Acceding Lender (a) represents and warrants that iégally authorized to enter into this Accessibgreement; (k
confirms that it has received a copy of the Créditeement, together with copies of the financiatesnents referred to in Section 4.01 thereo
such other documents and information as it has ddeappropriate to make its own credit analysis éecision to enter into this Access
Agreement; (c) agrees that it will, independentig avithout reliance upon the Administrative Agentaoy other Lender Party and based on
documents and information as it shall deem appabpit the time, continue to make its own crediisiens in taking or not taking action un
the Credit Agreement; (d) confirms that it qualifias an Eligible Assignee; (e) appoints and awthsrthe Administrative Agent to take s
action as agent on its behalf and to exercise poaters and discretion under the Loan Documentseadedegated to the Administrative Agen
the terms thereof, together with such powers andrédiion as are reasonably incidental theret@adif¢es that it will perform in accordance \
their terms all of the obligations that by the teraf the Credit Agreement are required to be peréat by it as a Lender Party; (g) specifies ¢
Applicable Lending Offices the offices set forth Bwhibit A ; and (h) attaches on Exhibit &y U.S. Internal Revenue Service forms req
under Section 2.12 of the Credit Agreement.

3.  Following the execution of this Accession Agreeménill be delivered to the Administrative Agefur acceptance al
recording by the Administrative Agent in the RegistThe effective date for this Accession Agreenttire “ Effective Date”) shall be the later
(a) the date first set forth above, and (b) thes aat which the Administrative Agent shall have reeé the executed certificate of the Borro
pursuant to Sections 2.17(d)(iii) and 3.02 of thredt Agreement, which date shall constitute therdase Date for purposes of Section 2.17 ¢
Credit Agreement.

4.  Upon satisfaction of the applicable conditionsfeeth in Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreement apdrusuch acceptar
and recording by the Administrative Agent, as a #ffective Date, the Acceding Lender (i) shallebparty to the Credit Agreement, (ii) sl
have all of the rights and obligations of a Lendieder the Credit Agreement and (jii) shall havesadving Credit Commitment of $25,000,000.




5.  This Accession Agreement shall be governeabg,construed in accordance with, the laws oBtlaée of New York.

6. This Accession Agreement may be executed in anybeurof counterparts and by different parties hemetseparal
counterparts, each of which when so executed bbatleemed to be an original and all of which talogether shall constitute one and the <
agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpathisf Accession Agreement by telecopier or e-mahi¢l email shall include an attachm
in .PDF or similar electronic format containing tlegible signature of the person executing this essgpon Agreement) shall be effective
delivery of an original executed counterpart o§ thccession Agreement.

[Balance of page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned haseazthis Accession Agreement to be executed offiters thereunto
duly authorized as of the Effective Date.
ACCEDING LENDER:

CITIBANK, N.A.

By: /s/ John C. Rowlan
Name: John C. Rowlar
Title: Vice Presiden

[Signatures continued on next page]
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Accepted and Approved as of November 6, 2012:
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT:

DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH,
as Administrative Agent

By /s/ Mary Brundagt
Name: Mary Brundag
Title: Director

By /s/ James Roliso
Name: James Rolisc
Title: Managing Directo

BORROWER:

SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP ,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: SUMMIT HOTEL GP, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability compan
its general partne

By: SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC
a Maryland corporatior
its sole membe

By:  /s/ Christopher En
Name: Christopher Er
Title: Secretanr




Acceding Lender Applicable Lending Offices

1615 Brett Road OPS Il

New Castle, DE 1972

Phone: 302-894-6052

Fax: 212-994-0847

Email: GLOriginationOps@citi.com
Attn: Citi Loan Operations

EXHIBIT A

A-1




EXHIBIT B

None.

B-1



Exhibit 12.1
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred $tck Dividends
(Dollars in Thousands)

Summit Hotel Properties,

Inc. Summit Hotel Properties, LLC (Predeces:
For the For the
Period Period
2/14/11 1/1/11
Year Ended through through Year Ended Year Endec Year Ended
12/31/12 12/31/11 2/13/11 12/31/10 12/31/09 12/31/08
Earnings
Pre-tax income (loss) fror
continuing operatior $ (4,865 % (7,299 $ (5,462 $ (2085) $ (17510 % 2,81¢
Interest expens 15,58t 12,60« 4,415 24,90: 17,02t 16,11:
Amortization of financing cosl 2,29¢ 2,041 152 1,822 2,01¢ 1,56¢
Amortization of capitalize
interest 59¢ 524 75 59¢ 59¢ 443
Total Earnings $ 1361 $ 7,87¢ 3 (81§ $ 6,46€ $ 2,12¢ 3 20,93t
Fixed Charges
Interest expens $ 15,58  $ 12,60  $ 4,417 3% 2490 $ 17,028  $ 16,11:
Capitalized interes 53 - - - 3,14z 3,82¢
Amortization of financing costs 2,29¢ 2,041 152 1,827 2,01t 1,56¢
Total Fixed Charges $ 17,93t  $ 14,648 3 4,56¢ $ 26,72  $ 22,18. $ 21,50¢
Preferred Dividends $ 4628 % 411 - - - -
Ratio of Earnings to
Combined Fixed Charges anc
Preferred Stock Dividends 0.6C @ 0.5z @ (0.1 ® 0.24 ¥ 0.1C ® 0.97 ®

(@) For this period, earnings were less than fixedgdmand preferred stock dividends. The total amofifixed charges and preferred stock

=

=

dividends for this period we

approximately $22.5 million and the total amoohéarnings was approximately $13.6 million. Theoant of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr:

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was apprataiyn $8.9 million.

For this period, earnings were less than fixedgdg®and preferred stock dividends. The total amhofifixed charges and preferred stock
dividends for this period we

approximately $15.1 million and the total amoahéarnings was approximately $7.9 million. Theoamt of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr:

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was appratdiy $7.2 million.

For this period, earnings were less than fixedgdg®and preferred stock dividends. The total arhofifixed charges and preferred stock
dividends for this period we

approximately $4.6 million and the total amouhearnings was approximately $(.8) million. Thecamt of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was apprataiyn $5.4 million.

For this period, earnings were less than fixedgdgmand preferred stock dividends. The total arhofifixed charges and preferred stock
dividends for this period we

approximately $26.7 million and the total amoohéarnings was approximately $6.5 million. Theoamt of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr:

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was apprataiy $20.2 million

For this period, earnings were less than fixedgd®and preferred stock dividends. The total ahofifixed charges and preferred stock
dividends for this period we

approximately $22.2 million and the total amoahéarnings was approximately $2.1 million. Theoamt of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr:

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was appratdiy $20.1 million

For this period, earnings were less than fixedgd®and preferred stock dividends. The total arhofifixed charges and preferred stock
dividends for this period we

approximately $21.5 million and the total amoahearnings was approximately $20.9 million. Theoant of the deficiency, or the amount of
fixed charges and preferr

stock dividends in excess of earnings, was appratdiy $.6 million.



List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Properties;.|

Exhibit 21.1

Name

State of Incorporation or Organizati

Summit Hotel OP, LI
Summit Hotel GP, LLC
Summit Hotel TRS, Inc
Summit Hotel TRS 11, Inc
Summit Hospitality I, LLC
Summit Hospitality V, LLC
Summit Hospitality VI, LLC
Summit Hospitality VIII, LLC
Summit Hospitality IX, LLC
Summit Hospitality XII, LLC
Summit Hospitality XIII, LLC
Summit Hospitality XIV, LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel OP, |

Exhibit 21.2

Name

State of Incorporation or Organizati

Summit Hotel TRS, Inc
Summit Hotel TRS 1, Inc
Summit Hospitality I, LLC
Summit Hospitality V, LLC
Summit Hospitality VI, LLC
Summit Hospitality VIII, LLC
Summit Hospitality IX, LLC
Summit Hospitality XII, LLC
Summit Hospitality XIII, LLC
Summit Hospitality XIV, LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdgistration statements on Form S-3 (File No. 339503) and Form S-8 (File No. 333-
172145) of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. of (1) oeports dated February 26, 2013, with respechéocbnsolidated balance sheets of Sui
Hotel Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Démgn31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidsttddments of operations, compreher
income (loss), and changes in equity of Summit HBteperties, Inc. and subsidiaries for the yeateenDecember 31, 2012 and the period
February 14, 2011 (commencement of operationsugirdecember 31, 2011, the related consolidatednsémts of operations, comprehen
income (loss), and changes in equity of Summit Heteperties, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecessonhi® period from January 1, 2011 thro
February 13, 2011 and the year ended December03d0, Zhe related consolidated statement of castsflof Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. ¢
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 28&2¢elated combined consolidated statement of ffasis of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. ¢
subsidiaries and Summit Hotel Properties, LLC anbsiliaries (Predecessor) for the year ended DeseBih 2011, the related consolid:
statement of cash flows of Summit Hotel PropertidsC and subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the yeae@rDecember 31, 2010, the rel:
financial statement schedule Ill, and managenseagsessments of the effectiveness of internatalanter financial reporting as of December
2012, and (2) our reports dated February 26, 2018 nespect to the consolidated balance sheetsioin®t Hotel OP, LP and subsidiaries a
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related coasedi statements of operations comprehensive in€¢os®), and changes in equity of Sun
Hotel OP, LP and subsidiaries for the year endedeBer 31, 2012 and the period from February 141 2@8ommencement of operatio
through December 31, 2012, the related consolidstaments of operations, comprehensive inconss)(l@and changes in equity of Surr
Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecgs&morthe period from January 1, 2011 through Fabrd3, 2011 and the year en
December 31, 2010, the related consolidated statieafecash flows of Summit Hotel OP, LP and sulasids for the year ended Decembel
2012, the related combined consolidated statenferash flows of Summit Hotel OP, LP and subsidmdaed Summit Hotel Properties, LLC
subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the year ended Demredi, 2011, the related consolidated statemerasif flows of Summit Hotel Properties, L
and subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the year enéeeérbber 31, 2010, the related financial statemshgdsile 11l, and managemestissessmel
of the effectiveness of internal control over fineh reporting as of December 31, 2012, which repappear in the December 31, 2012 ar
report on Form 10-K of Summit Hotel Properties,. laed Summit Hotel OP, LP.

Our audit reports on the effectiveness of integmaltrol over financial reporting of Summit Hoteloperties, Inc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, contain ataeatory paragraph that states consolidated sabisisl Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. i
Summit Hotel OP, LP acquired 19 hotels (the Acqliktels) in 2012, and management excluded fronastgessment of the effectivenes
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.’s and Summit Hotel, @P’s internal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2012, the Acqui
Hotels’ internal control over financial reporting assoadibtith total revenue of $24.9 million included imetconsolidated financial statement
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and subsidiariestlier year ended December 31, 2012 and the conslidimiancial statements of Summit H
OP, LP and subsidiaries for the year ended Deceihe2012. Our audit of internal control over fioa reporting of Summit Hotel Properti
Inc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP also excluded an etaln of the internal control over financial repogt of the Acquired Hotels.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 26, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Daniel P. Hansen, certify that:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report doegantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri

covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémyeand other financial information included imstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifie periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiittgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))54nd internal control over financial reportif@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules

13&15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hav
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhiibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preggh
b. Designed such internal control over finah@gaorting, or caused such internal control oweariicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of the
financial statement for external purposes in acaacd with generally accepted accounting princig
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and predantthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contntsprocedures as of the end of the period cousréde report based on such
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in #ggtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; 8
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehtatian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialall@esses in the design or operation of internakrcobover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the rtegig’s ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have #isagnt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

N =

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: February 26, 20: By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse
Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Stuart J. Becker, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc
Based on my knowledge, this report doegantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémyend other financial information included iistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifie periods presented in this rep
4. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiitgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))54nd internal control over financial reporti@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hax
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregsh
b. Designed such internal control over finah@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of the
financial statement for external purposes in acmoed with generally accepted accounting princiy
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and predantthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controts procedures as of the end of the period coumréde report based on such
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in grgagtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &
5. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialall@esses in the design or operation of internakraobover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqubrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlwes management or other employees who have #isén role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

N =

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: February 26, 20! By: /s/ Stuart J. Beck

Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer’



EXHIBIT 31.3

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Daniel P. Hansen, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel OP, LF

Based on my knowledge, this report doegantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri

covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémyeand other financial information included imstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifie periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiittgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))54nd internal control over financial reportif@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules

13&15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hax
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhiibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preggh
b. Designed such internal control over finah@gaorting, or caused such internal control oweariicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of the
financial statement for external purposes in acaacd with generally accepted accounting princig
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and predantthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contntsprocedures as of the end of the period cousréde report based on such
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in #ggtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; 8
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehtatian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialall@esses in the design or operation of internakrcobover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the rtegig’s ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have #isagnt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

N =

Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole merr

Date: February 26, 20: By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse
Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer




EXHIBIT 31.4
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Stuart J. Becker, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel OP, LF
Based on my knowledge, this report doegantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémyend other financial information included iistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifie periods presented in this rep
4. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | are responsible for establishing and maiitgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))54nd internal control over financial reporti@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hax
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregsh
b. Designed such internal control over finah@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of the
financial statement for external purposes in acmoed with generally accepted accounting princiy
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and predantthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controts procedures as of the end of the period coumréde report based on such
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in grgagtrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &
5. The registrant’s other certifying officerés)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@mspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialall@esses in the design or operation of internakraobover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqubrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlwes management or other employees who have #isén role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

N =

Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole merr

Date: February 26, 20! By: /s/ Stuart J. Beck

Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit Hdeoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securitiesxcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8parDaniel P. Hansen, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted potrso&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA1934, as amended; a
(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finargoaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: February 26, 20! By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse

Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit Hdeoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012 as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pérStuart J. Becker, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Comparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934, as amended; a

(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: February 26, 20: By: /s/ StuartJ. Beck
Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer’




EXHIBIT 32.3

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit H&®, LP (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fisgaar ended December 31,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, DafteHansen, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 L SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectiéroBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934, as amended; a

(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the

Company.
Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole merr
Date: February 26, 20: By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse

Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer



EXHIBIT 32.4

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit H&®, LP (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fisgaar ended December 31,

2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, StudamBecker, Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted porsoi&ection 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act
of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934, as amended; a

(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of the

Company.
Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole merr
Date: February 26, 20! By: /s/ Stuart J. Becki

Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer



